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Hengdeli Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hengdeli”
and its subsidiaries, collectively as the “Group”) is the
world’s prestigious retailer of internationally renowned
watch brands and manufacturer of watch accessories. Its
shareholders include the Zhang family, SWATCH Group, the
watch manufacturer and distributor with international repute,
and LVMH Group, the internationally recognized luxury
goods conglomerate.

The Group owns an extensive retail network comprising:
Prime Time/Hengdeli (mid-end and mid-to-high-end
internationally renowned watch brands), Elegant (top-
end internationally renowned watch brands) and single-
brand boutiques. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had 482 retails outlets, selling watches from more than
50 internationally renowned brands in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The Group has about
400 wholesale customers in over 100 major cities. Taking
website (www.censh.com) as its flagship, and combining
with interactive platforms such as WeChat, APP, Weibo
and internet communities, the media-based cross-platform
e-commerce of the Group provides space for its customers
to enjoy its interactive service. Meanwhile, the Group
provides integrated after-sales warranty maintenance for
internationally renowned brand watches and has established
an interactive customer service network covering the Greater
China Region including Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Taiwan.

The Group owns a number of watch accessories
manufacturing enterprises, of which the business covers
watchcase manufacturing, packaging products, commercial
space design, production and decoration as well as self-
developed brands, serving customers from the Greater
China Region, Asia Pacific and countries and regions such
as Switzerland and America.

The Group has maintained sound and in-depth collaboration
with many world-renowned premier brand suppliers
including SWATCH Group, LVMH Group, RICHEMONT
Group, ROLEX Group and KERING Group, distributes and
exclusively distributes world-renowned brand watches. The
Group serves as the maintenance agent (including exclusive
maintenance agent) for 74 internationally renowned watch
brands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange since 2005 with stock code
3389. The stock name is Hengdeli in short.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of Hengdeli Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “year” or the
“year under review”), for your review.

In 2015, the global economic remained in the doldrums,
and China, amidst a digestion phase for the transformation
of development model and the adjustment of economic
structure, saw a continuously slower economic growth
rate. Meanwhile, consumption patterns of consumers are
undergoing constant evolvement. Thus, from an overall
perspective, the operating environment remains rigorous,
and has a comprehensive impact on the Group’s business
development. Facing up to challenges, the Group continued
to adhere to its business strategy of “seeking sustainable
profits to underpin healthy growth” made in 2014, aiming
to secure a sound and stable business growth and to
safeguard shareholders’ interests.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had recorded
revenue of RMB13,302,724,000, a decrease of 9.9% vyear-
on-year. Retail sales amounted to RMB9,373,354,000, a
decrease of 11.6% year-on-year. Net profit for the year
was RMB190,164,000, a decrease of 67.4%, while profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company totaled
RMB144,868,000, a decrease of 71.3% as compared to the
same period last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
A

During the year under review, given the continued unstable
operating environment and the diversified locations and
patterns of consumption of Mainland consumers, the
business circumstance for watch sales of the Group in the
Greater China region as a whole and especially in Hong
Kong turned out to be extremely rigorous. Adhering to
the principle of “healthy and sustainability” and aiming for
“optimizing inventory and guaranteeing profit”, the Group
kept on fine-tuning the positioning of its retail outlets,
optimizing its brand portfolio, strengthening its scientific
management and operating in a prudential manner, in a
bid to secure a steady and persistent growth. After rational
adjustment and optimization, the Group operated a total
of 482 retail outlets in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan as at 31 December 2015, with the overall sales
remaining dull, however, steady.

On the other hand, despite the overall downturn in watch
sales, the industrial segment engaged in watch accessories
manufacturing has made a remarkable progress. During
the year, the industrial segment gradually built its modern
management system, kept on enhancing its efficient
information management system and enriching its industrial
chain and customer resources and collaborated more
closely with brand owners. In return, the industrial segment
improved its efficiency significantly, with sales increasing
by approximately 35% year-on-year, demonstrating good
growth prospect and potential. We believe that the industrial
segment will become a powerful driving force for the
development of the Group and an important component of
the Group’s business portfolio in the foreseeable future.

During the year under review, the Group officially launched
“BXB%F.com (www.censh.com)”, a media-based cross-platform
e-commerce website. Capitalizing on the Group’s strengths,
“BXBF.com (www.censh.com)” provides booking for try-on
service and online-to-offline (O20) booking service covering
all outlets of the Group, and is also actively exploring
for online-to-offline (020) customer service and watch
maintenance service, with a view to expanding its watch
pre-sale, on-sale and after-sale service markets with all the
strength.

8 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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The Group’s core values of “respect, commitment,
cooperation and innovation” have enabled us to build a
solid foundation for fulfilling our corporate governance and
social responsibilities. Believing that business exists as a
part of the society and prospers along with it, the Group
has been shouldering social responsibility in terms of
protecting the environment, managing environmental quality,
conserving resources and developing talents, all of which
are contributing to the Group’s healthy development.

Looking forward to 2016, the road to full recovery of the
global economy will remain bumpy and long, and China’s
domestic economy will continue to face greater downward
pressure. We anticipate that, the sales growth of the watches
market in the Greater China region will remain dull amid the
“new normal” of economic development. However, China’s
positive economic fundamentals and long-term trajectory
remain unchanged. Therefore, both opportunities and
challenges are unprecedented. The Group will capitalize
on its own core competitiveness, identify and capture new
business opportunities amid difficulties and challenges,
aiming for new breakthroughs and expansions. We remain
cautiously optimistic about the future prospects of the
Group.

In the coming year, the Group will hold on to a stable and
healthy growth policy, while at the same time harboring a
pragmatic view and innovative spirit in the search of a new
development model of the Group. It can be condensed into
a few words: making structural adjustment, keeping healthy
growth and seeking sustainability. In this connection, the
Group will, on one side, try to keep its watch sales healthy
and stable and, on the other, devote more efforts for the fast
development of businesses including the industrial segment,
so as to open up a road of sustainable development amid
the “new normal”, and to create greater value for both our
shareholders and society at large.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, suppliers, customers and
other business partners for their ongoing trust and support,
as well as to all our staff members for their dedication and
wholehearted contributions over the past year.

By Order of the Board

Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2016
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EREHREE

The directors of the Company are pleased to present to you
this report and the audited accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s business primarily
focused on the retail and distribution of internationally
renowned branded watches, comprehensive related
customer services and maintenance, watch accessories
manufacturing and e-commerce in the Greater China region

with a core presence in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Retail Network

The Group’s retail network spanned across the Greater
China region where retail stores mainly included “Prime
Time”/“Hengdeli”,
boutiques. “Prime Time”/“Hengdeli”
Mainland China and Taiwan, selling mid-end and mid-to-
high-end internationally renowned brands, while “Elegant” is

“Elegant”, and certain single-brand

is mainly located in

mainly located in Hong Kong, selling high-end internationally
renowned brands. Following adjustments and optimization,
the Group operated a total of 482 retail outlets in Mainland
China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan as at 31 December
2015, as detailed below:
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As at 31 December 2015
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Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Taiwan Total
A E At AR =0 g
Prime Time/Hengdeli 365 5 32 402
BT =15 F (Harvest Max)
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Elegant 14 5 1 20
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Brand boutiques 33 13 14 60
MR EE
Total 412 23 47 482
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As a pacesetter in the sale of internationally renowned
watch brands in the world, the Group has maintained sound
business relationships with many world-renowned brand
watch suppliers over the years, including SWATCH Group,
LVMH Group, RICHEMONT Group, ROLEX Group and
KERING Group, etc. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
was engaged in the distribution of over 50 international
brands from the above five major brand suppliers and other
independent watchmakers, including Breguet, Bulgari,
Cartier, Girard-Perregaux, Harry Winston, IWC, Jaeger-
LeCoultre, Longines, Mido, Omega, Rolex, Vacheron-
Constantin, Zenith, Parmigiani Fleurier, Tissot, and Van
Cleef & Arpels, etc. During the year under review, the Group
continued to step up its efforts in aligning mid-end and mid-
to-high-end brands in both Mainland China and Hong Kong
to enhance its brand portfolio, paving the way for long-
term business development and stabilizing overall sales
performance.

The business condition in 2015 remained unstable. The
increasingly diversified shopping locations and consumption
patterns of Mainland China consumers aggravated the
harsh sales environment generally in the Greater China
region, especially in Hong Kong, and the growth pattern and
momentum of the jewelry and watch industry has plunged
into deep adjustment. Businesses were faced with loss of
customers and rise of labor cost. Adhering to the principle
of “soundness and sustainability” and “aiming for optimizing
inventory and guaranteeing profit”, the Group insisted on
complementing and interacting with each other within the
Greater China region including Mainland China and Hong
Kong, with mid-end brands as the mainstay in its brand mix
in order to meet the affordability of the general public, and
second, third and fourth tier cities as the main sales regions.
The Group also continued to adjust the layout of its retail
network, improve store performance and optimize inventory
mix. We carefully steered business forward through
strengthened scientific management and prudent operation.
Overall sales remained relatively stable despite that the
momentum is slowing down.
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Mainland China

The Group has developed a comprehensive and fully-
fledged network of retail outlets in Mainland China, with a
broad presence in key regions including Beijing, Shanghai,
Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Henan, Shanxi, Hubei, Northeastern
and Southwestern China where its market share has been
concentrated and stable. Meanwhile, the Group’s market
shares in Central, Southern and Northwestern China as well
as other regions are on the rise, thus improving our market
position in those regions.

The retail outlet “Prime Time” has been positioned to sell
mid-end and mid-to-high-end internationally renowned
branded watches in Mainland China. This marketing strategy
is mainly designed to cater for the actual demand of
Mainland consumers and complement the Group’s high-end
watch business strategy in Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had 412 retail outlets in Mainland China,
including 365 “Prime Time” shops. The Group’s “Elegant”
shops, which are mainly image stores and sell high-end
watches, have a relatively small coverage in Mainland
China. Most of the 14 “Elegant” shops are located in first-
tier developed cities such as Shanghai, Beijing, Hangzhou,
Shenyang and Chengdu, with no new shop being opened
during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s main retail
strategy in Mainland China did not have much change from
that of last year. The focus was on mid-end watches and
second, third and fourth tier cities and also to enhance the
re-alignment and network layout of mid-end stores within
each region and major city. The strategy involved a core
operational principle of “maintaining steady sales and
profit, and promoting inventory structure enhancement in
full swing”, and the retail region management structure
adjustment aimed at “leanness, professionalism and
efficiency” was expedited. The Group kept pace with the
market adjustment to integrate retail outlets and furthered
its refined management for better performance of individual
outlets; and continued to step up its efforts in streamlining
outlets in the first tier market and high-end watch retail
market, and reasonably adjusted its brand portfolio and
enhanced its inventory structure in response to the changing
market conditions in a timely manner; the Group also
enhanced the sales skills of frontline staff and improved
customer relationship management at outlets.
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As the shopping locations and consumption patterns of
consumers have been changing, consumption motivation
has shifted from business related purpose to personal use
and consumers have become more price sensitive than ever.
The pressure on prices due to the availability of overseas
surrogate shopping, electronic platform and other channels
has led to exceptionally fierce market competition. Hence,
the overall consumption situation of Mainland China was
lackluster for the year. Despite the Group’s various efforts,
we were unable to stem the decline in sales as affected
by the adverse macro condition and subdued consumer
demand. Retail sales from Mainland China decreased by
7.4% as compared with that of the previous year. However,
the Group’s profitability on sales, inventory turnover and
account receivables in Mainland China all performed
relatively well as a result of effective operation strategies
and enhanced management skills. That has helped to
stabilize the Group’s market share in Mainland China and
paved the way to sustainable growth in the medium and
long term.

It is noted that in 2015, China experienced a change
in development mode and was in a transition period of
economic structure adjustment, a slowdown in its pace of
economic growth was observed. Nevertheless, considering
the accelerating industrialisation and urbanisation process,
rapid growth of the second, third and fourth tier cities and
a burgeoning middle class in Mainland China, the sales
strategy of targeting at mid-end and mid-to-high-end
internationally renowned branded watches will still be the
major direction of the Group in Mainland China in the short
and medium term.

Hong Kong and Macau

The Group’s retail business in Hong Kong mainly focuses
on high-end brands, including Blancpain, Breguet, Cartier,
Chopard, Dewitt, Franck Muller, Girard-Perregaux, IWC,
Jaeger-LeCoultre, Omega, Panerai, Piaget, Vacheron-
Constantin, Zenith, Parmigiani Fleurier, Bulgari, Harry
Winston as well as independent watchmakers namely
Christophe Claret, MB&F, HYT, Greubel Forsey, etc. The
sales of such high-end brands fully complemented our retail
business in Mainland China and Taiwan, thus creating good
synergy. To adapt to the change in the mix and consumption
patterns of visitors in recent years, the Group also started
to deploy multi-layer brand positioning in Hong Kong,
introducing certain mid-end brands in order to expand
market share and maintain its leading position in Hong
Kong.
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As at 31 December 2015, Elegant operated a total of 18
retail outlets in Hong Kong, of which 5 were multi-brand
“Elegant” shops and the rest were single-brand boutiques or
image stores. Currently, the shops operated by the Group in
Hong Kong are mainly located in prime commercial districts
such as Tsim Sha Tsui, Central and Causeway Bay.

Amidst the macro economic constraints, Hong Kong’s retail
sector was still lackluster during the year, as witnessed
by continued weakness of consumer demand for high-end
brands. According to the Census and Statistics Department
of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong retail value index for jewelry,
timepieces and precious gifts continued to record a double-
digit decline when compared to the same period of the
previous year. Under the dismal overall conditions, sales
of Elegant decreased by 26.8% year-on-year along with
the market trend. In addition, as operation costs such as
rental expenses had not followed the market with significant
changes, profit also decreased. However, sales of Elegant
was still promising with the Group’s extensive, solid and
loyal client base in Hong Kong, the interaction between
retail outlets in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the
favorable cooperation with brand suppliers, as well as the
comprehensive after-sale service network across the Greater
China region which provided assured after-sale warranty for
Mainland tourists shopping in Hong Kong.

Elegant strengthened operation management besides
spending efforts on sales during the year under review,
including merging of single-brand boutiques to lower cost
while strengthening the staff training at different levels
and enhancing the knowledge in watches and the service
standards of the frontline staff. Efforts were also made to
upgrade the management model and build up a talent pool
to foster a world-class professional sales force for expanding
market share.
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Meanwhile, Elegant continued to strengthen its marketing
campaigns. Resources were committed to collaborate more
closely with a broadened portfolio of international brands
in advertising, VIP events and other promotional activities.
Social networking platforms such as Facebook, Weibo
and WeChat were developed to establish and maintain
sound interaction with consumers, aiming to enhance their
awareness and loyalty for Elegant and hence uplift the
international reputation of “Elegant” brand.

In light of the adjustment stage of the high-end consumer
goods industry in Hong Kong, Elegant will, by capitalising
on its strengths, follow the pace of the market, and identify
opportunities to capture more market share and improve
profitability under the adverse market condition.

The situation of the overall operations and sales of the
Group’s store in Macau is basically the same as that in
Hong Kong. The Macau store was closed due to expiration
of lease. The Group will further look for new business
opportunities in Macau.

Taiwan

During the year under review, the Group’s retail business in
Taiwan was in the process of network building and nurturing.
Clinging to a similar sales strategy as in Mainland China, the
Group focused on the sales of mid-end and mid-to-high-end
watches in Taiwan. The Group operated a total of 47 retail
outlets in Taiwan as at 31 December 2015, mainly located
in prime districts including Taipei, Taichung, Kaohsiung,
Hsinchu and Chiayi. Except for one “Elegant” shop which
sells top-end watches and certain single-brand boutiques, all
other retail outlets are “Hengdeli” shops which sell mid-end
and mid-to-high-end watch brands like Certina, Hamilton,
Longines, Rado, TAG Heuer and Tissot, etc.

Sales in Taiwan have been stable for the year and have not
deviated much from that of previous year. Currently, the
target consumers in Taiwan are mainly local customers.
However, as the cross-strait business relations and the
economic ties among Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong
Kong become closer, it is expected that an increasing
number of Mainland tourists will travel to Taiwan, creating
new opportunities for Taiwan’s retail industry.
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Industrial Sector

The industrial sector which is engaged in the manufacture
of watch accessories made substantial progress during
the year under review. According to the contemplated
strategy and through more than one year’s re-alignment
and integration, the industrial sector has established a new
business model comprising upstream and downstream
operations of the watch industrial chain spanning from
watchcase manufacturing, packaging products, commercial
space design, production and decoration, as well as self-
developed brands. A number of companies in the sector
have earned a goodwill in their respective fields.

During the year, the industrial sector has put in place a
modern management structure which clearly defined the
respective authorities and duties of the headquarters,
branch companies and subsidiaries and promoted sharing of
interests. The efficient information management system used
by the industrial sector was further enhanced, among others,
as follows: a modernized office automation system has been
launched; an upgrade was made to production automation;
and branch companies and subsidiaries began to adopt
a corporate management system developed jointly with
an ERP management company specially for the industrial
sector. Industrial chain and customer resources were further
enriched, and overall sales plans covering watchcase
manufacturing to shop decoration were implemented.
A wide customer base covering China, Switzerland, the
U.S. and other nations in the Asia Pacific region has been
established. Co-operation with brand suppliers has been
increasing and a close collaborative relationship with mutual
trust and interest sharing was formed.

Benefiting from quality management and bold innovations,
overall performance of the industrial sector improved
remarkably with sales increasing by approximately 35%
year-on-year, reflecting a healthy uptrend and promising
growth potential.

In the coming year, the industrial sector is going to utilize
internal funds on continuous technology upgrades. In
particular, opportunities in technological advancement
concerning Industry 4.0 will be sought in order to promote
the use of production automation and semi automation
to raise labor productivity. The industrial sector will seek
to develop new technical methods, processes and new
products to satisfy market demand; on the other hand, it will
deepen co-operation with brand suppliers. We are confident
that the industrial sector will become a strong driving force
for the Group’s development and turn into an important

business arm of the Group in the foreseeable future.
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E-Commerce

Following deliberate preparation and improvements, a new
consumption model known as “Internet + Hengdeli” ~ matcem
(www.censh.com) was officially put online during the year
under review. “censh.com” is a media-based e-commerce
cross-platform within the Group that runs its major flagship
“EXBF.com”(www.censh.com). “censh.com” draws together
a number of mobile internet softwares including WeChat,
Weibo and other mobile communication applications
and provides one-stop solution for six major functions,
namely e-commerce, ERP, product data management,
customer resources management, call center and WeChat
by capitalising on advanced technology. It offers a
comprehensive online to offline service experience to
watch lovers. The 020 model of “censh.com” combines the
Group’s hundreds of stores and the large group of frontline
staff into one online store, who acts as a private assistant
to a potential customer offering one-on-one personalized
and one-stop 24 hour services over the whole process from
watch selection, consultation, comparison, purchase, repairs
and maintenance and after-sale services. In doing so, a
“vertical ecology for the watch business through internet
and digitalization” can be created, overcoming the distance
barrier and limitations of physical stores. “censh.com” is
also a one-stop shop in which all stocks from all our stores
are available for sale. The entire inventory management has
been transformed in a way that boosted inventory turnover
and cash flows. “censh.com” has put into practice a
customer behavioral analysis model which is comprehensive
and scientific and serves as a scientific basis for the
formulation of guidelines for the Group’s business strategies.

" @elcem iNherits the values of “enthusiasm, innovation, mutual
trust, self-actualization”. Unlike traditional e-commerce
operators who stress “speed” and “low price”, “censh.
com” is more than a website for interactive online and
offline sales of watches — it is a platform for communication
among customers and a culture carrier for the dissemination
of the watch culture. Its emphasis is on “experience” and
“authenticity” and its mission is to reduce the gap among
people through the diffusion of the ideas of buying watches
as gifts, as tokens, and a way to pursue stylish life. The
Group believes that with the successful online operation
of “censh.com”, the online and offline resources will
become highly synergistic, consequently contributing to the

development of the Group.
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Customer Service and Maintenance

“Cutting-edge technology, joint warranty network, efficient
management, and considerate services” have always been
the aspirations of the customer services of the Group. As the
top-notch leading retail group for internationally renowned
watch brands, the customer service network of the Group
has been integrated and is comprehensive. Coupled with
the continuing training provided by brand suppliers to the
Group’s technical personnel, the human resources policy of
recruiting talents worldwide has ensured the Group to stay
at the cutting edge of maintenance expertise internationally.
The warranty covering the Greater China region including
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, as well
as the interactive customer service network consisting of
“repairs and maintenance service centres”, “repair service
stations” and “repair service points”, ensure the delivery of
widespread all-round services to customers. The service
hotline 4008 acts as the Group’s centralised service channel
for the general public, offering timely advice and providing
customers with assurance and confidence.

High-calibre maintenance technicians have been the
foundation of the Group’s customer services. During the
year under review, the Group designated maintenance
technicians to attend overseas training courses for a number
of times, and maintained good partnerships with brand
suppliers in Switzerland and watch maintenance technical
schools in foreign countries like Sweden and Japan, so as
to secure consistent supply of high-calibre maintenance
technicians. Also, the scale of maintenance technical
training courses in the second and third tier cities was also
expanded, with overseas senior technicians in charge of
course planning and teaching, so as to provide stringent
training for the front-line maintenance technicians in a timely
and phased manner. As a result, the Group’s high level
customer services on par with the international standards
are guaranteed.
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Both for brand suppliers and consumers, more emphasis
is being put on the integration of the global services of
internationally renowned watch brands. As the linking
bridge between brand suppliers and consumers, the Group
has continued to win their confidence with comprehensive
service coverage. Capitalising on its sound services and
high-tech service quality, the Group continues to broaden
and deepen the cooperation with these brands. During the
year under review, the Group added the CK brand into the
comprehensive customer services arrangements with brand
suppliers including Tissot, Mido, and Certina, etc. from the
SWATCH Group. The Group also entered into exclusive
watch maintenance agent agreements with Movado, Milus,
Blita, LOCMAN and Million Horn, etc. To date, the Group has
become the maintenance agent for 74 international brands
such as brands from the SWATCH Group and LVMH Group,
of which the Group is the exclusive maintenance agent for
45 brands.

During the period under review, the initial stage of
the integration of customer services of the Group was
completed, and it has improved the working system of the
customer services department in various aspects such as
organisational structure, talent pool, and the construction
of information systems; and during the same period, the
regional expansion of our service network has been faster
and more efficient. The Group has achieved initial success
as to the vision to maintain both service quality and
efficiency.

During the year,
was granted the title of “Chief Technician” by the People’s
A number of technicians in the

Group repairs technician He Yangiang
Government of Shanghai.

customer service department of the Group have been
granted this title.
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Brand Distribution

In the brand distribution business, the Group has always
sought cooperation with brand suppliers and retailers by
adopting the most market-oriented approach, leveraging
each other’s strengths to strive for a coordinated division of

labour in the integration of sale and supply.

During the year under review, growth in total value of
brand distribution by the Group continued to slow down
in light of the difficult market environment caused by the
downbeat business condition and continuous changing
shopping locations and consumption patterns of consumers.
Nonetheless, under the concerted effort of the staff of the
Group, higher sales were recognized as compared to that
of the previous year. The Group worked closely with brand
suppliers to respond to the changing market by actively
adjusting brand distribution strategies and streamlining
and improving inventory mix for a healthy and sustainable
development of the brands in Mainland China. At the same
time, based on joint market research, a number of incentive
policies more closely aligned with market needs and sales
plans tailor-made based on regional characteristics were
developed,
and caring services to stimulate their enthusiasm in the retail

to provide retailers with more comprehensive

end.

The Group has about 400 wholesale customers in over one
hundred cities across China, distributing and exclusively
distributing world-famous watch brands including Hamilton,
Certina, Balmain, Tissot, Mido, and CK of Swatch Group,
and Bulgari of LVMH Group.

The Group maintained a sound co-operative relationship
with brand suppliers and numerous brand retailers and
has received general support from them. For the coming
year, the Group will continue to maintain and deepen the
relationship, while exploring new measures under the new
normal to achieve harmonious growth and win-win situation.
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OUTLOOK

In 2016, as the road for full global economic recovery is still
long and winding, China’s economy will also be faced with
significant downward pressure. We believe that under the
new normal, the growth of sales of watches in the Greater
China region will continue to lose steam. However, the
long term economic trend in China remains fundamentally
favorable, thus presenting unprecedented opportunities
and challenges. By leveraging its core competitiveness,
the Group will identify and grasp any new opportunities to
achieve breakthroughs and expand business despite the
current headwinds and challenges. We remain cautiously
optimistic about the future prospects of the Group.

In the coming year, the Group will hold on to a stable and
healthy growth policy, while at the same time harboring a
pragmatic view and innovative spirit in the search of a new
development model for the Group. It can be condensed into
a few words: making structural adjustment, keeping healthy
growth and seeking sustainability. In practice, the Group will
maintain a healthy and stable level of sales and inventory
on one hand, and more resources will be invested in the
industrial sector to help bolster development on the other.
The aim is to open up a road of continuous development
for the Group amid the “new normal” economic climate
and generate greater value for the shareholders and the
community at large.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial condition, business
directions and prospects may be affected by various risk
factors and uncertainties. The major risks and uncertainties
for the Group are identified below. Except as stated below,
there may exist other significant risks and uncertainties
which are unknown to the Group or are not material at
present but could become material in the future.
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Strategy Risk

The business environment in the market keeps changing
over time. Setbacks in economic activities pose particularly
adverse effect on the sale of mid-to-high-end products. If
our strategies are unable to avert the impact and be revised
according to the situation, the Group may suffer uncertainty
risk. In this regard, the Group will closely monitor the market
and revise our strategic approach from time to time in order
to put us on the track for healthy growth.

Commodity Risk

Currently, the Group’s business and operating results are to
some extent rely on brand suppliers. If brand suppliers no
longer appoint the Group as their distributors, dealers, or
repairs and maintenance agent, or there arise quality issues
regarding their products, there will be a risk that the Group’s
operating results may fluctuate vigorously. The Group
has maintained good cooperative relationships with many
international brand suppliers, so that the risk of reliance on
any single brand can be reduced, which attributes to the
continuous health of the Group’s business.

Operation Risk

Operation risk refers to the risk that losses will be incurred
because of the shortcoming or failure of an internal business
process, staffing or system, or attributable to an external
event. Managing the operating risk is the duty of each
functional department. The Group is of the opinion that
operating risk cannot be eliminated entirely and will have an

impact on our operating results and profits.

The Group has issued guidance about internal standard
business process, authorities and reporting hierarchy.
Internal audit department will identify and assess major
operating risks and report any such risk to senior
management for appropriate responsive measures.
Take inventory control as an example, besides scientific
management and stringent controls on its operating process,
the Group will also make provisions so as to control risk to
the greatest extent.
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Financial Risk

The Group’s financial risks mainly include market risk
and liquidity risk. Monetary condition, interest rates and
interest rate cycles may pose a risk to the financial position,
operating results and business of the Group.

Market risk refers to the risk that Group’s earnings and
capital or the ability to achieve the desired business goals
may be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates
and interest rates, etc. The Group timely monitors the
relative foreign exchange positions of assets and liabilities
and makes appropriate adjustments to minimize foreign
exchange risk. Interest rate risk is regularly managed and
monitored by the Group’s senior management.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to
obtain sufficient funds or realize assets, leading to failure
in due performance of contractual obligation. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flow and maintains
adequate capital and credit facilities to ensure the supply of
funds for the Group’s operations and reduce the impact of
fluctuations in cash flow.

Talent Pool Risk

Getting the right people is an essential factor for the
development of an enterprise. Competition is intense in
the industry and regions in which the Group operates its
business. The shortage or loss of personnel with appropriate
skills or experience could pose a potential risk impacting
the Group’s ability to achieve its goals. The Group provides
competitive salaries and benefits and various incentives to
attract the right talent so as to satisfy the needs of corporate
development.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the knowledge of the Company, there was no major
change to the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the business and operation of the Group for the year. Also,
the Group has complied with such laws and regulations
in all major respects covering sale of products, protection
offered by online platforms to brand suppliers, labor codes,
environment protection and anti-corruption and bribery
prevention policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
The Group maintained a sound and stable financial position.

Revenue

During 2015, the Group recorded revenue of
RMB13,302,724,000 (2014: RMB14,764,370,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 9.9%. Retail sales amounted to
RMB9,373,354,000 (2014: RMB10,608,804,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 11.6%. Revenue from industrial
sector and others amounted to RMB539,991,000 (2014:
RMB428,845,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
25.9%.

In 2015, the global economy remained sluggish while China
was adapting to the change of development model and
economic restructuring with its economic growth slowing
down. Moreover, the consumers’ shopping locations and
consumption patterns have been also changing constantly.
As a result, the overall operating environment was very
difficult and had full impact on the business development
of the Group. Despite the weak sales in the watch market,
especially the watch market in Hong Kong, the Group’s
industrial sector achieved relatively good results due to a
series of reform and innovation.

Sales breakdown (for the year ended 31 December 2015):

5 %5 [l 8
RE B BTN -
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HTMB11.6% TEEBEEMZ E¥mE
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2015 2014
—E-—FE —E=—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR
(Fx) % (F) %
Retail Business TEZER
Mainland China hE A 5,786,672 435 6,248,240 423
Hong Kong B 1,898,540 14.3 2,593,388 17.6
Taiwan A& 178,279 1.3 182,761 1.3
Harvest Max @i 1,509,863 1.4 1,584,415 10.7
Wholesale Business HEE T 3,389,379 25.5 3,726,721 25.2
Industrial Sector and Others TX%£E &
HAit 539,991 4.0 428,845 2.9
Total et 13,302,724 100 14,764,370 100
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TEEEMKHEM HEEX SRS
4.0% 25.5%
Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin ERNRERZER

During 2015, the Group’s gross profit showed a 7.7%
year-on-year decrease and reached approximately
RMB3,900,547,000 (2014: RMB4,224,832,000). Gross
profit margin was approximately 29.3% (2014: 28.6%),
representing a year-on-year increase of 70 bps. If excluding
the contribution from Harvest Max, the gross profit margin
of the Group’s retail business remained basically flat.
Despite the subdued market environment, the Company still
managed to maintain relatively stable discount offerings.

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded net profit of RMB190,164,000 (2014
RMB583,427,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of
67.4%. Profit attributable to equity shareholders amounted
to RMB144,868,000 (2014: RMB504,220,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 71.3%. Decrease in the profit
was mainly due to the one-off revenue from disposal of
properties, which was included in the profit for the year of
2014, the drop in sales and gross profit and impairment of
goodwill and available-for-sale securities.

Financial Status and Net Debt to Equity Ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total equity
of RMB6,540,357,000 (2014: RMB6,628,628,000)
and net current assets of RMB6,928,455,000
(2014: RMB6,878,921,000), with bank deposits of
RMB1,910,351,000 (2014: RMB1,968,065,000) and total
bank loans of RMB1,256,842,000 (2014: RMB1,486,339,000).
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As at 31 December 2015, bank loans amounting to
RMB140,607,000 (2014: RMB879,244,000) bore interests
at fixed rates ranging from 2.10% to 6.44% (2014: 0.92%
to 6.44%), and the remaining bank loans bore interests at
floating rates ranging from HIBOR+1.25% to 2.52% (2014:
1.92% to 6.56%). As at 31 December 2015, approximately
8% (2014: 21%), 86% (2014: 75%), 2% (2014: 0%) and 4%
(2014: 4%) of bank loans were denominated in RMB, HKD,
USD and NTD, respectively. The maturity profile of bank
loans is set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, there was no sign of
significant changes in the Group’s demand for loans in a
particular quarter.

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate principal amount
of the USD-settled senior notes due in 2018 (the “Senior
Notes”) was USD350 million (2014: USD350 million), of
which USD4,000,000 had been repurchased but had not
been cancelled during the year.

Combining the net amount of these Senior Notes with bank
loans, the Group’s total debt amounted to RMB3,545,278,000
(2014: RMB3,738,249,000). The net debt to equity ratio of
the Group was approximately 25.0% (2014: 26.7%). The
Directors of the Company believe that the net debt to equity
ratio remains within a healthy and manageable range.

The Group adopts prudent treasury policies in financial and
cash management, managing bank credit availability and
monitoring risks of credit cost centrally in various ways. The
Group maintains a good partnership with a number of banks
which provide facilities, and reviews their funding liquidity
and financing requirements regularly.

Operating Cash Flow

During the year under review, based on its prudent
business objective and market-oriented policies, the Group
continuously improved the inventory structure and enhanced
financial management while continuing developing business
so as to ensure a steady and healthy operating cash flow
which has laid a sound foundation for further business
development.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB,
HKD and USD. During the year under review, the foreign
exchange movements of such currencies were managed
properly. Accordingly, the Group was not exposed
to significant risks associated with foreign exchange
fluctuations.

The Group has not entered into foreign exchange hedging
arrangements to manage foreign exchange risk but has
been actively monitoring its foreign exchange risk.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had land and buildings
equivalent to RMB10,253,000 (2014: RMB10,282,000)
pledged as securities for mortgage.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2014: nil).

Current Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB9,615,876,000 (2014:
RMB10,309,594,000), comprising inventories of approximately
RMB6,376,350,000 (2014: RMB6,612,693,000), trade and
other receivables of approximately RMB1,329,175,000
(2014: RMB1,615,836,000), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB1,910,351,000 (2014: RMB1,968,065,000).

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of
approximately 80% (2014: 61%), 19% (2014: 38%) and
1% (2014: 1%) were denominated in RMB, HKD and other
currencies, respectively.

Current Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,687,421,000 (2014:
RMB3,430,673,000), comprising bank loans of approximately
RMB704,374,000 (2014: RMB991,831,000), trade and
other payables of approximately RMB1,962,269,000
(2014: RMB2,240,209,000), and current tax payable of
approximately RMB20,778,000 (2014: RMB25,960,000).
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Capital Structure

The Company’s capital structure is composed of issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits. As at
31 December 2015, the number of issued share of the
Company was 4,779,810,959 (2014: 4,799,130,959) shares,
with reserves and accumulated profits of RMB5,907,946,000
(2014: RMB5,960,084,000) in total.

Material Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

Save as disclosed in the Note 31 to the financial statements,
there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and joint ventures during the year under review.

Save as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
there was no other significant investment held by the
Company during the year under review.

THE COMPANY

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution of mid-
to-high-end consumer goods including internationally
renowned branded watch, related customer services and
manufacturing of related accessory products.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
which materially affect the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group are set out in Note 14 to the enclosed financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company was
RMB1,760,046,000 (2014: RMB2,239,361,000), which is
set out in Note 29 to the financial statements in this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Company does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB3.2 cents per share).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the Group’s results and assets and
liabilities in the last five financial years (for the year ended
31 December) are set out on page 86 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF
SECURITIES

During the year under review, the Company repurchased
a total of 19,320,000 (2014:. 3,776,000) listed shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of acquisition from the market. The total
consideration paid was approximately HKD27,801,000,
including related expenses. The details are as follows:

EEBEERE
AAGHABERMNHASHEANTESEEL
ﬁ%f"iﬁéZﬂ%ﬁ TR QBB G E IR AR
HIRSEETK -

HBEBE

AEERBERAEVBREE (H=2+=A=1+—
BIEFE) 2¥EREEABRZMEBSFRAFTR
$86H

BE - HESEEES

REBEER  KABUMHBERESXNERHS
MEZZMABRART ([BRAT)) BEE LMK
17 & £19,320,0008% (=Z — U4 : 3,776,000
% -:./\Ezﬁi%m{afi’m &#27,801,0007T
(BEEEER)  FBOT :

Approximate

aggregate

consideration

(HKD)

Number Highest price Lowest price (excluding

of shares per share paid per share paid related

Month of repurchase repurchased (HKD) (HKD) expenses)

BRBRE

ENER N8R (BH)

BB EeER RIEER (FE¥E

BERG A G ROEE (B () HEER)

January 2015 14,760,000 1.48 1.34 20,952,440
T—hF—H

June 2015 4,208,000 1.51 1.44 6,260,240
—hERA

July 2015 352,000 1.36 1.34 476,080
—hE+A

Upon the completion of the settlement of such repurchases,
the Company has cancelled all of the repurchased shares.
The repurchases are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole with a view to enhancing the net
assets value per share of the Company.
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During the year under review, senior notes with an aggregate
principal amount of USD4,000,000 were repurchased by the
Company on the Stock Exchange at the consideration of
USDS3,890,625 but had not been cancelled during the year.
The Company redeemed convertible bonds which was listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,
in the principal amount of HKD95,000,000 on 20 October
2015, being the maturity date of such bonds, for a total
consideration of HKD101,329,850. The redeemed bonds
have been cancelled in accordance with the terms of bonds.
To date, all the convertible bonds listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited on 22 October 2010
have been redeemed and cancelled in full.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

As at 31 December 2015, the number of issued share of the
Company was 4,779,810,959 (2014: 4,799,130,959) shares.
The Company held USD-settled USD350 million (of which
USD4,000,000 had been repurchased but had not been
cancelled during the year; 2014: USD350 million) 6.25%
senior notes due in 2018, which were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 30 January 2013.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Award Scheme

On 25 March 2015, a share award scheme was adopted
by the Company to recognise the contributions of certain
participants to the Company and to attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Company.
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Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the share award scheme shall be valid for a term
of ten (10) years commencing on the adoption date. The
Board may select any participants, other than any excluded
participant, for participation in the share award scheme
and determine the award amount for the purchase of the
awarded shares to be awarded to the selected participants.
The Board is entitled to impose any conditions (including a
period of continued service within the Group), as it deems
appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect to the
entitlement of the selected participants to the awarded
shares. No consideration for the award shares is needed to
be paid by the selected participants to the Company. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded
by the Board under the share award scheme exceeding
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected participant under the share award
scheme in a 12-month period shall not exceed 0.5% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption
date or such number of shares as determined by the Board
from time to time.

The share award scheme shall terminate on the earlier of the
10th anniversary date of the adoption date or such date of
early termination as determined by the Board.

As at 31 December 2015, no shares have been awarded to
any participants by the Company under such scheme.

Share Option Scheme

On 27 August 2005, a share option scheme (the “old share
option scheme”) was adopted by the Company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.
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Details of the options granted by the Company under the old
share option scheme are as follows:

Options granted in 2011

BN E AR B T AR 78 R R > 51
mF

REZ-——FREZBRE

Number of
options lapsed

Closing price in accordance Number Percentage
of the shares Number of Number of with the terms of options  of the number
immediately Number of options options of the options outstanding of options
Exercise before the  options as at exercised cancelled or the share as at to the total
Name of price  date of grant 1 January during during  option scheme 31 December  share capital
grantee Date of grant Exercise period (HKD) (HKD) 2015 the period the period  during the period 2015  of the Company
Bk
SRR BRERR Roo1sE  BRERE
AHA R2015% FERE 12A31H B8
ke ROWTE 1A1B2 balafhicd G FERR HATEN BRAN
BEARLE RHBH i (&%) (8%)  BREHE BREHE BRE BREHRE BRiEsA Bt
Director - - - - - - - - - -
E%
Other eligible 30 September 2011 30 September 2014 2.66 2.71 385,000 - - - 385,000 0.008%
participants to 29 September 2016
EAERZEE  201159A30A 201459A308 %
201659298
Total 385,000 - - - 385,000 0.008%
AL

aa

At the 2015 Annual General Meeting held on 15 May 2015,
the new share option scheme was adopted conditionally and
the old share option scheme was terminated on the date of
the new one becoming unconditional and coming into effect,
being 19 May 2015. Pursuant to the terms of the old share
option scheme, any options which have been granted but
not yet exercised or lapsed shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the terms of the old share
option scheme.

The new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
to grant options to selected participants including but
not limited to directors and employees of the Group as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board, the new share option scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten (10) years commencing on the
adoption date. As at 31 December 2015, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme
was 478,437,095, representing approximately 10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual

report.
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Under both the old share option scheme and the new share
option scheme, subject to the discretion of the directors,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. Each option has a validity
of maximum 10 years after which the option shall lapse.
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to the eligible participants
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue. The exercise price shall not be less than the higher
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of that option; (ii) the average of the closing prices
per shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of that option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

Under the new share option scheme, the grantee shall
accept the option within ten days from the date of the offer
to grant the share option and pay HKD1.00 to the Company
as consideration for the grant upon acceptance of the
option.

As at 31 December 2015, the issued share capital of the
Company was 4,779,810,959 shares and the number of the
options outstanding was 385,000 (2014: 385,000). The new
share option scheme shall remain effective until 18 May
2025.

DIRECTORS

The names of directors during the year 2015 are as follows:

Zhang Yuping, Huang Yonghua, Lee Shu Chung Stan, Shi
Zhongyang, Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai William, Liu Xueling.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the year under review and as at the date of this

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

report, none of the Directors were considered to have any
interests in any business which competed or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts with each
of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three
years.

The Company did not enter into service contracts that
cannot be terminated without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation) within one year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director has
entered into any service agreement with any member of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

A directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is in place to
protect the Directors and officers of the Group against any
potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as described in Note 32 to the financial statements of
this annual report, there was no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business which the Group, the controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was involved in or was a
party to and in which a Director or the Director’s connected
entity had a material interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year under review.

During the year under review, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/
EMPLOYEES

Details of remuneration of the Directors made in accordance
with specific basis during the year under review are set out
in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the five highest paid individuals
during the year under review are set out in Note 8 to the
financial statements.

Details of remuneration of the senior management during
the year under review are set out in Note 32 to the financial
statements.

The remuneration policies of the Group are as follows:

- The amount of remuneration for the Directors or the
employees is determined according to their relevant
experience, responsibilities, workload and years of
service in the Group;

- The non-monetary benefits are determined by the
Board and are provided in the remuneration package
of the Directors or the employees;

- The Directors and the eligible employees shall be
granted with options of the Company as determined
by the Board to be part of their remuneration
package.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s employee retirement benefit scheme
are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of
each of the Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are deemed or taken to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and were required pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

EERTHARFTEAQAHEM
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Approximate

Percentage

Name of Director Nature of Interest Number of Shares (Note 2)

HNEDE

EEHA EmE RO EE (Hizt2)

Mr. Zhang Yuping Controlled Corporation 1,580,340,501(L) 33.06%
R A and Beneficial Owner (Note 1)
FrEHI AR RERERA (Hit1)

Mr. Huang Yonghua Beneficial Owner 50,488,800(L) 1.06%

TEOKESLA BEmEE A

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.

Note 1: Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth International Limited (“Best
Growth”), which in turn held 1,501,616,901 shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2015. During the
year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 78,723,600
shares of the Company under his name. Accordingly,
Mr. Zhang Yuping held 1,580,340,501 shares of the
Company in aggregate, representing 33.06% of the
issued share capital.

Note 2. Shareholding percentage is based on 4,779,810,959

issued shares of the Company as at 31 December

2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As far as the Directors were aware, as at 31 December
2015, the interests or short positions of the persons, other
than Directors of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

FTERREEEAQARGREBAR

2R RKE

REEMAE R-_FT-—AF+-_A=1+—
B RARE KRG RAARER D # A RIRES
KB GRPIFEIB6IHLCE  RARRATHFEZ
BrRMAzEaAkRAL (EXARRZES

BRSN) 2O -

Approximate

Percentage
(Note 6)
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares HE DL
PR A R EE (Htite6)
Best Growth (Note 1) 1,501,616,901(L) 31.42%
F38 (K77F1)
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Note 1) 1,580,340,501(L) 33.06%
SRS (A1)
The Swatch Group (Hong Kong) Limited (Note 2) (K1:%2) 437,800,000(L) 9.16%
The Swatch Group Limited (Note 2) (A7it2) 437,800,000(L) 9.16%
LVMH Watches & Jewelry Hong Kong Limited (Note 3) (f7i#3) 20,354,400(L) 0.43%
TAG Heuer SA (Note 3) (#1:£3) 20,354,400 (L) 0.43%
TAG Heuer International SA (Note 3) (#/7:£3) 20,354,400(L) 0.43%
LVMH Asia Pacific Limited (Note 3) (#1:£3) 285,582,000(L) 5.97%
Sofidiv SAS (Note 3) (#15#3) 305,936,400(L) 6.40%
LVMH SA (Note 3) (K7#£3) 305,936,400(L) 6.40%
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP (Note 4) (#7i#4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
Chengwei Evergreen Management, LLC (Note 4) (#/it4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
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Approximate

Percentage

(Note 6)

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares HE DL
REREA RO SR (Hite)
CW HDL Limited (Note 4) (#t5t4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
EXL Holdings, LLC (Note 4) (#tz+4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
Li Eric Xun (Note 4) (K1:£4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
Li Zhu Yi Jing (Note 4) (Biit4) 288,972,699(L) 6.05%
Harris Associates L.P. (Note 5) (f1:£5) 243,777,800(L) 5.10%

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long positions in the Shares.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Mr. Zhang Yuping owned 100% of the issued share
capital of Best Growth, which in turn held 1,501,616,901
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015.
During the year under review, Mr. Zhang Yuping held
78,723,600 shares of the Company under his name.
Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yuping held 1,580,340,501
shares of the Company in aggregate, representing
33.06% of the issued share capital.

These 437,800,000 shares were held in the name of
and registered in the capacity of The Swatch Group
(Hong Kong) Limited as a beneficial owner. The entire
issued share capital of The Swatch Group (Hong Kong)
Limited was beneficially owned by The Swatch Group
Limited. The Swatch Group Limited was taken to be
interested in all the shares held by The Swatch Group
(Hong Kong) Limited under the SFO.

Among these 305,936,400 shares, 20,354,400 shares
were held and registered in the name of LVMH Watches
& Jewelry Hong Kong Limited and 285,582,000 shares
were held and registered in the name of LVMH Asia
Pacific Limited. The entire interest of LVMH Watches
& Jewelry Hong Kong Limited was owned by TAG
Heuer SA, and TAG Heuer International SA beneficially
owned 100% interest in TAG Heuer SA. Sofidiv SAS
beneficially owned 100% interest in each of TAG Heuer
International SA and LVMH Asia Pacific Limited. LVMH
SA owned 100% interest in Sofidiv SAS.
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Note 4: According to the relevant information, these
288,972,699 shares were registered and held by CW
HDL Limited in the capacity as a beneficial owner.
Chengwei Evergreen Capital, LP held 67.06% interest
in CW HDL Limited. Chengwei Evergreen Management,
LLC held 1% interest in Chengwei Evergreen Capital,
LP. EXL Holdings, LLC held 31.7% interest in Chengwei
Evergreen Management, LLC. Li Eric Xun (Li Zhu
Yi Jing being his spouse) held 50% interest in EXL
Holdings, LLC.

Note 5: According to the relevant information, Harris Associates
L.P. held 243,777,800 shares of the Company in the
capacity of investment manager.

Note 6: Shareholding percentage is based on 4,779,810,959
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2015.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Equity-Linked
Agreements” above, at no time during the 12 months ended
31 December 2015 was the Group, holding company of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors (including their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisting during the year
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. Corporate governance
report of the Company is set out on pages 56 to 66 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, the Company has
made environmental protection one of its top corporate
governance priorities. The Group implements a series
of mechanisms and measures relating to environmental
management and energy conservation in its daily operations
aimed at protecting the environment and conserving
energy, with a view to promoting harmonious development
in terms of economic, social and ecological benefits, which
has achieved significant results. Environment, social and
governance report of the Company is set out on pages 67 to
85 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

Committed to the belief that people will always be a
successful business’s most precious assets, the Group
strives to practise an entrepreneurial spirit of “mutual
respect, shouldering responsibility, close collaboration and
ongoing innovations”. As our business moves forward, we
will continue to utilise this philosophy as the cornerstone
of both our corporate management and corporate social
responsibility (CSR) policies.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 9,187
(2014: 9,713) employees in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan. The Group has always been committed
to developing and adding value to human resources.
The Group implements a standard recruitment system
and allocates resources to training of various kinds for
our managers, front-line service staff and maintenance
technicians, which covers, among others, the art of
management, sales skills, brand knowledge and service
awareness, with an aim to enhance the knowledge,
marketing skills and service capability of our staff. The
Group also works with our brand suppliers to provide front-
line service staff and maintenance technicians with regular
training in brand knowledge and maintenance expertise.

RE - -HEREAR
RERCEBUEGTMEROER - ZFK
ARA—ERRERBEREREENEHZ
— ERAREETFRIN-RIREEENEAY
BIRHEHIMER - BHMFRRRENER
BiA) - BORBEES S - @R MERR
mAOMEEER - YEGBRENKR - ARAZ
RBRE HeRBEAREENAFRETAES
858 °

BES -  HEEREF ZBE

AEE-BEBE[AARK] WZLEE B
BT [REEE - BRAE - 2EWHIE - TEE
Ml whEREE  YARFREREEMEITH
SEREMNREAR -

RZE—RAF+-_A=+—"H AEEETH
Wi - BRERBEES KR I87THET (=%
— % :9,713%) - AEE —BERANEIR
MR RISE RARSBCHBERR 18
FEMABTIEALR - FIERBAE REBRI
ABHEEBEIBRALR  REHBEREERE
WEM - HERD  RRANBERBEERS
LARRFEMB KT - 2 RREEN - I
HEoEEERESE TRIEMEIGRBAR
RS A BT RERE RSN 215

Fl e

FRAERARAR  ZF—HAEER 47



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ER G

The Group offers a competitive remuneration package and
various incentives to all employees, and regularly reviews
the structure of relevant mechanisms to cope with corporate
development needs. Options and awarded shares are
granted to the general management staff and associates
of the Company in recognition of their contributions to
the Group and as an incentive for their greater future
commitment. The Group also offers other benefits to its
employees, including pension plans, MPF plans, insurance
scheme, housing and meal allowances.

Under a solid human resource assurance system, it is able
to create a high level of harmony between employees of
different nationalities and cultural backgrounds under one
shared vision. Certain staff members were awarded the
“Capital Labour Medal”, the “May 1st Labour Medal” and
“Chief Technician” of the City. The Group had a number of
senior sales persons and senior repair technicians. During
the year, one technician of the Group in Shanghai was
promoted to “Chief Technician” level.

The Group has maintained good and well-coordinated
partnerships with key brand suppliers and retailers. Backed
by our partners’ unwavering support, our operations
have been able to achieve truly harmonious and mutually
beneficial development. During the year under review,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and customers. For further details
of relationships between the Company and its employees,
suppliers and customers, please refer to the Company’s
environment, social and governance report set out on pages
67 to 85 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TEEFRMHER

The percentages of purchases and revenue for the year REBEEEAN KAAEEBFTEHERLEP
under review, attributable to the Group’s major suppliers’ ZHBENBEEDAIMEEEELNABTLET ¢
purchases and customers’ sales respectively, are as follows:

Purchase R
— the largest supplier — A EY 76%
— five largest suppliers combined — ARHEEREE 92%
Sales HE
- the largest customer —RKREF 2%
— five largest customers combined —AREFAG 6%

The Swatch Group Limited and LVMH Group, through The Swatch Group Limited&LVMHEEEFE B
their respective subsidiaries, constituted two of the five HEEAWWEATBRAAEEREFRAL -
largest suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the KRutHIHBEEI - HEEE - A8 A LT
Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to MBE (HEZEEMEBE N AR TR AP HEAS%LA
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the ##HE) REizTEHEELEEFHAE
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the above major  z °©

E\

S

suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BT 5

During the year under review, the Company had no REEEEE  AQXaERE FmRAERE
transactions which need to be disclosed as connected EHITMIEERZS -
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS BR

During the year under review, the charitable and other AEERNARE@MZEZZREMBERAEAR
donations made by the Group amounted to nearly ¥ 3120000007t (Z T — M F: AR ¥R

RMB2,000,000 (2014: nearly RMB3,000,000). 3,000,0007T) °
PUBLIC FLOAT PERERE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the RIEAQGESZ ABERAREESEMM B
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge at the ARFH{RTFIZEBEH - KAR B BEITRD Z AR
date of this annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed IREF A FHRAIFEEKF -

public float of the issued shares of the Company under the

Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year under
review have been audited by KPMG who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Since 9 July 2004, being the date of incorporation of the
Company, there have been no changes in our auditors.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday,
4 May 2016 to Friday, 6 May 2016 (both days inclusive) to
confirm the members on the register of members who are
eligible to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.
In order to establish entitlements to attending and voting
at the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 May 2016.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (alias Cheung Yu Ping) (3R¥¥), aged 55,
is the chairman and executive Director of the Company. He
is the founder of the Group and is in charge of the Group’s
strategic development and overall management. He has over
30 years of management experience in the mid-to-high-end
consumables distribution industry in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is
also the director of Best Growth, the substantial shareholder
of the Company.
Mr. Huang Yonghua (& 7k %), aged 45, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in 2001 and is in charge of the Group’s
business co-ordination and operational supervision. Mr.
Huang has over 20 years of experience in the watch
distribution industry in the PRC and in management.

Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan (Z#i), aged 56, is an executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for overall coordination and management of the Group’s
business including retail, brand distribution and industrial
production. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree and has
pursued further studies in Business Administration. He has
nearly 30 years of experience in watch manufacturing and

distribution.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongyang (S2ff5), aged 41,
Director. Mr. Shi graduated from Nanjing University in the
PRC and University of Goetting in Germany with a Master’s
Degree in Law. Mr. Shi joined The Swatch Group Limited

is a non-executive

in 2000 and joined the Group in 2006. He is currently a
legal counsel of the legal department of The Swatch Group
Limited.

EEREREEREGE

HITES

REIF AL 555K ARBEERNTES -
BAAREEBA  BEASERBERRE
BERE - REENPEPIHEERDHITE
BEBIF L EERLR - REENMA/EARAE
BRREENES -

BKERE - 4558 BITEF - TR _FTF—
FMAREE  BEARKBEERHHENERKE
e BAARTEMSFHROBEEREETE
TBB205F 2 185 -

TREEE 6 MITEEF R_TZTL
FMAAEE 2EHHABTEASEZE @
MOERTEEESER  THEERBRRE
FrEXBELTEN; 2NBETITHEERES

BOENE - FRAERMB0FERELER D HLR °

FHITES

EMHBEE 4ME FERTEET LEEE
XN EERAEREFGosttingKE - E1S
ERE LB ZZTZEZF I AThe Swatch
Group Limited e FR BT NEMALEE -
IR {EThe Swatch Group Limited /A @EE0EER -

FRAERARAR  ZF—HAEER 51



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ER G

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin (3%#R), aged 72, is an independent non-
executive Director. He graduated from the industrial
accounting faculty (T % & 5 R) of Shanghai College of
Finance and Economics (/8B EFE). Mr. Cai holds a
Certificate for Professional Accountants (& &t # 2 & 1% &
£) in the PRC. He had held senior financial management
positions for various companies including Shanghai Hualian
(Group) (_E/&ZERE (5£/E)). Mr. Cai joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William (Z$%#&), aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director. He graduated from University
of Edinburgh, Scotland with a Bachelor's Degree and a
Doctorate Degree in Electrical Engineering. Mr. Wong
is currently a professor in the Department of Systems
Engineering and Engineering Management in The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He obtained the qualification as a
Chartered Engineer (CEng) in 1991, and is now a member
of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and a professional
member of the Association of Computing Machinery. Mr.
Wong joined the Group in 2005.

Mr. Liu Xueling (2128), aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director. He graduated from East China Normal
University in Shanghai with a Doctorate Degree in History. At
present, he is a senior lawyer in Shanghai Tongyan Law Firm
(@M AEREIZET). He joined the Group in 2007. He is
currently an independent director of Shanghai Qiangsheng
Holding Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600662) and Shanghai Yimin Commercial Group
Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600824).
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Senior Management

(Hengdeli Group and Shanghai Xinyu as mentioned below
represent the Company’s major holding subsidiaries -
Hengdeli Group Limited and Shanghai Xinyu Watch & Clock
Group., Ltd., respectively)

Mr. Song Jianwen (REX), aged 63, is the vice president
of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2001 and is in
charge of internal audit and control of the Group. Mr. Song
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
(P EBHEBUEARNE) with a Master’s Degree in Economics.
Mr. Song has more than 30 years of experience in finance
and accounting.

Mr. Chen Sheng (FRE8), aged 51, is the vice president of
Hengdeli Group. He graduated from Fudan University in
Shanghai with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible for
investment of the Group.

Mr. Zhuang Liming (¥3288), aged 62, is a consultant of
Shanghai Xinyu. He graduated from Beijing Institute of
Foreign Trade (3t %N & Zx). Before joining the Group
in 2000, Mr. Zhuang had worked for PRC Light Industry
Commodities Import and Export Company (7 B8 T % @3
H#RTR].

Mr. Lee Wing On, Samuel (ZZk %), aged 51, is the vice
president of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2006
and is responsible for the Group’s retail business in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee has over 20 years of management experience
in the watch retail industry in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tan Li (XB), aged 51, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group and secretary to the Board. Ms. Tan graduated from
Nanjing Normal University (FREN&EIRXE) with a Master of
Arts degree. She joined the Group in 2001. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Tan taught at the branch colleges of Peking
University in China. Since Ms. Tan joined the Group, she has
been engaging in work related to the secretary to the Board
of the Group.
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Mr. James Cheng (ZfttE%), aged 51,
of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2010 and is
responsible for high-end customer services work. Mr. Cheng

is the vice president

obtained a bachelor’s degree in science. Before joining the
Group, he was the deputy president of Rado watches of
SWATCH Group in China, the general manager for watches
and jewellery of LVMH Group in China, and the chief
executive of Fendi watches in Asia Pacific.

Mr. Lin Gang (##fi), aged 50, is the vice president of Hengdeli
Group. He joined the Group in 2013 and is responsible for
human resources management and information management
of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies
University with a postgraduate degree, and obtained an
international MBA degree from Fordham University in New
York, the U.S. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lin served as
the President and Managing Director of consulting business
for Greater China region of Mercer, a human resources
management consulting firm. He also worked in various

companies including Deloitte Consulting and Motorola.

Ms. Catherine Lin (M#£35), aged 57, is the vice president
of Hengdeli Group. She joined the Group in 2013 and is a
consultant for Mainland China retail business of the Group.
Ms. Lin graduated from National Chengchi University in
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Arts degree. Before joining the
Group, she was the vice president for Taiwan and China
region of CK Watch & Jewelry. Ms. Lin has over 20 years
of extensive international management experience in
distribution of international mid-to-high-end watches and
other luxury goods.

Mr. Lam Chun Kit (M), aged 42, is the vice president
of Hengdeli Group. He joined the Group in 2014 and is in
charge of the Group’s overall financial operation. Mr. Lam
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting and is a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)
and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts (HKICPA). He has over 12 years of experience in
auditing and served the international big four accounting
firms for 10 years. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lam was the
executive vice-president and chief accountant of SanPower

Group (=& E).
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Mr. Guan Qijun (B & ), aged 45, is the president for
retailing business in Mainland China of Hengdeli Group. He
joined the Group in 2000 and is responsible for the Group’s
retail business of watches in Mainland China. Mr. Guan
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology (%aF/& L
¥ KE) with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Electronic Precision
Machinery (& F #& & # #), and has over 20 years of
experience in the watch industry.

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter (RX1&), aged 45, is the company
secretary and financial controller of the Company. Mr. Ng
graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce. He joined the Group in 2004. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) and a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA).

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE COMPANY AND THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

An annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015
containing all the information required by Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules will be dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company and published on the website of the Company and
the website of the Stock Exchange in due course.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks to all the shareholders for their
continuous support and to all our staff for their dedication
and contribution to the Group during the year under review.

GENERAL INFORMATION

As at the date of this report, the executive Directors are
Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman), Mr. Huang Yonghua and Mr.
Lee Shu Chung, Stan, the non-executive Director is Mr. Shi
Zhongyang and the independent non-executive Directors
are Mr. Cai Jianmin, Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William and Mr. Liu
Xueling.

By order of the Board

Zhang Yuping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practice to ensure transparency of the Group’s management,
so that the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees as well as the long term development of the
Group can be safeguarded. The Group has established the
Board, an audit committee, a remuneration committee and
a nomination committee that are up to the requirements as
being diligent, accountable and professional. KPMG has
been appointed as the Group’s external auditors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Company complied with
the Corporate Governance Code except for a deviation from
provision A.2.1 during the period under review. Given the
existing corporate structure, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer have not been separated, and both
are performed by Mr. Zhang Yuping. Although the roles and
duties of the chairman and chief executive officer have been
performed by the same individual, all major decisions would
only be made (where applicable) after consultation with the
Board. There are three independent non-executive Directors
in the Board. All of them possess adequate independence
and therefore the Board considers that the Company
has achieved balance of power and provided sufficient
assurance for scientific decision-making.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

To maintain a high level of independence and objectivity in
decision making, and to exercise its power of supervising the
management of the Group in a comprehensive and equitable
manner, the Board comprises three executive Directors
(Messrs. Zhang Yuping (Chairman of the Group), Huang
Yonghua and Lee Shu Chung, Stan), one non-executive
Director (Mr. Shi Zhongyang) and three independent non-
executive Directors (Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai,
William and Liu Xueling).

To ensure the Board operates in an independent and
accountable manner, the three executive Directors have
been assigned with different responsibilities within our
operation. Mr. Zhang Yuping, the Chairman, is in charge of
the Group’s overall management and strategic development,
while Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan is in charge of the overall
business operation of the Group, and Mr. Huang Yonghua is
responsible for coordination and supervision.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has professional expertise and extensive experience in the
areas of accounting, economics, law, computing control
and management, and business administration respectively.
We believe the independent non-executive Directors can
adequately act for the benefits of our shareholders. Their
respective terms of office are as follows:

Cai Jianmin: 26/9/2014-25/9/2017;

Wong Kam Fai, William: 26/9/2014-25/9/2017; and

Liu Xueling: 1/6/2013-31/5/2016.

One non-executive Director has professional expertise
and extensive experience in the areas of law and
business administration; he can offer supervision to the
daily operation, and provide corresponding opinions and
recommendations in a timely manner, which is beneficial
to the standardised operation of the Company and the
safeguarding of the interests of our shareholders. His term
of office is as follows:

Shi Zhongyang:15/2/2015-14/2/2018.
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DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board of the Company is responsible to the general
meetings and performs the following major duties: report
duties to the general meetings; execute the resolutions
of the general meetings; determine investment solutions
and profit distribution solutions of the Company; formulate
solutions as to increase or decrease of the registered capital
of the Company; draft solutions in respect of the split-up,
consolidation, alteration and dissolution of the Company;
appoint, dismiss and determine the remunerations of the
general manager of the Company.

In respect of the corporate governance functions, during
the year under review, the Board performed corporate
governance duties in accordance with the terms of
reference. To be specific, the Board mainly performed the
following corporate governance duties during the year under
review:

° To review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o To review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o To review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and employees; and

o To review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Members of the Board are provided with appropriate
and sufficient information in a timely manner for their
understanding of the latest developments of the Group,
which in turn supports the discharge of their duties.

The management of the Company is responsible to the
Board and performs the following major duties: report duties
to the Board; execute the resolutions of the Board; and
complete all the tasks assigned by the Board.

58 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

E

ARBEEGHRREEE  TEATEIER
B MERREHRETE: BITRRGNRE
RERRNRETRRNBENIELTER  FIERQ
AIEMSER D EMEANT R MERA D
VA BE - BASHIR: BENEER
BERENRERERMERIES -

EERBETE  EEEROEFERN K
RBEGREMKET T LEXERRE - ABEM
FOEFENEBFREAZIEREITT MIIEE

ARE

mg i

. WA BRERBRR M ER

. BAMEREERSREEABNE
RIFEERRR

. B MERCEEEBTEAEREERT
ENERBREER -

. R REREEREENRETE K

« RELEET(REEETH) HERR
ECREERRE) NORE -

EXeNBEeERNREERTRZER N

BRETHASEZ&MER  EMADHRSE
BITERE -
ARBEEEBHEFERR  TEATEER

B RNEFERETF WTEFSRE =
REFE N ENSRES -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB R HE

INTERNAL CONTROL

In order to ensure the interests of our shareholders, the
Group established departments dedicated to the supervision
and risk control of finance and business operation. Such
departments conduct audits and examination of all aspects
and at all departments once or twice a year, so as to
enhance internal control and ensure the sound development
of the enterprise. The audit committee and the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of our internal control system
and completed its annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems (including their effectiveness).
Based on the reviews made by independent review
organisations of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the Group considers that these
systems are effective and adequate, and will continue to
review the effectiveness of these systems as well as improve
the internal administration and control systems of the
Company if required.

ATTENDANCE OF THE DIRECTORS AT THE
MEETINGS

In 2015, a total of seven meetings were held by the
Board. Further, an annual general meeting was held. The
attendance of the Directors at the meetings was as follows:

Frequency of
attendance at
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Frequency of
attendance at

the Board the general
meetings Rate of meeting Rate of
EZgER Attendance BRAE Attendance
Name "H HERE HE=R HERE HE=R
Zhang Yuping R 7 100% 1 100%
Huang Yonghua FEKE 7 100% 1 100%
Lee Shu Chung, Stan TR 7 100% 1 100%
Shi Zhongyang S5 7 100% 1 100%
Cai Jianmin BER 7 100% 1 100%
Wong Kam Fai, William iR 7 100% 1 100%
Liu Xueling 22E 7 100% 1 100%
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introductory
session so as to ensure that he/she will gain appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business development of
the Group. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance with
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are committed to complying with provision
A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code on Directors’
training so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
under review, the Directors attended relevant training in
accordance with the Listing Rules and had provided the
relevant records of training to the Company. According to
the records, details of directors’ attendance at the training
sessions during the year under review are as follows:

Updates on corporate governance,
laws and regulations
REER - EOERERH

SHEEXRRE
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Accounting/financial/management
and other professional expertise

BF U EBREMEERKEE

Material Seminar/training Material Seminar/training

reading attending reading attending
Name Es EXHE 2HEBEEEI ERBE 2SHEBE EI
Zhang Yuping R F v v v v/
Huang Yonghua H=oKE v v v v
Lee Shu Chung, Stan  Z#i & v v/ v/ v
Shi Zhongyang PRI v v/ v/ v/
Cai Jianmin R v v v v
Wong Kam Fai, William =818 v/ v/ v/ v
Liu Xueling RNEE v/ v/ v v
INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD BB TN

The Board has received confirmation from all independent
Directors regarding their independence made in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that
all current independent Directors have met the requirements
of the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
remain independent.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company had adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
own code for securities transactions by its Directors.
Following specific enquiry made by the Company with all
Directors, the Company has confirmed that during the year
under review, all Directors had complied with the standard
as required by the above code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial reports of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company on their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out on page 87 to 88 of the annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee to be received by the auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 will be approximately
RMB3,980,000. During the year under review, in addition
to auditing services, the Company’s auditors also provided
the Group with services such as taxation planning and due
diligence. The non-auditing service fees were RMB168,880
in total.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The
audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, namely, Messrs.
Cai Jianmin (Chairman), Wong Kam Fai, William and Liu
Xueling, with the primary duties of reviewing the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company as well as
material extraordinary items, internal controls and financial
reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the 2015 interim report. The Company has adopted and
implemented the terms of reference of the audit committee.
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During the year, meetings were held on 17 March 2015, 25
August 2015 and 8 December 2015 to review the annual and
interim financial reports and new terms of reference of the
audit committee of the Group respectively. All members of
the committee namely, Messrs. Cai Jianmin, Wong Kam Fai,
William and Liu Xueling, attended the meetings.

In order to align with the new requirements regarding
the corporate governance of listed companies by Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has expanded and
implemented the new terms of reference for the audit
committee since 11 December 2015. Besides being mainly
responsible for reviewing the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company as well as material
extraordinary items, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, the audit committee is also responsible for the
duties of risk management and control.

The audit opinions from the audit committee in respect of
the Group’s financial report, risk management and control
for the year are summarised as follows:

The 2015 financial report of the Company is objective in
all material aspects, and gives a fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and the
operating results and cash flow in 2015.

In the face of a complex and volatile economic environment
with heavy downturn pressure, in 2015, the Company
recorded year-on-year decline to various extents in aspects
such as turnover, gross profit, operating profit, with an
increase in inventory turnover days. However, administrative
expenses, finance costs, inventories, receivables, payables,
and bank loans were effectively controlled. The Company
stepped up its efforts in risk control and is consolidating
it with internal control and audit, with the aim of improving
efficiency and achieving greater effect in risk management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year
under review, the remuneration committee comprises three
Directors including Messrs. Liu Xueling (Chairman) and
Cai Jianmin, both of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Zhang Yuping, the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Group. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other

compensation payable to Directors and senior management.

One meeting was held during the year to review matters
related to the remuneration structure of the Directors and
senior management of the Company. All members, namely
Messrs. Liu Xueling, Cai Jianmin and Zhang Yuping,
attended the meeting.

According to the terms of reference of the remuneration
committee adopted by the Company, the remuneration
committee acts as a consultant regarding the remuneration
matters of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, while the Board retains the ultimate power to
approve the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, the nomination committee comprises Mr. Zhang
Yuping (Chairman), the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Group, and independent non-executive Directors
Messrs. Cai Jianmin and Liu Xueling. The Company has
adopted and implemented the terms of reference of the
nomination committee. The nomination committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Board.

One meeting was held during the year to review matters
related to the structure, size and composition of the Board
of the Company, retirement by rotation and re-election of
Directors. All members, namely Messrs. Zhang Yuping, Cai

Jianmin and Liu Xueling, attended the meeting.
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SUMMARY OF BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To improve the performance quality of the Company, the
Board adopted the board diversity policy. The Board
believes that board member diversity can be achieved by
considering various factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, expertise, knowledge, term of
services and other talents. All Board appointments are
made with reference to the Company’s business models
and specific needs from time to time, and candidates will
be considered with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board if allowed by objective business conditions.
The nomination committee will be mainly responsible for
identifying suitable and competent candidates for board
members, and considering such candidates in light of
objective conditions. As a part of the review on the annual
performance of the Board, considerations made by the
nomination committee will balance the skills and experience
as required by business targets of the Company with
diversity factors. To achieve board diversity, the nomination
committee will discuss and develop measurable objectives
from time to time, and propose the above to the Board for
adoption and implementation. Generally speaking, selection
of candidates by the nomination committee shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, expertise, knowledge and term
of services. However, the final decision will depend on the
strengths of candidates and their prospective contributions
to the Board. The Board may improve one or more diversity
perspectives from time to time, and implement the upgraded
measurements. The nomination committee will review the
policy from time to time, including conducting assessments
on the effectiveness of the policy. The nomination committee
will also discuss any amendment that may be necessary,
and submit amendment proposals to the Board for approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter was appointed as the Company
Secretary in 2004. His biographical details are set out in
the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”. For the financial year ended 31 December
2015, Mr. Ng attended relevant professional training for not
less than 15 hours pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration payment of the Group’s senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015 falls
within the following bands:

=R EEE B
RE-T—AF+-A=+—AILFE A%
B TR R AR (4 HE DA TR

Number of
individuals

A

Nil to RMB2,000,000
T AR¥2,000,0007T

RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000
AR#2.000,0017cE AR #3,000,0007C

RMB30,000,001 to RMB40,000,000
AE#30,000,0017T% A K #40,000,0007T

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

How the Shareholders Convene Extraordinary
General Meeting and Make Recommendations at
General Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The letter demanding the calling of an Extraordinary General
Meeting mentioned above shall be sent to the principal
office of the Company stating the Board of the Company or
the Company Secretary as the addressee.
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How to Make Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may send letters to the principal office of the
Company for any enquires stating the Board of the Company
or the Company Secretary as the addressee.

Significant Changes on the Articles of Association

During the year under review, there is no significant change
to the articles of association of the Company.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company firmly believes the importance of effective
communication with the investment community and the
shareholders in attaining a high level of transparency in
the Group. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
close communications with the shareholders, mass media,
analysts and fund managers through various communication
channels such as one-on-one meetings, roadshows,
seminars, press conferences, press releases, telephone
communications and emails. The Company endeavours to
provide accurate and timely information to the investors, so
as to enhance the understanding of our investors about the
status of the domestic luxury watch industry, as well as the
business development strategy and direction of the Group.

During the year under review, the Group’s management
proactively held regular and ad hoc meetings with different
analysts and investors, including the marketing campaigns
on investor relations in major investment centres including
Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Xian and Singapore, and
attended international economy forums and seminars held
by various investment banks. Besides, the Group also held
roadshows in various countries and regions, including Hong
Kong, Shanghai, Beijing, Xian and Singapore and arranged
over 50 investors to join on-site visits to outlets in Shanghai,
Hong Kong and Beijing and factories in Guangzhou,
Dongguan and Zhuhai, so as to facilitate the investors from
different countries and regions to acquire a timely and in-
depth understanding of the Group through all forms of
communications.

In the future, the Group will continue to maintain a close
relationship with investors and boost understanding of
international investors of the Group so as to enhance
investors’ confidence in the Group.
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GROUP PHILOSOPHY

Following Hengdeli’s motto a hundred years ago and
believing that businesses exist as a part of society and
prosper along with it, the Group has been shouldering
social responsibility in terms of protecting the environment,
managing environmental quality, conserving resources
and developing talents, all of which are contributing to the
Group’s healthy development.

As the world’s top-notch leading retailer of internationally
renowned watch brands, Hengdeli has always regarded
corporate social responsibility as an essential part of
the Group’s activities, and attached great importance to
the benefits and relationships that its corporate social
responsibility actions generate among its customers,
employees, local communities, shareholders, business
partners and supervisory authorities. We are fully aware that
strengthening Hengdeli’'s social responsibility is not only
crucial for the Group’s future development, but is also a
compelling obligation as a part of the Group’s participation
in civil society.

For the past years, we have been concerning ourselves
with environmental protection and committed ourselves
to achieving an ecological balance as part of our efforts
towards creating a green enterprise. We have also been
maintaining integrity in our operations in providing safe,
quality products to customers, which has earned us social
credibility and made us a company to be relied on. We
have been attaching great importance to the talent of our
employees, and aimed at creating an environment that
offers a win-win development outcome for both employees
and the enterprise. Our concern for employees’ working
conditions and career development has driven us to
create a welcoming, harmonious and mutually beneficial
corporate culture for employees, in which we share with
them the success brought by the company’s growth and
thus integrate individual, corporate and social values.
We have also been expanding our involvement in public
welfare activities, actively participating in a range of social
undertakings such as education and social welfare activities,
serving the community with sincerity and bringing new hope
to those in need. Hengdeli has been striving to establish
itself as a responsible and reliable company that customers,
employees, shareholders and society can trust, and one that
is committed to sustainable development.
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In 2015, as usual, Hengdeli enhanced its social corporate
responsibility activities and further integrated the concept
of social corporate responsibility into its daily operations.
We strived to maintain and enhance the Group’s leading
position in internationally-renowned watch retailing by
ensuring continued provision of safe, high quality products
and services to its customers, while also delivering mutual

benefits for customers, employees and society.

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group has always regarded its employees as critically
valuable assets. Under its “people-oriented” core culture,
the Group strictly complies with all local labour standards
and relevant employment regulations, and implements a
Its goal is to provide its
employees with a healthy, safe and welcoming working

standardised recruitment system.
environment and to maintain a fair, just and transparent
working platform so as to create a promising development
prospect for its employees.

Working Conditions

The Group places great emphasis on upholding the basic
rights of its employees. It respects diversity in its employees
and adheres to the principle of equal opportunities in
employment, recruiting and cultivating talents regardless
of race, religion, ethnicity, nationality, gender or age. The
Group also continually revises its mechanism and structure
in different aspects in order to adapt to the development
of the enterprise and, at the same time, to benefit the

employees’ development.

The Group has adopted a comprehensive work assessment
management system, under which it regularly reviews its
recruitment system and its internal policy for grooming
talents so as to ensure transparency and fairness.

The Group implements scientific remuneration management
and various other incentives, and regularly reviews its
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities for
different positions to guarantee their market competitiveness.
To attract and retain talent, the Group also offers various
welfare incentives to its employees, including pension plans,
MPF plans,
allowances.

insurance schemes, and housing and meal
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Further, the Group grants share options to the general
management staff and associates of the Company in
recognition of their contributions to the Group, and as an
incentive encouraging initiative and good performance in the
workplace.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 9,187
employees (2014: 9,713) in Mainland China, Hong Kong,

SEEARA-—REEBRABALHLAR
BE UWRTEHKEMENER - XARE
TREGBME R RIFRIER -

BE-ZT-RFT-_A=1t—8 SER+H
A~ B ORFI R BESMERHE9,1875

Macau and Taiwan shown as follows: BT (ZZ—WMF :9,713%) » EXoDHuMT :
No. of staff
EIgH
Year 2014 Year 2015
—E—MmF —E-FEF
Mainland China ==NETRvpsi 8,694 8,337
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan EF BN AE 1,019 850
Total Bs 9,713 9,187
No. of staff
ETIHE
Year 2014 Year 2015
—E-mE TR
Aged 18-25 18-255% 1,043 1,252
Aged 26-55 26-555% 8,467 7,736
Aged 56 or above 5657 A 203 199

lts employees are among Hengdeli’'s most valuable assets.
The Group places particular emphasis on employees’ sense
of belonging to the Group, and is committed to providing
them with a pleasant and harmonious working environment.

The Group’s internal magazine “Outstanding”,
in 2006, shares news of the industry and the Group on
a regular basis. Articles contributed by employees are
also published there to create a platform through which
employees can share their daily work experiences.

first published
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The Group holds an awards ceremony every year at which
it recognises the outstanding employees of the last year.
With the Group’s core values as the main theme, this year's
“Top 100 Outstanding Employees of Hengdeli Group Awards
Ceremony Gala 2014” commended model employees in
different positions, and was very well-received.

In addition, the Group actively launches and implements
work that is favourable for building a harmonious relationship
between the enterprise and the labour as well as facilitating
the enterprise’s sound development, so as to care for
employees and strengthen their solidarity and their sense of
belonging to the Group.

The labour unions at different levels frequently organise
heart caring initiatives and sports activities, such as football,
badminton, basketball and yoga. These activities were held
a number of times this year, enhancing employees’ physical
and psychological well-being and strengthening their sense
of belonging and overall team spirit.

Health and Safety

The Group is deeply committed to its employees’ well-being
and organises regular health check-ups for them, as well as
providing various medical insurance schemes.

The Group maintains very high manufacturing safety
standards. To provide its employees with a safe and
comfortable working environment, the Group ensures it is
in strict compliance with all international labour standards
and the relevant laws of Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan. It also implements internal guidelines
and policies on occupational safety for different working
conditions and positions to ensure the health and safety of
its employees. The Group purchases labour insurance for
its employees, provides employees with training courses
and drills on manufacturing safety and disaster awareness
at the Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries and requires
certain of its employees to wear protective gear. The
Group conducts regular assessments of risk factors in the
workplace, arranges regular occupational disease checkups
and maintains health surveillance archives for its employees.
During the year under review, the Group did not experience
any cases of work-related deaths.
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Development and Training

Employee development drives the progress of a company.
While developing its business and safeguarding the basic
rights of its employees, the Group also provides a platform
for employees to develop their careers, which includes
offering a comprehensive learning and training system that
helps them develop quickly and strengthens their sense of
belonging. The Group formulates suitable training courses
according to the needs of its different departments and
businesses. It also implements an internal recruitment
system, in which employees can choose their career path
based on their interests and strengths.

Every year, the Group provides new recruits with comprehensive
induction training. The training provides an overview of
the Group’s business, delivers information about business
partners, products knowledge, corporate culture and core
values, and introduces business-related policies and laws to
help new recruits integrate into the Hengdeli family.

The Group provides its front-line staff with both regular and
one-off training programmes and is committed to developing
professional sales teams so as to adapt to the increasingly
specialised timepiece market and the volatile market
environment. The training covers knowledge of watches and
watch brands, customer service, retail management, retail
sector analysis, retail-related laws and regulations, oral
Mandarin and English training and so forth. Training and
development campaigns of various kinds held in each sales
region of the Group during the year under review enhanced
communication, mutual trust and solidarity and collaboration
amongst employees holding different roles in different
cities. Examples include growth training camp for elite shop
managers in the southwestern region of Prime Time, training
camp for sales elites in northern China region and mind
mapping training in eastern China region.

The Group also provides its directors and senior managerial
staff with regular training, so as to maintain sustainable
professional development and enhance their knowledge
and skills. The training includes regular updates on rules
for listed companies, and information about relevant laws
and regulations, corporate governance, internet application
and international accounting standards as well as risk
management accountability for directors.

B R BRI
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In September 2015, the 45th Anniversary Celebration of
Elegant, our subsidiary, began with a kick-off ceremony hosted
by Mr. Zhang Yuping (middle), the Chairman of Hengdeli, and
other guests.

“EZ-RENA EEBETERB=BARKI 45 BEERL
SENEERRNTEE (P) SRREBHBE TR -

The management of the Group made birthday noodles for our

outstanding employees whose birthdays were in June in the

“Top 100 Outstanding Employees of Hengdeli Group Award

Ceremony Gala 2014” held in June 2015.
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Prior to the Chinese New Year, the management of Beijing office
visited our frontline employees, delivering them with our sincere
festival greetings.

HHip, SRR AREEELE R8T, MbMEAE B REIR o

In June 2015, the Group held its employees training
programme in Jiaxing.

—E-AFAAKEERASERS TRRE -

10

In July 2015, 53 elite shop managers from the southwestern
sales region of the Group joined the Growth Training Camp
for Excellent Shop Managers in southwestern region of Prime
Time held in Chengdu.

“EZ-RELH REKEAEEN B UBRERSETE
BRI “BRERTARBRRERRRIIRE

Our Taiwan and Xinjiang subsidiaries organised their
traveling activities for employees.
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During the year under review, the average number of training
hours per person provided by the Group was as follows:

CEFEEAR  SEFHEIFHENT

Average number of hours per

person
ATRE

Year 2014 Year 2015
Type kR3]l —Z & —E_FE
Middle to senior management PEEEEAR 32 26
Frontline staff —HmET 45 33
Labour Standards BT XA
The Group has employees in Mainland China, Hong Kong, &

Macau and Taiwan. The Group is in strict compliance with
international labour standards and all relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations. All of its employees
and job applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair
treatment.

The Group adopts a comprehensive work assessment
management system, and revises its recruitment system
and internal training policies on a regular basis to ensure
transparency and to maintain fairness and impartiality.

During the year under review, the Group was not involved
in any issues relating to child labour or forced labour. The
Group will continue to comply with the strict recruitment
system to prevent child labour and forced labour.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The environment is the foundation for corporate presence
and development. For many years, Hengdeli has made
environmental protection one of its top corporate governance
priorities. The Group implements a series of mechanisms
and measures relating to environmental management
and energy conservation in its daily operations aimed at
protecting the environment and conserving energy, with
a view to promoting harmonious development in terms of
economic, social and ecological benefits.
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Energy Efficiency and Emission Reduction

The Group actively promotes the concept of environmental
protection and implements various policies to optimise its
working environment to this end, becoming more energy
efficient and reducing emissions, and implementing green
operations and green initiatives in the workplace. The Group
actively embraces the concept of a “paperless” office, in
which most office documents go digital to save space and
reduce paper use. It uses an online office automation system
to improve its administrative functions, such as the filing and
approval processes for applications for business trips and
expenses reimbursement. It also uses the office automation
platform to publish the Group’s notices, policies and
regulations and to share similar information, in the process
improving work efficiency and significantly conserving
energy.

To keep the retail outlets bright, significant energy
is consumed in lighting. To reduce remarkably the
consumption of electrical energy, the Group gradually
replaced the traditional high-energy-consuming
incandescent light bulbs in its retail outlets with energy-
saving LED light bulbs that enjoy higher efficiency and

longer life cycle.

Efficient Use of Resources

The Group also implements a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and cut down its consumption of energy
and natural resources, for example, printing office paper on
both sides and reusing waste paper, used envelopes and
kraft envelopes. Waste paper recycling bins are placed in
office to regularly recycle used paper and old newspapers
and magazines, and employees are encouraged to read
and send files electronically to reduce printing, and to use
public transport for business trips. A Group-wide lights-off
campaign has been launched, in the process integrating
environmental awareness into the everyday work life of
employees. The Group’s retail outlets have replaced
traditional packaging with reusable bags, and replaced
paper cups with glasses.
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The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach to the
interior design of its office and retail outlets. Their open-plan
designs maximise outdoor natural light and shared light. As
far as possible, original furniture is retained, remodelled or
reinstated during renovation to make rational use of existing
resources and to reduce waste.

In 2015, the main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions were electricity consumption, office paper use,
and company vehicles:

ERNERTEMENRERTHE  £ED
EARRBS - HAFKANRG  ZFARE
MAZENEAXREAZRARBEICRE K&
ROFAERERARASIHEETHRES
#oAEMNARAER  BMORE -

—E-0F SENERERBHRIEER
BT MARE  RAE®WE

Year 2014 Year 2015
ltem =1 “E-NEE ZE-IFE
Total volume (tonnes CO2-eq) we (Z8/LixE=M) 22,263 22,490
Density (tonnes CO2-eg/one million  ZE (Z@/tixE S0~
RMB revenue) F-BEEBARBKE) 1.51 1.69

An overview of energy consumption:

REREFEBRME

Density (Total volume/one

Total volume million RMB revenue)

E (B8

«‘—E' B-BEBAR®BNE)

fiin

Year 2014 Year 2015 Year 2014 Year 2015
ltem 28 —E-NFE ZE-HFE ZZNEFE —ZZ-HFE

Electricity consumption

(kWh) BE (TRE) 24,423,450 24,345,977 1,654.26 1,830.15
Office paper used (kg)  #AFE4LK (F=) 14,871 11,619 1.01 0.87
Venhicle fuel (L) BETRN S (AF) 66,260 67,853 4.49 5.10
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Disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous waste is mainly
of relevance to the Group’s industrial segment. The total
volume of waste disposed of in 2015 was as follows:

Volume (tonnes)

BEBRYNEEREZEMHREIEETIREH
MITERR  —T—RAFAPERET :

Density (tonnes/one million
RMB revenue)
=E (W,

= (mg) B-—EEBEARBUR)

Year 2014 Year 2015 Year 2014 Year 2015
Type of waste disposed of HE¥IiELE —E-NEE —E-HFE —E-NFEE —E-HEFE
Hazardous industrial
waste TEEEEED 660 970 0.04 0.07
Non-hazardous industrial
waste THEmEREEY 248 302 0.02 0.02
The Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries are all in strict SETERESD - TRAREKETERISK

compliance with national regulations regarding sewage
discharge and other aspects. To facilitate the effective
implementation of ISO14001 environmental management
system, such subsidiaries entered into contracts with
relevant nationally recognized professional industrial waste
treatment companies for the recycling of industrial wastes.
The Group is inspected regularly by the Environmental
Protection Bureau, and this year all polluting emissions
(including sewage and gas) of each of the relevant factories
passed the annual inspection and the monitored results met
national standards, with no incident of non-compliance. The
Group has also formulated internal operational guidelines
containing detailed requirements regarding water and
electricity consumption and the operating hours and
temperature setting of air-conditioners.

The Group aims for sustainable development by constantly
monitoring the environmental impact of its operations and
implementing appropriate measures to minimise harm to the
environment, while at the same time integrating the concepts
of conserving natural resources and reducing waste into the
corporate culture.
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OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT

The Group cooperates closely with suppliers and retailers
to deliver safe, quality products to customers, and is
dedicated to maintaining a high level of industrial production
transparency and product responsibility, so as to maintain
its position as the world’s leading retailer of internationally
renowned watch brands. Throughout its operations, the
Group ensures it maintains a good social reputation by
complying with all national and regional anticorruption and
anti-bribery policies.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that providing quality products
and excellent after-sales service is a crucial part of its
successful corporate presence. The Group is engaged in
the distribution of more than 50 internationally renowned
watch brands, including numerous exclusive brands. When
it comes to selecting brands for distribution, the Group
prioritises the brand’s quality and after-sales service, apart
from its market demand. The Group has maintained sound
business relationships with suppliers of some of the world’s
truly premier brands, including the Swatch Group, the
LVMH Group, the Richemont Group, the Rolex Group and
the Kering Group. These brands implement strict policies
regarding production and sustainable development and
enjoy an extremely high international reputation, which
provides the Group with reliable, stable and quality product
sources and in turn helps guarantee the Group’s own

reputation.

Part of the brands distributed by the Group
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Subsidiaries of the Group’s packaging and display segment
carry out strict quality management in line with national
quality standards. The watch boxes and other packaging
products manufactured by factories of subsidiary Yadi have
all achieved national ISO9001:2008 and FSC certifications,
and have also complied with EU Regulation (EC) No.
1907/2006 (REACH). Nivada complies with the national
industry regulations, say, GB/T 6044-2005 for quartz watch
and QB/T 1249-2004 for mechanical watch, and implements
strict production testing and inspection standards. Every
watch manufactured is accompanied by an inspection
certificate. During the year under review, none of the
products sold or delivered by the Group was recalled on
safety and health grounds.

The Group attaches great importance to respecting
and safeguarding the rights of consumers. It is in strict
compliance with the regulations and laws relating to sale of
products to safeguard the interests of consumers.

One of the assurances the Group offers to its customers and
brand suppliers is that it will provide “advanced technology,
online warranty, efficient management and considerate
services”. The Group provides the most convenient joint
warranty in the Greater China region covering Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan by delivering comprehensive
services to customers through an interactive customer
service network consisting of repair and maintenance
service centres, repair service stations and repair service
points. Its service hotline 4008 acts as the Group’s
centralised service channel for the general public, offering
timely help and advice and building customer confidence in
the Group.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group implements an efficient supply chain
management system that optimises links between
manufacturers, suppliers, distributers and retailers,
optimising the allocation of social resources. Meanwhile,
the Group realises an effective link between production and
sales as well as a reasonable flow of logistics, information
and capital through an efficient information network, and
delivers quality products and considerate services to
consumers in a timely manner at reasonable prices.

The Group’s industrial segment subsidiaries have each
formulated an appropriate supplier code. Each factory has
a detailed supplier survey, assessment sheet, as well as a
standardised supplier management process. When selecting
a supplier, an assessment on products of suppliers will be
carried out by the examination and approval department of
each factory according to various criteria including relevant
national certifications (such as the ISO quality management
system) for the Group’s final approval. The Group also
regularly evaluates each supplier’s products in areas such
as quality, pricing and environmental protection. Those
suppliers which do not meet the Group’s standards will be
disqualified.

Anti-Corruption

The Hengdeli Group is dedicated to establishing itself
as a trustworthy, law-abiding enterprise. The Group
advocates a work ethic that insists on compliance with law,
integrity, honesty and professional dedication, and bans
any form of acceptance of advantages or acts of bribery.
Explicit rules concerning employees’ work practices are
communicated through the employees’ guidebook and
training courses, while the efficiency of the Group’s entire
internal management system is reviewed regularly. The daily
operations of the Group strictly comply with established
procedures; the internal audit department audits each
subsidiary regularly and reports to the audit committee while
implementing appropriate measures to ensure all regulations
are complied with. Further, the Group regularly commissions
third-party auditors to carry out independent audits. All these
measures help ensure that the Group’s regulatory system
remains effective. During the year under review, the Group
has not been involved in any bribery cases or associated

irregularities.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a leading corporate citizen in international watch retailing,
Hengdeli is actively involved in community and public
welfare activities, serving the community and contributing
to society through a variety of welfare platforms. Amongst
various charity and public events, Hengdeli particularly
focuses on the education, growth and development of young
people from deprived backgrounds or environments.

Education Sponsorship

In 2014, the Group set up the “Prime Time Pearl Foundation”
and sponsored over 300 underprivileged students in
Liangshan, Sichuan Province, Huining, Gansu Province, and
other areas like Yuzhong, sowing the seeds of love to these
poverty-stricken areas and lighting up the future lives of
those students with hope.

Our love is being extended. In January 2015, the northern
China division of the retail department of the Group initiated
a charity sale campaign in Beijing named “Love from
Prime Time, to Paint the Amazing Moments (EEZE —2
TRAFEIRT )"

campaign were drawn by children from the “Blossoming

Most of the paintings in this charity sale

Flowers” children painting club, and all the proceeds from
the campaign were donated to China Youth Development
Foundation, designated for helping children in need from
Liangshan, Sichuan Province.

On 26 October and 29 October 2015,
censh.com)”, the Group’s media-based e-commerce website

“B% BF.com (www.

held a charity concert named “Prime Time, Blossoming for
Love (B¢FF— B B HR)” in Beijing and Shanghai respectively
together with China Youth Development Foundation.
Dresdner Kreuzchor from Germany and the children from
the choir of the Central School of Eliping Town funded by
the Group in Liangshan, Sichuan Province jointly presented
a great performance with love. The charity concert was
attended by around 2,000 guests, and raised donations of
nearly RMB2,000,000, which were entirely donated to China
Youth Development Foundation for the designated purpose
of setting up primary school and middle school classes in
poverty-stricken areas of Liangshan Yi Autonomous Region,
Sichuan Province, to help the deprived Yi tribal children with
access to education.
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Following prior year’s practice, a team from Prime Time, a
subsidiary of the Group, went on its caring visit in Liangshan,
Sichuan Province in 2015.

EEF  —E-AFEERBRTEREZERADIDRL - 5
REAZE 2R ©

A group photo of children’s chorus of the Central School

of Pingxiang, Eliping Town, Liangshan, Sichuan Province
sponsored by Hengdeli taken in the charity concert of “Prime
Time, Blossoming for Love (265 - (B2 2% /%)” in October 2015.
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More than 300 students from over 12 secondary schools
participated in our “Project WeCan” under the “Project WeCan
Business Bliss - Young Innovators Bazaar” sponsored by the
Group.

SEEY "SREBHE W BREMER" F8 - FH=
BRPEBLE—FHEBLESM -

More than 300 junior players participated in the “2015
Elegant Cup Table Tennis Tournament” sponsored by the
Group.

SEEH_ZT-A-ENEERBFE  BEB=EHREFD
FEFSM e

In March 2015, the administration department of Shanghai
office of the Group organised voluntary blood donations and
stem cells donations for its employees.
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In such ways Hengdeli is fulfilling its social responsibility
through practical action, passing on love and warmth.

Caring for Society

Since 2011, the Group’s subsidiary Elegant has been taking
part in “Project WeCan” in Hong Kong. The project is an
on-going school supporting initiative aiming at helping
students lacking in opportunities for development. This
year, Elegant again sponsored “Young Innovators Bazaar”,
an entrepreneurship promoting event hosted by “Project
WeCan”. The event offered valuable entrepreneurship
experience and involved over 300 students from more than
20 secondary schools. During the event, Po Leung Kuk C W
Chu College, sponsored by Elegant, was awarded the “Best
Marketing Plan Award”.

The Group has continued to involve itself in all-round
development opportunities for young people. Since 2012,
the Group has co-hosted successively the “Elegant Cup
Table Tennis Tournament”, in which young players from
various regions are invited to take part to promote table
tennis, facilitate exchanges between players from different
cities, and raise the awareness of the youth in their mental
and physical health development. During the year under
review, the Group hosted in March and between July and
August the “2015 Elegant Cup Table Tennis Tournament”,
which drew more than 300 junior players from countries and
regions that included Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Macau, Japan,
Taiwan, Malaysia and Singapore.

During the year, the Group also organised voluntary blood
donations for its employees in Mainland China; invited
secondary school students to practice and experience
life in our shops, and provided them with guidance and
helped them plan their careers ahead of time. The Group is
committed to promoting the overall development of young
people, aiming at preparing them with a solid foundation for
entering the society in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - AhE RAERHE

OUTLOOK

Rain or shine, we have been moving ahead through ups
and downs over the past years. As we move ahead, we will
continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for
our customers, employees, shareholders and the society,
and will seek out opportunities to strive for a harmonious
development between the Company and the society, the
Company and the environment, as well as the Company and
all related parties to make our due contributions.

RIRRE

FFEARIZ - EBERIIT » R HPIBEBERS
HEPFP BT REERHEFEARENRA
SRALLESERE  SHEAELEETE -
EERRFURDGRENBZEEE T OHEE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S 5 18t 2

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HILEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RESULTS ES o —E-HF ZT-NFE —ZT-=F —T-——-F —_T——
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Turnover HER 13,302,724 14,764,370 13,375,443 12,120,448 11,375,280
Profit before taxation i A E A 347,452 807,277 673,355 1,230,982 1,198,139
Income tax FT5H: (157,288) (223,850) (204,483) (285,464) (279,863)
Profit for the year EEHA 190,164 583,427 468,872 945,518 918,276
Attributable to: FE(L -
Equity shareholders PN/ )
of the Company BAEA 144,868 504,220 400,421 855,153 814,919
Non-controlling eI i
interests 45,296 79,207 68,451 90,365 103,357
Profit for the year FE R A 190,164 583,427 468,872 945,518 918,276
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H
ASSETS AND 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
LIABILITIES EEHEE ZE-AF —T-WF —T—= —E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARBTRT ARETT ARETT
Total assets BEERE 12,198,738 12,844,123 12,833,322 12,486,286 11,589,464
Total liabilities BEHER 5,658,381 6,215,495 6,649,156 6,572,444 6,258,797
Net assets BEFE 6,540,357 6,628,628 6,184,166 5,913,842 5,330,667
Total equity attributable /NS )
to equity shareholders A AEN
of the Company M AR RE 5,930,787 5,983,004 5,599,234 5,456,864 4,890,826
Non-controlling AR
interests 609,570 645,624 584,932 456,978 439,841
Total equity EmAE 6,540,357 6,628,628 6,184,166 5,913,842 5,330,667
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hengdeli Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hengdeli Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 89
to 206, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirement
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
A S e o7

HEFEANERBRAARR ZB I ZHEMRE
(RESHSHEMHE L ERLF])

Az EED (AT (M) ERZINERNE
89FE206AFHBHMEMARRAR ([EAA]) &
HifB AR (Gl [E5E]) R MBERE -
WM BREREER _F—AFt+t_A=+—H
MR HIRN R EREZA LFRNEREIE
R HAeBEkHEMEEABAR KEER
BEHRNGARERNER  UREBEGHHKR
BE M E A TR o

ESHUBHRERNER

EAREFARERETBLHMAREHD
EBHGREEARES (AAKH) 2 BEE
FEUREEM AT BREHBRE - &
ERBEAONBRHAEEE - UEREYY
585 5 T 12 o 20 B EE o 8 3R T B B B K
SR -

BRE RN EE
BMNETRBERMOBZHEZSRAME
RERELER - AREEMBERERE @ B
L BASN - BRI RE TN BEEMAR o
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EEEERERE -

%
s
X
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
1% B hil e 35

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
A 7 H B %

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &%= —
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAAR#271)

—RFtZA=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARBET T ARETTT
Revenue HER 3 13,302,724 14,764,370
Cost of sales tHE R A (9,402,177) (10,539,538)
Gross profit EF 3,900,547 4,224,832
Other revenue H U 2 4 101,551 95,473
Other net (loss)/income Hih (B518) WA F5E 4 (141,954) 31,531
Distribution costs 5 SR A (2,963,904) (2,926,425)
Administrative expenses THER (329,464) (394,583)
Other operating (expenses)/income  Ef#& % (Fsz), WA (13,970) 2,416
Profit from operations KRR 552,806 1,033,244
Finance costs B #E Bk A 5(a) (205,765) (225,834)
Share of losses of associates FE(REG SN Al E518 - (1,521)
Share of profits of joint ventures SN bl 15 411 1,388
Profit before taxation PR A% Al 5 347,452 807,277
Income tax FriS#i 6(a) (157,288) (223,850)
Profit for the year FERER 190,164 583,427
Attributable to: FEAG -
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRGFEB A 144,868 504,220
Non-controlling interests JEIERR RS 45,296 79,207
Profit for the year FERF 190,164 583,427
Earnings per share ERER 10
Basic B /N RMB/A R RMB/A R
0.030JT 0.1057T
Diluted i3 RMB/A R RMB/A R #
0.030JT 0.1057T

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 29(b).

FI7TE206 8 Z LB L FM MK —

#B o FE
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NARB D FHE AR FE M Z BB
FRHEE29(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao o7 4R i S LAl i A 3%

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ—FE—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAA R Z2751)

2015 2014
—ET-RF —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE ARETT ARBTT
Profit for the year FEER 190,164 583,427
Other comprehensive income FEEHEMEEBA
for the year 9
ltems that may be reclassified BEE R B EFT D4R
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmIEE
Available-for-sale securities: AMEHER S -
net movement in the AREFEZEFE
fair value reserve (1,215) 1,215
Exchange differences on BMEFINAT]
translation of overseas WS ImRMEEZ
companies' financial statements PE N =% (10,472) 5,720
Total comprehensive income FEEZEBARE
for the year 178,477 590,362
Attributable to: G
Equity shareholders of the Company AR GRS EAF A 133,181 511,155
Non-controlling interests SRR 45,296 79,207
Total comprehensive income FEZHWALEE
for the year 178,477 590,362

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial 597%2068 B It E M mEx —HH o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i o AR DL

31 December 2015
—E-AF+=-A=t+—-8

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAARM2731)

31 December 2014

—Z-ME+-A=+—H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
k3 ARBTR ARBTR ARETT AREF T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 11 39,298 41,286
Other property, plant and Hinh# - BE R
equipment B 11 1,465,261 1,404,669
1,504,559 1,445,955
Intangible assets ‘| BE 12 79,756 86,601
Goodwill EES 13 770,222 802,521
Interest in joint ventures ISEX=UNIP: £ 15 58,200 55,423
Other investments HinwE 16 63,487 71,862
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEEE 28(b)(i) 106,638 72,167
2,582,862 2,534,529
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 17 6,376,350 6,612,693
Trade and other receivables JEYE SRR
R A fE R IR 18 1,329,175 1,615,836
Deposits with banks RITHER 19 - 113,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLZEY 20 1,910,351 1,968,065
9,615,876 10,309,594
Current liabilities REaaE
Trade and other payables B SER
RE A ERRIE 21 1,962,269 2,240,209
Bank loans RITER 22 704,374 991,831
Current taxation R fE A 28(a) 20,778 25,960
Provisions BE 23 - 94,668
Convertible bonds A ES 24 - 78,005
2,687,421 3,430,673
Net current assets REEEFE 6,928,455 6,878,921
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERMAEEE 9,511,317 9,413,450

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A 1 B BEIR D

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A #5251

31 December 2015
—F-Aft+ZA=1-H

31 December 2014

—2-mEt=A=t-A

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Hizz AR®BTRT AR®ETR ARBTT ARETR
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loans RITER 22 552,468 494,508
Long-term payables RHEAE(T R 24,351 -
Senior notes BAERE 25 2,288,436 2,173,905
Deferred tax liabilities EREHEEE 26(b)(1i) 105,705 116,409
2,970,960 2,784,822
NET ASSETS EERE 6,540,357 6,628,628
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRR G
Share capital [N 29(c) 22,841 22,920
Reserves s 5,907,946 5,960,084
Total equity attributable RARRBEEA
to equity shareholders EihREREE
of the Company 5,930,787 5,983,004
Non-controlling interests FERER 609,570 645,624
TOTAL EQUITY FERIEEE 6,540,357 6,628,628
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors MR ZF—NE=H L HEESE G L HE
on 17 March 2016. FIED -
Zhang Yuping Huang Yonghua R EKE
Executive Director Executive Director HITEE HITEE

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A Bl S 2
L7 RE 5 58

LIFS

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZE—AF+-_A=+—RHIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAARZ2751)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARGRAAER
Capital PRC Non-
Share Share redemption  Capital Exchange  statutory Fairvalue Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
o lET R
kA ROEE  ERE  AABE EXBE AeRE ArGEHEE  REEN st BR EREE
Note- RMB0O0 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
it ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Balance at RZE-mE
1 January 2014 —-A-Heés 22935 2,707,753 163 (25586) (194490) 414,979 - 2673480 5599234 584,932 6,184,166
Changes in equity “E-ME
for 2014: g9
Profit for the year ERRT - - - - - - - 504200 504000 79007 58347
Other comprehensive E2EHA
income ) - - - - 5720 - 1,215 - 6,935 = 6,935
Total comprehensive 2EHNEE
income - - - - 5,720 - 1,215 504220 511,156 79,207 590,362
Dividends approved in HEBEFERS
respect of the
previous year 29(6) - - - - - - - (119.978) (119,978) - (119,978)
Dividends to holders EAFEERER
of non-controlling REAZRE
interests - - - - - - - - - (87417)  (87417)
Transfer between reserves /&2 fE# = = = - - 20064 - (22264) - - -
Equity settled share- WERES - R
based transactions SR 27 - - - (696) - - - 81 (615) - (615)
Purchase of own shares ~ EEARARR 290(i)
- par value -HE (1) - - - - - - - (1) - (1)
- premium paid -Bf&E - - - - - - - (4869)  (4869) - (4869)
~ transfer between - R EEY
reserves - - 15 - - - - (15) - - =
Capital contributions rRERTE
from non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - 40000 40,000
Acquisition of additional  WER-EHEAF
equity interest in a LBONRE
subsidiary - - - (1908) - - - - (1908 (3092)  (5,000)
Disposal of equity HERBARZRE
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 3994 31994
Balance at RZE-ME
31 December 2014 and TZA=t-BEK
1 January 2015 —E-1f
-A-Be&8 22920 2,707,753 178 (28,190) (188,770) 437,243 1,215 3,030,655 5983004 645624 6,628,628
The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial 597 F 206 & ~ i 518 It Z 1 & sk — 285 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—Z— A4+ -A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R #E 251])
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ERARBEEARL
Capital PRC Fair Non-
Share Share redemption ~ Capital Exchange statutory value  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
s HE 2R
Rkt RORE ERE  EAEE  EXRE OIERE QAERE  REEN Eh BE REEE
Note  RMB000 RMB'000 RMBO00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
it AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Changes in ZE-1fF
equity for 2015; B&%9
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - - - 144868 144868 45206 190,164
Other comprehensive At2EHA
incorne 9 - - - - (10472) - (121) - (11.687) - (1687)
Total comprehensive FENAES
income - - - - (10472) - (1,215) 144868 133,181 45296 178,477
Dividends approved in HEBAERRS
respect of the
previous year 29(b) - - - - - - - (153,100) (153,100) - (153,100)
Dividends to holders of ~ JEM3EERiER
non-controlling interests ~ HHAZIRE - - - - - - - - - (56,709)  (56,709)
Transfer between reserves /& 7 - - - - - 2208 - (22249 - - -
Repurchase of convertible  BE AR ES
bonds ] - - - (2,008) - - - 229 - - -
Shares purchased under IR (7 &2
share award scheme BBEEZRA 7o) - - - (8269 - - - - (8269 - (8269)
Purchase of own shares ~ EEADFRA 296(i)
- par value -HE (79 - - - - - - - (79 - 79
- premium paid -BEE - (22610 - - - - - - (26m) - (2261)
- transfer between - B BEY
reserves - - 79 - - - - - 79 - 79
Acquisition of additional MR -RHELE
equity interest in a L BINRE
subsidiary - - - (2,329) - - - - (2,323)  (22,185)  (24,508)
Capital distribution to holders  FIZFERIERKEAA
of non-controlling interests i EAS & - - - - - - - - - (2456)  (2456)
Disposal of equity interest ~ HEMBAT 2fkiE
in subsidiaries - - - 901 - - - - 901 - 901
Balance at \ZF-1%
31 December 2015 +ZA=1-H
k33 22,841 2,685,142 257 (40,173)  (199,242) 459,491 - 3,002,471 5930,787 609,570 6,540,357

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ol e ER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HfiZ —T—RE+_-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR Z751)

2015 2014
—Z-If it S
Note RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

i ARE®TR

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE

Operating activities KEEE
Cash generated from operations & EM5H 4 20(b) 1,103,879 491,329
Income tax paid BRFEE (186,850) (231,620)
Net cash generated from RETHRBREFE

operating activities 917,029 259,709
Investing activities REEEH
Payment for the purchase of BAME - BE KRBT

property, plant and equipment (153,242) (106,911)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BE - RERE

property, plant, equipment WEEMSTIR

and intangible assets 10,033 342,311
Payment for the purchase of BAEBVEENK

intangible assets (5,614) (454)
Payment for acquisition of Yepg— AN B R R 2 B IME

additional equity interest in EayA DL

a subsidiary - (5,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HE R 2 TSR

equity interests - 31,994
Payment for profit guarantee AR EBERERK

compensation 23 (97,602) -
Payment for the purchase of WEEIE FTIRE 2 3K

unlisted investments (1,527) -
Payment for the purchase of WERHEEES MR

available-for-sale securities 16 (47,290) (21,125)
Decrease in deposits with banks #4717 5054 113,000 100,000
Increase in deposits with banks — $R{T1E RN - (113,000)
Payment for purchase of bank B EHRITIEBERNT

wealth management products - (1,339,450)
Proceeds from settlement of REEBREERITEN ER

bank wealth management iS58

products upon maturity - 1,339,450
Interest received EUF S 16,023 16,142
Payments for acquisitions of WERB AR ZHR - Ik

subsidiaries, net of cash isRe 31 (13,359) (56,529)
Payment for establishment of A& E AR 2R

a joint venture (5,000) -
Dividends received from BE ETIRERE

unlisted investments 33,494 34,977
Dividends received from BEREERAIRE

a joint venture 2,677 -
Net cash (used in)/generated RETH (Fri) /FisRS

from investing activities FE (148,407) 222,405

The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Bl ER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 # &

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A F i 251])

—E-RF+-A=+-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-Tf —mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
llotz3 ARBTRT ARBTR ARETT ARETT

Financing activities BMEEEH
Capital contributions from FERERTE

non-controlling interests - 40,000
Proceeds from new bank loans  #T1E2R1TE TS 5E 1,112,809 1,301,583
Repayment of bank loans EBBTER (1,409,392) (1,629,591)
Payment for interest on BAZERN BN

senior notes 25 (134,007) (133,630)
Repurchase of senior notes EOELRE 25 (24,804) -
Payment for redemption of BRI ARES TR

convertible bonds 24 (82,047) -
Payment for interest on AR EHF SR

convertible bonds 24 (1,946) (1,870)
Other borrowing costs paid BAEMEERR (45,717) (63,154)
Payment for purchase of EEARRARMD AR

own shares 29c(ii) (22,611) (4,884)
Payment for purchase of shares 1R () &)

under share award scheme STEIBERD 2R 27(c) (8,265) =
Dividends paid to equity ERAABRN

shareholders of the Company BEAZERE 29b(ii) (153,100) (119,978)
Payment for capital distribution to FZERREZZE A

holders of non-controlling EHEARDIRZ N

interests (2,365) =
Dividends paid to holders of BT

non-controlling interests BEAZRE (64,752) (89,514)
Net cash used in METBAERSFH

financing activities (836,197) (701,038)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBELEMHDFE

cash equivalents (67,575) (218,924)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HzH$

1 January RELZEY 20(a) 1,968,065 2,185,922
Effect of foreign exchange PNEEREEHE

rate changes 9,861 1,067
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—H

31 December ZEERESEEY 20(a) 1,910,351 1,968,065
The notes on pages 97 to 206 form part of these financial $97%206E 2 MBI EHEHmE —25 -

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 e B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FSHBERASN - SEEAARME ML)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by Hengdeli Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

1. EESHEE

(a) &I
WEMBRENRESERHALE (F5E
SHRA® ) B FTEER S ST BB E LR
([EBIEMEER | - ZAZIEREREER
HWERIE AN BREER - FEGHER (5
BEER]) RRE)  FEARSTEAN
BEREBATEOIMRERTFEL - S
BREMGABBMAXHFERAT (B
Fil) &% tmBRMmERRERE - SEFE
BRERAR (AAT]) REMBAF (57
(AEE]) FRANESeHRERSHRAE
—Fo

EERHAALCEMETRAEERART
0% & 1 HARD B R4 A AT 4412 A1 4R AN R 358
RASETE S BRERA - HEE1(0)7I BRI
BT IR 2 T B R A RIY)R IR
0% % 5L 2 B AR 0 BT R Y £
HBEED 2 AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following asset is stated at its fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
(see note 1(Q))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F BAHEEASN - EEEAARBIEERL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company.

o Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 1(0), (p) or (q) depending on the
nature of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(l)),
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

unless the investment is classified

classified as held for sale).

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). The investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (l)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not

remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint venture are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(l)), unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

(f)  Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)  Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 1(l)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in notes 1(v)(iii) and 1(v)(iv).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As
an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical
instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(l)).
Dividend income from equity securities and interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective interest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policies set out in notes 1(v)(iii) and 1(v)(iv), respectively.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of debt securities are also recognised
in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(l)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(k)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(l)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
property less its estimated residual value using the straight
line method over its estimated useful life. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(v)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis.

(iy  Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(1).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iy  Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful life, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance
leases is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

= Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

- Leasehold improvements 1 -5 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10 years
- Office equipment and other fixed assets 3-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
1(x)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
1(1)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 1(l)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

- Agency rights and patents 5-10 years
- Trademarks with finite useful life 5 - 10 years
= Software licences 5 - 10 years
- Favorable lease terms acquired in 28 years

a business combination

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

The fair value of patents and trademarks acquired in a
business combination is based on the discounted estimated
royalty payments that have been avoided as a result of the
patent or trademark being owned.

The fair value of favorable lease terms acquired in a
business combination is determined based on the present
value of the estimated lease payments using quoted market
prices for similar leases and the present value of the leases
payments of the acquired business.

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are recognised as property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(i).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 1(l). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(iiiy  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other

current and non-current receivables that are stated at

cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-

sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period to determine whether there is objective evidence

of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes

observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

N Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 1(e)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1(I)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(l)

(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed.

= For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.

114 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

1.

(1)
(i)

BEESTEE @)

EERE (&)
EERRAZSZREREMEBBRAREZ
HIE (&)

1R 35 8L B /&5 1R 72 LA 12 B FE] Rk > Je Bk >
HREBERRRBEEZSHARTEY
2 REBERSRERERE - AR
ZREBRINEEEE ZREERLE
ENAFESEERBRESBINSETE
ZEE e

RAHHEESRME ERRAERE
NERZRFBERBEN D EERS -
HRGERZ R BRE BT WIEK A
OREERANESERSLE#EHE) RRAEAA
BEZER  BEEANAEEBESRRZ
BERERR -

AHEERAES 2 BEBBNEEE
BsAER TS EBEREE - ZEE
ZARERERENEERREMEE
W ATERR. ©

RE BRI Z A A 8 ER(E 5 18 1
REBLECEHEREBE - At
EEFIREBBRRERE S ERERLS



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

N Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment(other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and
- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures in the Company’s statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(N Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’'s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 1(I)(i) and 1(I)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(N Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases
in the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business

Inventories (Continued)

combination is determined based on their estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the
effort required to complete and sell the inventories.

(n) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(I)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(o) Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Convertible notes (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note
is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to

retained profits.

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective

interest method.

(9) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(r)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iiiy ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

122 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

1. EESHEX &)

(s) EERF &)

(i)  ARLEER
RIFBARAEETEEUH IR MR SRR R
SEBERL KRR R BEEKARE (AR
BERE) TLAMER -

(ty FrEH
FARAMBHREABREAMNIEMRENR RS E R
BEZEY AHMERRENEEEREE
ZEBHOEIRDR AR HEEREMEERA
AN ERERSRDEBEEE - REREN
BeBOIRNEMEHBARRNERERR
R o

AR BRI FNERTEWARBERS R
ERATHREE LERTIRMERA B ZBREN
IR - 0 EAEFE RN IR 2 LA

EREFIAEERBED BB AT KN R ERBR 2
EREZRES ENEZERKEEEEAGEMM
BHREMs < EHEARFEERABIRE
ZER - EETHIBEE IR Al i1 R A AR A E B
MARFRRERRES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)y Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution

of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

1(u)(ii).

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are handed over to
individual customers at retail outlets or delivered at the
wholesale or corporate customers’ premises which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii)  Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised

when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a Group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

2. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 16, 18, 27 and 33 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of
other investment, trade and other receivables impairment,
fair value of share options granted and fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(a) Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
by the Group at the end of each reporting period to
assess whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs is estimated to determine impairment losses on
the asset. Changes in facts and circumstances may result
in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication of
impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually even if
there is no indication of impairment.

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution costs. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of distributing and selling products of a similar
nature. Management reassesses the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

2. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(c) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The
management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of these transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account changes in tax legislation.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which they can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are retail and wholesale
of watches and jewellery.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net of value added tax and is after deduction of
any sales discounts and returns.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenues.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography (mainly in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Taiwan).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K BAEEASN - BEHAARBIEELRL)

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following five reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable

segments.

o Retail segments (includes three segments for watches
retail in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong
and one segment (“Harvest Max”) for jewellery and
watches retail in Hong Kong): given the importance
of the retail division to the Group, the Group’s retail
business is segregated further into four reportable
segments on a geographical and products and
services basis, as the divisional managers for each of
these regions report directly to the senior executive
team. All segments primarily derive their retail revenue
through their own retail network.

° Wholesale segment: this segment distributes

numerous world renowned brand watches in Mainland

China and Hong Kong.

(i) Segment results and assets

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
However, other than reporting inter-segment sales,
assistance provided by one segment to another, including

sharing of assets, is not measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FS& 585} -

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “gross
profit”.

Segment assets represent inventories only, without
eliminating the unrealised inter-segment profits.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the period is set out below.

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

BEAARBIEER)

3. $HEERIHE®mE (#)

(b) DEBIRE (&)

() HDBLEREE (£)

PR 2| IR 2 KR A [EF] -

DA A
SR -

P WARMBRAREIR 2 7 A

HA - ARRAAEERSETREREABRH
ZBIRD @E&’“*H%EE%HZZKE@D?@EJ}E‘
ZEBHEIWT -

Retail
2E
Mainland China Hong Kong Taiwan Harvest Max Wholesale Al others Total
hEA 3] BB g it fELt &t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“%-1% “$-0F -R-EF F-MF C¥-BF CFMF S-1F CTRF SR-EF CROMF CR-BF CFMF S3-RF CTMF
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMB'0O0 RMB'000 RMBOO0 RMB'000 RMBO00 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETL ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Revenug from external RESNIEE 2 Ha
customers 5,786,672 6,248240 10898540 2593388 178279 182,761 1,509,863 1584415 3389379 3726721 539,991 428,845 13,302,724 14,764,370
Inter-segment revenue HHENE - = E - - - B - 3826708 3558352 32,398 - 3859106 3,558,352
Reportable segment revenue  EHAENE 5786672 6248240 10898540 2593388 178279 182761 1509,863 1584415 7216087 7285073 572,389 428,845 17161830 18322722
Reportable segment gross profit  2HABER 1,693,648 1877611 358979 537,219 43934 47767 1253313 1214400 387925 409351 162,748 138484 3900547 4,224,832
Reportable segment assets SHHIBEE 2807438 3136954 1451,378 1527848 180,223 199983 103720 115969 1,646,956 1579018 136,912 105393 6,416,627 6,665,165

Harvest Max Holdings Limited (“Harvest Max”) carries out
jewellery and watches retail business in Hong Kong and
during the year ended 31 December 2015, an impairment
loss of RMB31,845,000 was recognised in respect of the
goodwill allocated to this segment (note 13).

Results and assets of the segment below the quantitative
thresholds are mainly attributable to a watch accessories
manufacture business and a watch repairing and
maintenance business.

LaERAERAR (8% REERERER
BRTEEEK BEZE_Z—AFT+_A=t+—
HIEFE ok T %o e mEEREES
BAR®31,845,0007T (MiE13) ©

BREBEECREERZNDBEEREELTENR
BARRZFREEERMERHE R FHREE
55 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BB B4 » BREAN R

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and

profit or loss

3. $HEERIHEHmE #)

(b) DERERE (&)

(i) 2WIMWRBERIBHE 2B

2015 2014

—E-AF —F-MmF

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue Wz AREET T AREETTT
Total revenues for reportable EFH R

segments 16,589,441 17,893,877

Revenue for other segments Hth o 2f U 2 572,389 428,845

Elimination of inter-segment revenue %345 2Bz (3,859,106) (3,558,352)

Consolidated revenue e s 13,302,724 14,764,370

2015 2014

—E-T0F —T-mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit Y Fl AR¥TT AR¥ETTT
Total gross profit for reportable WD EBBEF

segments 3,737,799 4,086,348

Profit for other segments E b5 &8 A 162,748 138,484

3,900,547 4,224,832

Other revenue Hipuzs 101,551 95,473

Other net (loss)/income Hip (B1E) WA E5E (141,954) 31,531

Distribution costs 7 AR (2,963,904) (2,926,425)

Administrative expenses THE R (329,464) (394,583)

Other operating (expenses)/income HM &4 (BFA), WA (13,970) 2,416

Finance costs B TS AR (205,765 (225,834)

Share of losses of associates FE(RE & R RBIE - (1,521)

Share of profits of joint ventures RN g 411 1,388

Consolidated profit before taxation 454 BR &4 Al i 7 347,452 807,277
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues and
profit or loss (Continued)

3. $HEERIHE®mE (#)

(b) DERERE (&)

(i) E|IBRBERBH KR (F)

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

Assets BE ARBT T ARBFIT
Total assets for reportable ERVPREE (FE)

segments (inventories) 6,279,715 6,559,772

Assets for reportable EFOBEE (FE)

segments (inventories) 136,912 105,393
Elimination of unrealised I S5 R B3R 5 FP R A

inter-segment profit (40,277) (52,472)

6,376,350 6,612,693

Trade and other receivables FEUN B 5 B T K H fth FE W 3k 18 1,329,175 1,615,836

Deposits with banks RITFEH - 113,000

Cash and cash equivalents BWERBESEEY 1,910,351 1,968,065

Non-current assets JERENEE 2,582,862 2,534,529

Consolidated total assets REREE 12,198,738 12,844,123

(iiiy  Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in joint ventures
and other investments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill, and the location
of operations, in the case of interests in joint ventures and
other investments.

iy HEER
TEREIINEBANAEEREINAR P K= R
(VAEEMREME . HibWE - BE KRR
H EBEEE BB REeZ2 aERRK
Hii&E ([BEFRHEE]) MEHENE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BB B4 » BREAN R

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. NEERBOIPBE &)

(Continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEBRE (&)
(iii)  Geographic information (Continued) (iiy HEEE (Z)

The Group’s business is mainly managed in three principal AKAEEFBIFTEEFE=-@FHFTELEmE - P E K
economic environments, Mainland China, Hong Kong and #f « &K & EEITER o
Taiwan.

2015 2014

—ZE-RF —F-ImF

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue from external customers KEIIREZEEHWRE ARET T ARMTF T
Mainland China ==l ETRvNps) 9,583,576 10,377,042
Hong Kong and Macau B RR 3,540,869 4,204,567
Taiwan =y 178,279 182,761
Total HEt 13,302,724 14,764,370
2015 2014

—E-RF —=—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Specified non-current assets EEFRBEE AR®T T AREET T
Mainland China AR A 3 1,767,067 1,824,249
Hong Kong B8 668,774 595,551
Taiwan =0 40,383 42,166
Others HAith - 396
Total st 2,476,224 2,462,362
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F BAHEEASN - EEEAARBIEERL)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/ 4. HttWamk (FB) WA FE
INCOME
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other revenue Hh gz ARBET T ARBTTT
Interest income FE U A 16,023 16,071
Dividend income from unlisted JEEMERE R BUA
investments 25,443 33,494
Government grants BT wE b 30,644 18,432
Rental income EEUA 8,458 7,050
Others Hith 20,983 20,426
101,551 95,473
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
Other net (loss)/income Hith (B518) WA F5E ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Impairment loss on interest in an R—EBE AR 2R BESE
associate - (34,293)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A] & %% 2R EEE (H1:29(b))
securities (note 9(b)) (63,284) -
Impairment of goodwill (note 13) EERE (Kt 13) (44,956) (38,000)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE (1,042) -
Net foreign exchange HNE ¥R B 1R R RR (H15t5(c))
loss (note 5(c)) (83,718) (10,152)
Net gain on disposal of HEBTEEE W T8 (MaF11)
fixed assets (note 11) 213 113,976
Net gain on repurchase of BRELEER 2 W F5E (Hit25)
senior notes (note 25) 833 -
(141,954) 31,531
TRAERERAR —F-A4FR 139
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BB B4 » BREAN R

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5.

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR 5t A g A

BRBLATE MR (GEA) L TIREBRSH

(a) Finance costs (a) BIFEEAK
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREEFTT
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAFAEHEE ZRITERFE
repayable within five years 41,004 68,404
Interest on loans over five years AFEZ2ERFE 118 68
Interest on convertible AR ESFZFB (Hit24)
bonds (note 24) 2,960 3,507
Interest on senior notes (note 25) BREEFE (Hit25) 145,246 140,446
Bank charges R1TEBH 16,437 13,409
Finance costs B F& P 2R 205,765 225,834
(b)  Staff costs (b) BINAK
2015 2014
—ZE-RF —F-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Contributions to defined TE R FURIRET B 51
contribution retirement plans 104,088 96,035
Equity-settled share-based VARE 25 45 5 30 DARR (0 BB SZ B =2
payment expenses (note 27) (K1at27) - (615)
Salaries, wages and other benefits %4 + T& R H Iz 700,400 765,801
804,488 861,221
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5. BREADEF 2)
(c) Other items (c) HfEH
2015 2014
—E-IF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
Amortisation of intangible assets BT EE 11,829 10,920
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEE 157,523 149,100
Impairment losses DERIEN B!
— trade and other receivables — FEWE 5 AR SR K L B W sk 3B 15,095 (2,428)
— interest in associates i AN E - 34,293
— available-for-sale — A EES (H79(b))
securities (note 9(b)) 63,284 -
— goodwill (note 13) — B (Ka£13) 44,956 38,000
123,335 69,865
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE 73R E 18 H B (33,718) (10,152)
Operating lease charges in MEKEHEER
respect of properties
— minimum lease payments — R ERIA 301,250 287,374
— contingent rents — S AHE 461,623 522,915
762,873 810,289
Auditors’ remuneration % BREM N & 3,980 4,390
Rental income from investment REREMFEHHESWA
properties 4,245 4,620
Cost of inventories* FER A 9,402,177 10,539,538
# Cost of inventories includes RMB69,173,000 (2014: # FERABEREETRA TERBHAS

RMB53,971,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation expenses and operating lease charges,
which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for

each of types of expenses.

AR ERES HABHARYE,173,000
T (ZZT—M4F : AR¥S53,971,0007T) * 5%
SEINT AR S EA MR XM E5(b)E
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6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a)

REBBERZEHR

REWBERAZBIES

represents:
2015 2014
—T-AfF e S LK
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Current tax ARHAR 18
Provision for Hong Kong REFHAENEGHEE
profits tax for the year 30,816 54,514
Provision for Mainland China AN FE R B N it P 1S R B
income tax for the year 148,575 177,892
Provision for Taiwan and Macau AFE G E RIS H
income tax for the year 250 3,311
Under-provision in respect of BEFEBRETR
prior years 2,027 3,125
Sub-total Et 181,668 238,842
Deferred tax IERER IE
Origination and reversal of ERERELERED (Hi228)
temporary differences (note 28) (24,380) (14,992)
Sub-total INEH (24,380) (14,992)
Total st 157,288 223,850

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is exempted from income tax in the Cayman

Islands. In addition, subsidiaries located in jurisdictions i *

other than Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and Macau,

are not subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2015 is
calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the estimated

assessable profits for the year.

o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

The applicable income tax rate of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries is 25% in 2015 (2014: 25%).

The provision for Taiwan income tax for 2015 is calculated at
17% (2014: 17%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year end.

The provision for Macau income tax is calculated based on

progressive rates up to 12% and the assessable profits for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 12%).

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

6. HEBBERZAEH @

(a) HEWBRAZBHIEAS: (&)

MRZE—hF  AEEPBEAMEERE R E
BAEHEE25% (ZF—M4F : 25%) °

S REREMEHBEANFERGH R
/ﬁnﬂZ‘W%(_- —PO4F : 17%):1 5 -

B ERBEASE_T—AF+-_A=
+—HULEFEZERB G IERREI12% (ZF
—F  12%) 2 REFKRTE -

(b) BEMXEZERBRTE 2SR

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Al E AR

2015 2014
—E-HEF —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTIT
Profit before taxation FR 54 AT A 347,452 807,277

Notional tax on profit before taxation, MR AR S 2 BEIRIE -

calculated at the rates applicable to HEBREERZ

profits in the jurisdictions concerned A ERAR R E 141,232 217,848
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEBWA ZTIBZE (6,361) (9,705)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B X 2 BB 2 3,466 4,885
Under-provision in respect of prior years @7 FEEEENE 2,027 3,125
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised W AR ZFHIEEE 2 HEFLE 16,924 7,697
Actual tax expense BEERIERY 157,288 223,850
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7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

7.

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EEME

RIFBERRGOIEIB(NER AR (KEEE
MEER) ROIF2MFEZEEMEWT

Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other  to retirement
fee benefits  benefit plans Total
E A= i RIER
EEZHWe  REMAFE BE L5 Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%®TRn ARET:R
(note 26)
(Hiz26)
Year ended BHE-Z-1F
31 December 2015 TZA=+—HLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping REFEE 201 5,791 15 6,007
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKERE 100 2,847 - 2,947
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan EX i 100 2,011 15 2,126
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang SREEE 84 - - 84
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Mr. Cai Jianmin ERRESE 84 - - 84
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William )Vt 84 - - 84
Mr. Liu Xueling ZBEEE 84 - - 84
Total st 737 10,649 30 11,416
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7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7. EEME »
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’ and other  to retirement
fee benefits  benefit plans Total
e - 28 EORAER
EZe REMFE AR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT ARETT AREFIT
(note 26)
(Hiatoe)
Year ended HE_Z-NF
31 December 2014 TZA=T—-RHLEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhang Yuping KRBT R & 189 5,454 13 5,656
Mr. Huang Yonghua EKERE 95 2,781 13 2,889
Mr. Lee Shu Chung Stan FRIBLE 95 1,868 13 1,976
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Shi Zhongyang LREBEE 79 = = 79
Independent Non-executive Directors BV IFHITES
Mr. Cai Jianmin BEERLE 79 = = 79
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William )b 79 = = 79
Mr. Liu Xueling FEB LS 79 - - 79
Total Bt 695 10,103 39 10,837
Save as disclosed above, no directors’ remuneration has B EXFBEEN B2 ZE—HER_FT—

been paid or is payable by the Group during the two
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the two years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

During the two years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

ME+=—A=+—HILtFE  AEELETH
ENSENEEHNE - EFWEHRERRE N
BEIMBEE T AFEE_T-—NE+-A=

T RLEMEFEZMEZHE -

HEZZT—RAFER-T—NF+t=-A=+—H
HFE AEBVEAMENIENREBETE
EFREERFTAT (R TXHES) - tERN
AREE 7 REISERBER 2 ffE -
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8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three

(2014: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

8. EEHAL

EEB&ESHFALES =2 (22— HF MW
) REF EFMRWETRE - EHm A
(ZF—mEF : =5) AL ZHFMEFIT :

other two (2014: three) individuals are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-0F —ET—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Salaries and other emoluments He RAEMEE 2,744 3,701
Contributions to retirement RRFEFFT 2R
benefit plans 15 13
Bonuses TE4L 47,031 63,713
Share-based payments VARS 17 75 EE 0 S - (86)
49,790 67,341
The emoluments of the two (2014: three) individuals, other BEAEHZFEME ML (ZE—NE: =%) A+
than directors, with the highest emoluments are within the (ZEZEBKIN) Z2EBIENF & E -
following bands:
2015 2014
—Z2—-HF —T-mEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HKD BT AE AE
Nil — 1,000,000 21,000,000 - -

2,500,001 - 3,000,000

11,500,001 — 12,000,000
47,500,001 — 48,000,000
71,500,001 — 72,000,000

2,500,001-3,000,000

11,500,001-12,000,000
47,500,001-48,000,000
71,500,001-72,000,000
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9. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effect relating to other comprehensive
income

The foreign exchange loss suffered in 2015 by the Group’s
subsidiaries in mainland China on certain loans from their
Hong Kong holding companies which are recorded as
“investments in subsidiaries” in the holding company’s
financial statements is recognised in other comprehensive
income in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The related tax effect of RMB20,795,000 is credited to other
comprehensive income.

9. HMEHEWKA
(a) FEEMAZEBRANBEBZE

$%EPII9WEMT%“ T-RERKE
HEBERARNETE; AFEE’J?I\D@S?@ S

ZEBRARZMBEHRERNES [RNB AR 2K
B RAKRBEFEVBERRANEMEERA
TR o MEETIIER 2 AR %20,795,0005T A E
fib 2 E ek o

(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HMEEWBAEKETD (BREEH
including reclassification adjustments ﬁﬁﬁé’é%)
Available-for-sale securities: A EES
2015 2014
—ET-RF —me
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Changes in fair value recognised HRNER A EEE) (f1iE(16))
during the period (note 16) (64,499) 1,215
Reclassification adjustments for BHABRSAMBABS S5
amounts transferred to profit or
loss:
— impairment losses — BIEEE (B1:t4 - #15E5(c))
(note 4, note5(c)) 63,284 -
Net movement in the fair value RE M 2R ATER
reserve during the period ZHAR R ERFEEE)FE
recognised in other
comprehensive income (1,215) 1,215
During 2015, the changes in fair value of RMB64,499,000 RZ-ZT—H%F ' AR EEE) AKK64,499,000
are determined based on the share price of the available- JTTHREZZT—AF+ZA=+—H2ZJ#HH
for-sale securities as at 31 December 2015. Given there has BEFREET - ENEF A 1 EXNRIERK
been a significant decline in the fair value of the securites &' RZE—HAFFERTERECETHN
below cost, an objective evidence of impairment had been & - Bt - REMEZEKRAANER 2 Rt EIE
identified at the end of 2015, and therefore the cumulative A R® 63,284,000 tE AEREN D EEFNK
loss of RMB63,284,000 recognised in other comprehensive B e

income has been reclassified from equity to profit or loss for
the year.
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10.
(@)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB144,868,000 (2014: RMB504,220,000) and the
weighted average of 4,779,400,342 ordinary shares (2014:
4,799,648,231 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10. BRER
(a) BRELEF

EREARBFTREBEARATRGIEE AEE R
FIAR®144,868,0000T (ZZT—MF : AR
504,220,000 ) K & A B 217 & i AR 0 4E T
IR H4,779,400,3420% & ﬁﬂx (ZB—py 4
4,799,648, 23 1R LMAR) 51 E « sTEWT -

() EBERNEFIRE

2015 2014

—E-HF — P4

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BZBEETEEK 4,799,130,959 4,802,906,959
Effect of shares repurchased fRiniEE 2 P&

(note 29(c) (i) (Bt EE29(c)(ii) (16,676,373) (3,258,728)

Effect of shares purchased

RBR ) REETEIEE

under share award scheme &tz 52 (8,054,244) =
Weighted average number of Rt+=-—A=+—8”
ordinary shares at 31 December EE AR N HE 15 I 4,779,400,342 4,799,648,231

(b)
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
(diluted) of RMB144,868,000 (2014: RMB504,220,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
of 4,779,400,342 shares (2014: 4,799,648,231 shares).

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 has not included
the potential effects of the deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s shares option scheme for nil consideration
into ordinary shares as it has anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share amount during the year.
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(b) EBREBEEF

FREBRNSBDREARRRNIEE AR
153m T (B58) A R %144,868,0007T (ZF —
U4 : AR¥504,220,0007T) &8 2 & iR

A5 I 84,779, 4oo 342/ (ZZF — U ¢
4,799,648,2310%) 5
HE_T—REN_T-—NE+-_A=+—H

JtiFZfoiﬁ%?@%lJi%’EZa%EI?ﬁ%@%%
ARRRIBBRAETE TRIFRTRNEBEERS
BB BEEREARBRIERAIRRES LR
REBREBEZE  BIBAEREHFAERK
EXBNCHEAERBERE -
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11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER 1. REYE - HEYE - BER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT EiR]
Office
equipment and
Land and Leasehold Motor other fixed Construction [nvestment
buildings  improvements vehicles assets in progress Sub-Total properties Total
HOERER
THREEY HERE AE  HtETEE RIR it RENE ETEESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 RZE-RF-A-A 935,142 415,048 26,036 143,791 297,433 1,817,450 264,099 2,081,549
Exchange adjustments X% (375) (299) 20 (1,638) - (2.292) (4,597) (6,889)
Additions BE = 42,871 2,19 20,787 41,057 106,911 - 106,911
Transfer from BERIREA
construction in
progress - 27,599 - 1,765 (29,364) - - -
Disposals e (1509) (24,175) (1272) (11,234) = (38,190) (208,541) (246,731)
At 31 December 2014 R=F-BE+ZA=+-HR
and 1 January 2015 —E2-7%-pf-H 933,258 461,044 26,980 153,471 309,126 1,883,879 50,961 1,934,840
Exchange adjustments ~ EH#Z 3,314 1,933 1,314 1,121 - 7682 - 7682
Additions #E 71,049 30,806 32,931 20,001 60,617 215,404 - 215,404
Additions through ERNENEAAEE
acquisition of
subsidiaries - 328 189 3,367 - 3,884 - 3,884
Transfer from HERTREA
construction in
progress 1,285 10,481 - 116 (11,882) - - -
Disposals i - (18591) (1819) (18,695) - (39,105) - (39,105)
At31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-H 1,008,906 486,001 59,595 159,381 357,861 2,071,744 50,961 2,122,705
Accumulated depreciation:  Z5HTE :
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NF-F-H (88,174) (200,103) (16,008) (60,402) - (364,687) (21,395) (386,082)
Exchange adjustments ~ EX % (8) 50 (24) 1,421 - 1,445 108 1,553
Chargefor the year  EEHE (28,229) (80,019) (4,659) (32,326) = (145,233) (3,867) (149,100)
Written back on disposals  HE& 567 16,891 984 10,823 - 29,265 15,479 44744
At 31 December 2014  WZE-ME+ZA=+-BR
and 1January 2015 —Z-RE—f-F (115,844) (263,181) (19,707) (80,478) - (479.210) (9.675) (488,885)
Exchange adjustments  [E 5 5% (568) (1,129) (666) (42) - (2,405) - (2,405)
Chargeforthe year  E17E (35,206) (85,969) (7267) (27003) - (155,535) (1,988) (157523)
Written back on disposals  HE&F - 18,537 1,624 10,506 - 30,667 - 30,667
At31 December 2015 R-F-RET-A=t-A (151,708) (331,742) (26,016) (97017) - (606,483) (11,669) (618,146)
Net book value: BEFE:
At31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-H 857,198 154,259 33,579 62,364 357,861 1,465,261 39,298 1,504,559
At31 December 2014 RZE-WE+-A=1-H 817,414 197,863 7213 72,993 309,126 1,404,669 41,286 1,445,955
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11.

(i)

(iiif)

(iv)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Land owned by the Group is located in Taiwan,
which has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not
depreciated. The carrying amount of the land located
in Taiwan as at 31 December 2015 is RMB6,824,000
(2014: RMB6,793,000).

The buildings owned by the Group are located in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.

As at 31 December 2015, land and buildings in
Taiwan with carrying amounts of RMB10,253,000 were
pledged to banks as security for certain loan facilities
(see note 22).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group was in
the process of obtaining a property ownership
certificate for one building in Taiyuan with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,427,000 (2014:
RMB11,733,000).

(iv)

REWME - HbW¥E - BER
=2

AEEHEBZLHAREE  BEER
FERAFH BRHTYERE R-_FT—A
F+-_A=+—H8 URaEz Lk
mE A AR6824000T (ZZF—NW
F: AR¥6,793,0007T) °

REEREE 2REMNRTFRHAL - B
BRAEE -
RZZBE—RAFTZA=+—8" URAE
EBRT (A A A R%10,253,0007T 2 L ib
MEFEEARBETERZERMEMR T
RIT (2FME22) ©

R_ZE—AF+-_A=+—8 ££H
BEREFES—BUNRARDEME#
BeRE ZWEZEEENRAR
#11,427,000C (ZZE—UF : ARM
11,733,0007T) °

Investment properties (v) &EWE
2015 2014
—ZT-RF —F-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBFIT
Net book value of investment properties %& ¥ > BEEFE 39,298 41,286
Fair value of investment properties KEWMEZ DR 102,210 97,576

As at 31 December 2015, the investment properties
located in Wuhan and Urumgi in Mainland China were
rented out under terms of operating leases. The fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 December
2015, as determined by reference to recent market
transactions of comparable properties, amounted
to RMB102,210,000 (2014: RMB97,576,000). The
fair value of the investment properties has not been
evaluated by an independent external valuer.
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12. BEEE
Trademarks ~ Trademarks Agency
with indefinite with finite rights and Software Favorable
useful lives useful lives patents licences  lease terms Total
BEEER BEERR IR
EH B EHBE REFE  BHEHE BERN @5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-H 11,793 8,744 1,199 35,656 74,988 132,380
Exchange adjustments B AR 41 - - (32) = 9
Additions during the year FRiEE - - - 454 - 454
Disposal during the year ERE = = = = (13,774) (13,774)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+-A=1-BR
1 January 2015 “2-1%-A-H 11,834 8,744 1,199 36,078 61,214 119,069
Exchange adjustments ERHRE 734 - - 20 - 754
Additions during the year EREE - - - 5,614 - 5,614
Disposal during the year FRLE - - (1,199) (569) (1,306) (3,074)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=1+-H 12,568 8,744 - 41,143 59,908 122,363
Accumulated amortisation: ZiTEE
At 1 January 2014 R=Z-mE-A-H = (6,310) (1,199) (9,122) (5,956) (22,587)
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - - 19 - 19
Charge for the year ERER - (619) - (6,815) (3,486) (10,920)
Written back on disposal HERD - - - - 1,020 1,020
At 31 December 2014 and \_E-NFE+-A=+-HEK
1 January 2015 “2-1%5-f-A - (6,929) (1,199) (15,918) (8,422) (32,468)
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - - - @ - 2
Charge for the year FREHE - (621) - (7400) (3,808) (11,829)
Written back on disposal HEAD - - 1,199 - 493 1,692
At 31 December 2015 RZE-REFZA=1—H - (7550) - (23,320) (11,737) (42,607)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RET-A=1-H 12,568 1,194 - 17823 48,171 79,756
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-PE+=A=1-B 11,834 1,815 - 20,160 52,792 86,601
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charges for trademarks with finite useful
lives and patents and software licences are included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

The amortisation charge for the favorable lease terms is
included in “Distribution costs” in the consolidated income
statement.

The basis of impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing trademarks with indefinite useful lives is as
follows:

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value in use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rate and growth rates. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the two-year
financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the
following eight years based on estimated annual growth
rates in sales of 5% to 10% (2014: 5% to 10%), a growth
rate in gross profit ratio of 0% (2014: 0%), and a discount
rate of 10% (2014: 10%). The growth rates are determined
by management based on the performance of the
relevant cash-generating units and their estimated future
developments in the market.
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13. GOODWILL 13. HE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 and RZZE—WOFE—HA—HRK
31 December 2014 —E—NE+=-_A=+—H 840,521
Additions = 12,657
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 853,178
Accumulated impairment losses: ZHREEE :
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—NFE+_A=+—BK
1 January 2015 —E-—hF—H—H (38,000)
Impairment charged during the year FRFHRRE (44,956)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H (82,956)
Carrying amount: IRMEE :
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+_-_A=+—H 770,222
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NF+_-_A=+—H 802,521
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13. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to places of operations and reportable
segments as follows:

13. BE (&)

SERECREELAENZRERNR

BEIETARERETIZEMHR2ZRD
EAEE < REEL RN ¢

2015 2014

— —T-mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Retail — Mainland China TE - R 243,473 256,584
Retail - Hong Kong TE - BB 171,163 171,163
Retail — Taiwan TE-—/aE 22,654 22,654
Retail — Harvest Max TE - 2% 271,788 303,633
All others FrB H A 61,144 48,487
770,222 802,521

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are the
discount rate and revenue/gross profit growth rate. The
Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the two-
year financial budgets and extrapolates cash flows for the
following three to five years based on estimated annual
average growth rates in sales ranging from 2.6% to 14.8%
(2014: 0% to 21%), growth rates in gross profit ratio ranging
from 0% to 3% (2014: 0% to 2%), and a discount rate
ranging from 15% to 16.5% (2014: 15% to 16.5%). The
growth rates are determined by management based on the
performance of the relevant cash-generating units and their
estimated future development.
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13. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of
the decrease in number of PRC tourists visiting Hong Kong,
the business of Harvest Max segment was affected and
more selling expenses were incurred to generate revenue.
Accordingly, its operating result deteriorated as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2014. Management estimated
the recoverable amount of those related assets which
generated cash inflows independently from other assets of
the Group (“the cash-generating unit”). As at 31 December
2015, the carrying value of the cash-generating unit has
been reduced to its recoverable amount of approximately
RMB660,986,000 and an impairment loss of RMB31,845,000
was recognised in respect of the cash-generating unit which
has been allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
goodwill. Any adverse change in the assumptions used in
the calculation of the recoverable amount would result in
further impairment losses.

As a result of the prolonged construction period of certain
municipal infrastructure improvement projects, consumer
traffic of certain stores in the PRC has been severely
affected and the profitability of these stores for 2015
declined compared to 2014. Management estimated the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amount of respective cash-
generating unit has been reduced to its recoverable amount
of approximately RMB461,424,000 and an impairment loss
of RMB10,155,000 was recognised in respect of the cash-
generating unit which has been allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the goodwill. Any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount
would result in further impairment losses.

In addition, due to the closure of certain retail shops, an
impairment loss of RMB2,956,000 was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2015 to reduce the carrying
amount of the goodwill allocated to these retail shops.

Goodwill of RMB12,657,000 arising from the acquisition of a
subsidiary (note 31) was recorded during the year ended 31
December 2015.

13. BE (&)
CEHMECRSEASE U2 ME A
(%)
BE-_T-—RFE+_A=+—ALFE @R
SEHREEEARRD WO BB
SEE. AAIGKNELTSMEEHA
A CSEERBE —_E—NFE+ A=+
—ALEEERE CTRECRZSHEEE (OB
j%ﬁﬁlﬁm%ﬁﬁiﬁéﬁAUﬁﬁéi

Bf))) 2 EERIEL AR - R_F—AF
T-A=1t—8 REEAEMUNKRAED M
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RE QA 2z
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries FXREHINEAREEHXE  EEHXABEEFEKN
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilites FZ2ZMBRAT G - BRIEZSEIER T

of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless RMRHERIHATREAR -

otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

gL 1:Pi0
Place of Group's Particulars of
incorporation effect Held by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activity
E R 5Bz AAAR HREAR BETR
ARER 3 ERER =2} &R BRERFE FEXEK
Elegant Jewellery Hong Kong 100% 100% - 5,000,000 shares  Retail of watches
Holding Limited and jewellery
—EREREARAA &A 50000008 F&R
KETE
AFENERERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 500,000,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Shenzhen Hengdeli") HKD1 each of watches
(MRI=EH ) PR R 500,000,000 FHTE
BREBIAT  REE
2RI
HENFERERERAA Mainland China 95% - 95% 1,000,000,000 shares of Retail and wholesale
(“Shanghai Xinyu") RMB1 each of watches
([ E&%F]) RE R, 1,000,000,000% FHEE
BREEAREIT  R#tE
213
N IXERNFHEREGERLA Mainland China 60% - 60% 50,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Suzhou Xinyu”) RMB1 each
([&MEE]) PER, 50,000,000 FHEE
BREBEARBIT
ZIR1A
MEERRTBRAF Mainland China 70% = 70% 30,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Henan Fuhao”) RMB1 each
(MEExl) PEA, 30,000,000 FHEE
BREBARBIT
pd) )
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

14. RMBAR 2 HEsR (@)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEREDL
Place of Group's Particulars of
incorporation effect Held by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company  subsidiaries paid up capital ~ Principal activity
ER 58z HARR HWEAR BEAR
NAEH EEhH BRER 2] BE BREARE IEXH
BMNFTFERERAF Mainland China 51% = 51% 5,000,000 shares of ~ Retail of watches
(“Wenzhou Xinyu") RMB1 each
(DRMERF]) FEIRH, 50000008 FHIE
BREBARBIT
ZIRIA
RENTF-BEEARAA Mainland China 60% = 60% 50,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Wuhan Xinyu") RMB1 each
(MREHT) PEN, 50,000,000 FHZE
BREBARBIT
LR
EMTHAERREERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 156,500,000 shares of ~ Decoration and
(“Guangzhou Yadi") HKD1 each packaging
(M) PERH, 156,500,0008 R R A%
SREEVET
213
ZH=HEFERLA Mainland China 70% = 70% 20,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Anhui Sanxin”) RMB1 each
(I=@=#]) eI 20,000,000 FHEE
SRAEAREIT
ZIRIA
TR BRI BEERETAR Mainland China 55% - 55% 156,800,000 shares of  Retail and wholesale
(“Beijing Hengdeli") RMB1 each of watches
(MER=EH)) PER, 156,800,000 ~FHEEERME
BRAEARBIT
bl
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEREDL

14. RMBAR 2 HEs® (@)

Place of Group's Particulars of
incorporation effect Held by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company  subsidiaries paid up capital ~ Principal activity
AR AEEe HAREY AWELT BRTR
NEER EXHE ERER BE K5 BREARE IEXH
HFESEMRE (F) BRAR Mainland China 100% = 100% 421,500,000 shares of  Investment holding
(“Xinyu Hengdeli investment HKD1 each
(Shenzhen)”)
(MFHFzHENERE (RI)]) RE R 421,500,008  REHER
BREEIET
2Rt
BERAERTARAT Taiwan 80% = 80% 155,820,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Jing Guang Tang") NTD1 each
(leERLE]) =) | 155,820,000k FHEIE
SREENKIT
ZIRAA
METEIRABRAR Mainland China 65% = 65% 50,000,000 shares of  Investment holding
(“Xinjiang Hengdeli Investment”) RMB1 each
([#EFEHRE)) PEAL 50,000,0008% REER
BREBARBIT
i)
BER FSERERAR Mainland China 100% - 100% 126,000,000 shares of ~ Wholesale
(“Ningbo Shangheng") HKD1 each
(Ext=]) REAH, 126,000,000  #:%
SREEVET
b ()
KERAEEERAERAR Mainland China 60% - 60% 20,000,000 shares of  Manufacturing and
(“Zhuhai Nivada”) RMB1 each retail of watches
([eR4E)) PE A, 20,0000008 FHREERTE
BREBARBIT
ZIRIA
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

14. RMBAR 2 HEsR (@)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEREDL
Place of Group's Particulars of
incorporation effect Held by the Held by issued and
Name of company and business interest ~ Company  subsidiaries paid up capital ~ Principal activity
ER 58z HARR HWEAR BEAR
NAEH EEhH BRER 2] BE BREARE IEXH
Alpha Key Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1share of USD1each  Investment holding
(“Alpha Key")
RRREERAA ([mE AERRES RERAGEIET REER
ZIRIA
Hengdeli Giant Dragon Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1share of USD1 each  Investment holding
(“Hengdeli G|an Dragon )
ZEHNERARAR ABRTES RERAEIET REER
(= T%IJEE‘EJ) 2RI
Xinyu Hengdeli Investments Limited BVI 100% 100% - 1share of USD1 each  Investment holding
("Hengdeli Investments”)
MFFEIREABRAR EBRERES RBREEIXT RERR
(MFHEMRE]) 213
Harvest Max Holdings Limited BVI 75.54% - 75.54% 37,066 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Harvest Max") USD1 each and jewellery
LRERERAR ([24]) EERRES 37066MRERAE FERRKEZE
[ESwd )
HETEIRNERAR Mainland China 88.59% - 88.59% 22,515,930 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Nanchang Hengdeli") RMB1 each and jewellery
(MmE=EH)) PR 225159308 FHERAETE
BREBARBIT
ZIRAD
HRIEFEEBRAR Mainland China 60% = 60% 150,000,000 shares of  Retail of watches
(“Nanjing Shunxu”) RMB1 each
(FaRIER]) HEA 150,000,000 FHEE
SHRAEARBIT
b))
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The d

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All of the subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China
are domestic enterprises, except for Shenzhen Hengdeli,
Shanghai Xinyu, Guangzhou Yadi, Xinyu Hengdeli
investment (Shenzhen) and Ningbo Shangheng which are
foreign invested enterprises.

irectors are of the view that the Group has no

individually material non-controlling interest for the year

ended

Cash

31 December 2015.

and cash equivalents and deposits with bank are

held in China and are subject to local exchange control

RB AR 2R (&)

# BRI =AM ~ LiEaT - BN - B
ZERERE (FEID) e EEAANE R E A
2EHN > B AR v B A M S T ST A B A )

BE-F-AFT-A=T—ALFE EF
BRI AR S BEAD IR S -

BeRBRFEYUARBRTETRGERRF
- W RE HSNE B BRI R E o bR IE R IR

regulations. These local exchange control regulations BN - &b INE E $) GG ¥ & © E HBIR &
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the country,  BRHl o
other than through normal dividends.
15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 15. REELQRZER
2015 2014
—E-RHE —T—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
T HEEEEERR AR T HEREERR AR
(“Shanghai Ruihengqi”) ([ E8m=H]) 11,957 11,462
R FFHERBRETLF IR FEhmERAERETEAA
(“Beijing Hengrui”) (Mt==tw1) 42,243 43,961
Others Hith 4,000 =
58,200 55,423
All of the above joint ventures are unlisted corporate A LA EARHABRTISERENIELTL

entities whose quoted market price is not available and are

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financi

al statements.
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 15. REE AT 2L (&)
AN

The following list contains the particulars of material joint TXR&FHJ|EBAEZL RN AIFE

ventures:
Proportion of ownership interest
fEREAL
Form of Place of Group’s
business incorporation effective  Held by the Heldby  Particulars of issued
Name of joint ventures structure and business interest Company  subsidiaries and paid up capital ~ Principal activity
£ ERE A5Bz  AALH HE BRAR
RELREH REER EXiE ERER BE  LARE BREARE TEEEK
Shanghai Ruihengai Incorporated ~ Mainland China 50% - 50% Registered capital ~ Sale and distribution
RMB30,000,000 of watches
w7 HiEE lailal AMERARY  FHRHEE
30,000,000 RA#
Beijing Hengrui Incorporated ~ Mainland China 50% = 50% Registered capital  Property management
RMB40,000,000 and leasing
TRFh hEE HEA AMERARE WxER

40000000  REE
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

15. REEDNTIZERE (&)

Summarised financial information of the material joint A2 RAIZHBEERHE @t RRTMNERE
ventures, adjusted for any differences in accounting JHABERGEMBREAANEDE ZHEREMN
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amounts in the T :
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below:
2015
—E-EF
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihengqi Hengrui Total
tEm=H TR Hob
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYETF T ARMEET T ARHEETF T
Gross amounts #azE
Current assets RENVEE 26,629 20,385 47,014
Non-current assets IERBEE 4,300 64,454 68,754
Current liabilities mBEE (6,974) (354) (7,328)
Non-current liabilities ERB A E (41) - (41)
Equity P 23,914 84,485 108,399
Included in the above assets st A LB ERBEE
and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 20,696 20,378 41,074
Revenue Uz 45,103 6,000 51,103
Profit after tax Bi1& s 990 1,916 2,906
Total comprehensive income 2HEUA B 990 1,916 2,906
Included in above profits: A EHUEF
Depreciation and amortisation  #78 K # ¢ 1,245 2,440 3,685
Interest income FEUWA 275 171 446
Income tax expense FriSfi X 255 1,075 1,330
Reconciled to the Group’s AEBREERTZ
interest in joint ventures REHHER
Gross amounts of net assets BEFEER 23,914 84,485 108,399
Group’s effective interest REBEZERFE 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets KEIF’E{EEE%‘E&
and carrying amount in NGRS GRS A
the consolidated financial BREE
statements 11,957 42,243 54,200

162 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 i o i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F BAHEEASN - EEEAARBIEERL)

15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 15. MEE AT 2R (£)
2014
—E—OF
Shanghai Beijing
Ruihenggqi Hengrui Total
EEm=H IER=In st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREET T ARBTTT
Gross amounts g
Current assets mENEE 26,926 21,367 48,293
Non-current assets IERBEE 5,942 66,894 72,836
Current liabilities mEAE (9,685) (338) (10,023)
Non-current liabilities FEmEBIE (259) = (259)
Equity - X 22,924 87,923 110,847
Included in the above assets st A FMEEREE
and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents HehREeEEY 21,743 21,360 43,103
Revenue W25 44 836 4,500 49 336
Profit after tax 18w A 1,702 752 2,454
Total comprehensive income 2ER AL 1,702 752 2,454
Included in above profits: FPA s -
Depreciation and amortisation — #T% K # ¢ 2,098 1,129 3,227
Interest income B WA 248 73 321
Income tax expense Frigfim = 430 687 1,117
Reconciled to the Group’s AEBREE AT Z
interest in joint ventures EREER
Gross amounts of net assets BEFEERE 22,924 87,923 110,847
Group’s effective interest REBECERFE 50% 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets REERGEEFER
and carrying amount in RiEa W BmERANZ
the consolidated financial BREE
statements 11,462 43,961 55,423
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15. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 15. REE AT 2% (2)

=
Information of a joint venture that is not individually material: BRITERELE AT ZER :
2015
—E-IF
RMB’000
AREF T
Carrying amount of an immaterial joint venture #GAMBEHRERATEAHE N A2
in the consolidated financial statements BRMEE 4,000
Amounts of the group’s share of this joint REBEGEZEEATIRARFE
venture’s profit from continuing operation REER RN &5
Profit or loss from continuing operation REFE G LR 2 WL BB (1,042)
Post-tax profit or loss from REKRIEE SR B =R
discontinued operation -
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEA -
Total comprehensive income EHEURALFE (1,042)
16. OTHER INVESTMENTS 16. Hftir¥&E
2015 2014
—E—RE —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT
Available-for-sale securities At EES
(note 33(e)(i)) (#15£33(e)(i)) 61,163 71,065
Unlisted investment, at cost EEMRE - ERAE 2,324 797
63,487 71,862
Movements of the available-for-sale securities: A e 2R A
2015
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREET T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 71,065
Addition in the year FERNRE 47290
Changes in fair value during the year FRAREES (H779(b))
(note 9(b)) (64,499)
Exchange adjustment ME X SR 7,307
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 61,163
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16. OTHER INVESTMENTS (Continued)

On 23 April 2015, the Group purchased 200,000,000 shares
in O Luxe Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ming Fung
Jewellery Group Limited, “O Luxe”) at a total consideration of
HKD60,000,000 (equivalent to RMB47,290,000) in response
to O Luxe’s open offer of its shares at a subscription price of
HKDO.3 per share.

17. INVENTORIES

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

16. HMERE @)
RZE—RFNA=-+=H " AEBEUARE
60,000,000/ 7T (8% A R#47,290,0007T)
E%,azoo 000,000/% B3 +3E R AR A7) (AITE
ERESEBRAA  [ByA)) R K
@ﬁ’gxiﬁum BETROIBITARBEER

,f/‘\ ®

17. EE
Z3=y:

(a) RESFBRRRFERRE:

2015 2014

—E-AEF —E—pE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Raw materials R 45,675 44,145
Work in progress ER S 36,483 30,174
Finished goods RIBK o 6,294,192 6,538,374
6,376,350 6,612,693

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) MHERBFAXAFTABZZFEHE

recognised as an expense and included in DATUT -
profit or loss is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-AEF —E—pE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T ARBTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold & FSEREE 9,392,961 10,551,490
Increase/(reversal)of inventory FEREGEM,/(BE)
provision 9,216 (11,952)
9,402,177 10,539,538
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. FEWE B RFA R HEWFE
2015 2014

—E-REF —mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 977,642 1,053,380
Less: allowance for doubtful debts — § : RERE (18,808) (3,393)
958,834 1,049,987

Prepayments and deposits A FIERES 154,139 333,381
Other receivables H fib fE U i E 212,105 226,789
Amount due from joint ventures FEE Z N RIRIE 4,097 5,679
1,329,175 1,615,836

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FrA U E 5 8E 7N 2 E 4 fE YT X185 78 B —

recovered within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for

FRYE -

(a) BRERTDHT

FEYE BRRRREDIT (EMNBRREEE) 0

doubtful debts) is as follows: o
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-ImF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Current K0 H 843,761 964,427
Less than 1 month past due BE DR —{E A 95,863 49,339
1 to 3 months past due BEA—==1EA 12,763 13,376
More than 3 months but less than @B =EAEBLR+ @A
12 months past due 4,367 17,213
More than 12 months past due wEAFRE T+ (@A 2,080 5,632
Amounts past due PeIp=EEgI=] 115,073 85,560
958,834 1,049,987
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the

date of billing. Further details regarding the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 33(a).

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly (see note 1(1)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

18. BWEZRAKHMEWNKIE
(#)

(@) BRERDHT (&)

JEWE SRR ABFAE R BRETS0E90H 25 -

REBEEBOR 2 #— S HFHNMEE33(a) ©

(b) EWEZRIE

BR IEAR R BI{E 4 B 1R Y [ 7 BE R IR /Y /] BE ME A
K SRAAEEeNBEREZEKE SRR
ZREREER  ETARKEARNE " AE
BARRE R 18 B N EUE 5 BRSSP s (2
FHEE() (1) °

FRARBRRFEOES (BIEER R KR EIE
D)

2015 2014

—ZE-fF —FMmF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTIT

At 1 January w—A—H 3,393 5,821

Impairment loss recognised B R REEE 15,689 322
Reversal of impairment loss B [El I Bl 2 R E e R

upon receipts (159) (2,750)

Uncollectible amounts written off AU (B 6 5B 2 8 (115) -

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 18,808 3,393
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

18. BEWEZRARHMERNKE
(#)
(c) WERENEIKE SRR

REERITEARARESE T REZEKES
R BRI

follows:

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREETFTT
Neither past due nor impaired K@ BT AR RE 843,761 964,427
Less than 1 month past due B B DR —1{& B 95,326 49,339
1 to 3 months past due wmE—Z=={EAH 12,751 13,376

More than 3 months but less than — @HIBBE=1EABLHA+ @A
12 months past due 4,108 17,117
More than 12 months past due mAEER T @A 1,617 5,452
113,802 85,284
957,563 1,049,711

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relating
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relating
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.
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19. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

19. SBTER

2015 2014
—E—-hF —T—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T ARETTT
Deposits with original maturities REERBBE=[A ZFR
over three months - 113,000

Deposits with original maturities over three months are time
deposits with banks in mainland China.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

REBEBE=EA 2 TR FRRF B A

RITZ EHIFH

20. BERBEEEY
(a) BREekBZEYERE

The Group
AEH

2015 2014
—ZE-AF —FT-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBEBS 1,910,351 1,968,065
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20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continuved) 20. RERBEZEY (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)) KRBAER R ELEFRSEESMNE
generated from operations:
2015 2014
—E-AF —E-mEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AREET T ARBTT
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 347,452 807,277
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Depreciation e 5(c) 157,523 149,100
Amortisation of intangible assets A 5(c) 11,829 10,920
Finance costs B 78 K 2N 5(a) 189,328 212,425
Dividend income from unlisted REIFLEMREH
investments AR B U A 4 (25,443) (33,494)
Interest income MBS A 4 (16,023) (16,071)
Net income of repurchase of EEELEEN
senior notes WA S5 (833) -
Share of profits of joint ventures BihEERaln 15 (411) (1,388)
Share of profits less losses of FE(LEEE A A
associates i K R B 18 - 1,521
Impairment of interest in R—EEE R F 2
an associate ERE 4 - 34,293
Impairment of available-for-sale Al E B AFRE
securities 4 63,284 -
Impairment of goodwill EENERED 13 44,956 38,000
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HERBREEEZ W& FE 4 (213) (113,976)
Equity-settled share-based DA E - IR B
payment expenses XX 5(b) - (615)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE 4 1,042 =
Operating profit before changes in EEESEFHATN
working capital Feg=—preg 772,491 1,087,992
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEERL (8 m) 352,767 (289,484)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JE UL E 5 BR B H A i Uk
other receivables IR (38 ) 258,511 (251,653)
Decrease in trade and BB SRR R B pE
other payables IR (279,890) (55,526)
Cash generated from RETHABRE
operating activities 1,103,879 491,329
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ENESBRAREMENIE
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBETIT
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI 1,544,354 1,840,525
Other payables and accrued H At FE AT FRIE &2

expenses FEETEA 342,188 343,301
Advance receipts from customers BEIBFIE 75,727 56,383
1,962,269 2,240,209

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade payables based on invoice date, is as follows: BTN

RBERKR - REZBHFARAE SRR ZER

2015 2014

—E-RF —F-IF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBFIT

Within 1 month — @B 890,850 985,262
Over 1 month but less than BiE—EAELR

3 months ={@A 627,792 814,352
Over 3 months but less than HmE={EAELR

12 months +—1@A 12,778 18,626

Over 1 year Him—F 12,934 22,285

1,544,354 1,840,525
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22. BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2015, the bank loans were repayable as

22. RITER
R-E—RE+-_A=+—80 EEBEHRTE

follows: A
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Within 1 year or on demand —FAHIHFEK 704,374 991,831
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMENAN 404,306 333,462
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBBRAER 145,562 157,914
After 5 years FF% 2,600 3,132
552,468 494,508
1,256,842 1,486,339

Certain of the Group’s bank loan facilities are subject
to the fulfillment of covenants imposing certain specific
performance requirements on the Group and a minimum
shareholding requirement on the Group’s major shareholder.
If the Group were to breach the covenant, bank loans
drawn down under such facilities with a total amount of
RMB418,900,000 (2014: RMB723,328,000) would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with such covenants and at 31 December 2015,
the Group had complied with the covenants.
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22. BANK LOANS (Continued) 22. |RITER &)
At 31 December 2015, the bank loans were secured as WR—_ZE—FHE+—-A=+—H $£78Z8IK
follows: BT
2015 2014
=% ik
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFIT
Bank loans within one year or —FRNHIREKEED
on demand RITER
— Secured — B E 487 496
- Unsecured — 703,887 991,335
704,374 991,831
Bank loans after one year —FREENRITER
— Secured — G 4,547 5,011
— Unsecured — R 547,921 489,497
552,468 494 508
1,256,842 1,486,339

At 31 December 2015, the secured bank loans are all R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—"8 UAEEHHE
drawn down under certain bank facilities secured by BEEEA £A AR®10,253,0007T (ZZ— M
mortgages over certain land and buildings and investment 4 : A R#10,282,0007T) A& F i R iEF
properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying value of RIEEWENIZBIEEFNE THETEEET
RMB10,253,000 (2014: RMB10,282,000). WA ERRITERE 2 HREM -
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23. PROVISIONS

Provision for guaranteed profits

23. BE
REHF 2 BB

RMB’000

ARBTT

At 1 January 2015 R-—ZE—RHF—HF—H 94,668
Settlement of provisions HEEEE (97,602)
Exchange adjustment PE 5 2,934

At 31 December 2015

RZE—RF+=-_A=+—8H -

On 13 April 2012, the Group completed an equity exchange
transaction with O Luxe, pursuant to which the Group sold
its equity interest in OMAS International S.A. (“OMAS”) to
O Luxe in exchange for 666,666,667 of O Luxe's shares. In
respect of the acquisition, the Group committed to make a
compensation payment to O Luxe, if the accumulated net
profit of OMAS for a 3-year period as set forth in the relevant
agreement was not achieved. Since this profit target was
not achieved, the Group made the compensation payment
during 2015 in accordance with the respective contractual
agreement.

24. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 20 October 2010, the Company issued the HKD
Settled 2.5% Convertible Bonds due 2015 (the “2015
Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HKD2,500,000,000. The 2015 Convertible Bonds are listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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TZENRERRRZS Bt - NEERRY
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24. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component and the equity
component of the 2015 Convertible Bonds during the year is
set out below:

24, TEARES &)

FR —E-BETRBESNEEHS RE
HHHHBBRIIMT -

Liability Equity
component component Total
BERS RS EB D et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

As at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mF—A—H 76,104 2,296 78,400
Interest charged during the year  FRFHEFR & 3,507 - 3,507
Interest paid during the year FRERFIE (1,870) = (1,870)
Foreign currency translation SNEME Z R
difference 264 - 264
As at 31 December 2014 and R-E—NFE+_A
1 January 2015 =+—BR-ZE—RF
—H—H 78,005 2,296 80,301
Interest charged during the year  FRFHER B 2,960 - 2,960
Redemption of Convertible Bonds & Bk &5 (82,047) (2,296) (84,343)
Interest paid during the year FRERFIE (1,946) - (1,946)
Foreign currency translation HNFEHRE ZEE
difference 3,028 - 3,028
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+=-A
ET—E - - -

In 2015, the Group redeemed all the outstanding
2015 Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal of
RMB77,834,000 for a total sum of RMB82,047,000.

RZZE—RGF AEBEBUNEHARK
82,047,000t B Bl KN & 2 5 B A K &
77,834,000 FT B M ARITE T —RF A #
fRI&H o
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25. SENIOR NOTES

In January 2013, the Company issued 6.25% senior
notes due in 2018 in the aggregate principal amount of
United States Dollars(*USD”) 350,000,000 (“the Notes”),
which are listed on the Exchange. The Notes are interest-
bearing at 6.25% per annum and payable semi-annually in
arrears. The Notes will mature on 29 January 2018, unless
redeemed earlier in accordance with the terms of the Notes.
The net proceeds, after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately USD343,969,622 (RMB
equivalent: 2,158,949,000).

Pursuant to the terms of the Notes, the Notes are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to limitations on
indebtedness and certain transactions of the Group. The
Company regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. The Group has complied with the imposed senior
notes covenants for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company may redeem part or all of the Notes or, upon
the occurrence of certain events, the Company should make
an offer to purchase all outstanding portions of the Notes at
a price specified in the terms of the Notes.

The movement of the Notes is set out below:

25. BREE

RZZE—=F—F ARARETLLBRHEL
350,000,000 T ([E L)) R=ZF — \F EI
H26.25%BEEE ([EE])  ZEZENE
RET LW B ZFEBE6.25% BAEEFEY
e BRIFREZEETIRATED - TZEB
RZE—NF—A=Z+HhBEH - RIOBEE
BITR AR - PSSR IEFEEA A343,969,6227%
7T (FRER ARE2,158,949,0007T) °

REZB 2GR BRAFABERFRHIMNR
HMBRAREEETRHEXE > HAEE - AR
AIEHEREBETRERONBL -BE-F
—HEF+-A=T—HLFE AEECDET
BREARENIZN -

ARBABEEBOREHBEE - ARETEMH
BAER  ARAREREBERBRERIIANER
HBEMARAEERBRHED -

Big 2 BHHTINT

RMB’000
ARBTT
Interest charged during the year FRFHERE 140,446
Interest paid during the year FRERNFIE (133,630)
Foreign exchange loss HNE B8 430
Foreign currency translation difference INE IR E R 7,428
As at 31 December 2014 R-E—NFE+-A=+—H 2,173,905
Interest charged during the year FANFREAE 145,246
Derecognised due to repurchase by the FREZAR R B ML R
Company during the year (25,637)
Interest paid during the year FARBMFE (134,007)
Foreign exchange loss HMNE &5 18 (1,554)
Foreign currency translation difference INEE B = R 130,483
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hAFE+-_A=+—8H 2,288,436
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25. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

In September and December 2015, the Group repurchased,
by way of market acquisition, notes with a principal amount
of USD4,000,000, for a total consideration of USD3,890,625
(RMB equivalent: 24,804,000).

26. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 11% to 21% of the
eligible employees’ salaries for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: from 12% to 20%).

Pursuant to the labour regulations of Taiwan and Macau, the
Group joined defined contribution retirement plans for its
employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at the applicable rates ranging from 1%
to 6% based on the eligible employees’ salaries (2014: from
1% to 6%).

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (2014:
HKD30,000). Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits
other than the contributions described above.

25. BREE »)
RZE—RFNLANRT A XEERBTS
U B8 77 R LA 424K (83,890,625 T (HENAR
#24,804,0007T) Bl 7N 42 A4,000,0003% 7T
HZ=HE -

26. EERKEF
KEFELTHABE  AEBAEEES
% B B AR kA R IRTE 12 8 TE 58 RUR R4
Flatdl e AEEEREBEZE-_Z—AF+=A
+—AEFERAEREZZNEBERINZEEZ
FZ11%ZE21% (Z T —P04F : 12%FE20%)
MERRET IR o

pei

Il Hoi

AEBREBESERRMNE T AN AEE SN
ERMEFRINGTEl - REASEEUEER=E
RUREFCEEZHMARER  WIENF1%E
6% (ZZFE—MUF : 1%26%) @A EKFE
RETEIER -

AEBIBRBEESRGERARSFTEGE - A
BEBTBERFBKROIZEZEERIBHIMERE
S8 ([RESFE]) - BESFTE BB Y
ERABERZ EEMHIRKEE - RIZARES
e BEREEESAAKEEBZBEREA
Z5%f 3K 0 M LA30,000% T (=& — M0 & -
30,0008 70) R ABFEABAZ LR o 5TEI#
HERFREMAE °

B LR AEEBEREER 2 RIKR
H A RIRE BN FAEEMEALE -

FRAERERAR 2 -HAER 177



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BB B4 » BREAN R

27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

(a) The 2005 share option plan

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 27 August 2005 pursuant to the resolutions of
the shareholders of the Company to grant share options
to certain senior employees of the Group to subscribe for
shares of the Company at certain exercise prices. The
options vest if certain performance targets are achieved
during certain periods.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grant are as follows:

27. UREmEHE  BOERIMAR
5

(a) —ZEAFHERES
ARBAMR_ZFZAFENA-TLAREART]
RERBRR G —ERRIEH L AAAA
AEBETRAEBRLBRE TRETO
EERBADRRE - WRSERANETHH
FHETRRAR BRERNSETES -

(i) BREGRREHOT :

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
TAYE BEGH BREZSNES
Options granted to employees:
KT EE 2 BRE
—on 30 September 2011 4,150,000 The purchase rights may be executed 5 years
from 30 September 2014 if certain
performance targets were achieved
by then
—-R-T——FhA=1H ME R EIETREBE  BERETA 5%

“E-EFAA=THRITE
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27.
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) The 2005 share option plan (Continued) (a)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i)
share options are as follows:

DEaEE  ROERIAX
7 (&)

—EERERRESE ()
RS A RET ST EENT

2015 2014
—Z-HF —E-ImF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price  of options
In#EF BB INHEFH B ARt
TEE #HA TE(E #H
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000

BT BTT
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—B#ARITHE 2.66 385 2.66 1,485
Cancelled during the year FRF - - - -
Lapsed during the year FRKH - - 2.66 (1,100)
Outstanding at 31 December R+—A=+—HBHAKTTE 2.66 385 2.66 385
Exercisable at 31 December W+—=A=+—HaJ17{# 2.66 385 2.66 385

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an
exercise price of HKD2.66 (2014: HKD2.66) and a remaining
contractual life of nine months.

(b)
On 19 May 2015, a new share option scheme was
established which will be used to grant option to selected

The 2015 share option scheme

participants including but not limited to directors and
employees of the Group in order to provide incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at 31
December 2015, no option was granted under 2015 share
option scheme.

—E-RAFTA=tT - HERTEZBER
Z1TEER266ETT (Z T —F : 2,668
) MATEHNFHRAEA -

o w K

(b) Z=ZT—-OFERKRETE
R-ZZE-—RFREATNABR  RARRIL—IBH
BRE S BARAEHE2RE (BRES
BRRASBEERER) KT ERE - AEEEK
ERAKEMEER - R_T—AF+_-_A=
T—H SERE_T-AFEREFIRD
FEASAE
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27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Share award scheme

Pursuant to a share award scheme approved by the Board
in 2015, the Company may purchase its own shares and
grant such shares to certain employees or consultants of
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company purchased 8,000,000 shares at cash consideration
of HKD10,162,000 (equivalent to RMB8,265,000), which
have not yet been granted under the share award scheme.
The consideration paid for the purchase of the Company’s
shares is reflected as a decrease in the capital reserve of
the Company.

28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

URERGEHE  ROEREIZMAX
Z (&)

(c) KRpERESEE
BEETENR T —AFHEZRHERT
g ARAABEEASRMRANERE
TEEIBERELHEBERD BE=-_F— %
F+ZA=T—BLEFEE  ARFNURERE
10,162,000% 7T (18 5 M A K #8,265,0007T)
88 58,000,000 A1 + 32 F R0 8 RARRAR 10
REFERY  HEEARTAROEN ZRE
R AR NBVE AR FEERD o

27.

28. HLEMBMRRRZFAEH

(a) HEBHIRRR ZAHHIALE

2015 2014

—E-AEF —E—E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Provision for income tax for the year FE TS 179,641 236,717
Income tax paid B ER (158,863) (210,757)
20,778 25,960

Balances of profits tax provision relating to prior years are
both nil at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i) Deferred tax assets recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in

28. MEHMBMRRRZFAER (&)

(b) CHEIDELEHRBREERER
() CEIBELEHEEE:

REBEZ-_T—RF+-_A=+—HIEMEAFE

the consolidated statement of financial position and the RNELZEMBRIAETANBERZEERBEEEY
movements during the two years ended 31 December 2015 K0 R ESHE L 0T -
are as follows:
Impairment Depreciation
of trade charges in
andother Inventory  Taxlosses  Unrealised Accrued  excess of Others
receivables provision ot utilised profit ~ expenses depreciation  (nofe 9a)) Total
EYES
BRRES ESil HE&R -4
EUSERE  AERE  REER  REREN  BGER RERE (M) - h
RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARETT  ARMTR ARETR ARMTR  ARETn ARETR  ARETn ARETR
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE-A-A 1,631 17,223 21,122 17,041 10,392 - - 67,409
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss  FE3B253T A/ (11%) (607) (164) 7610 (3923) 605 1,287 - 4758
At 31 December 2014 R-F-MmE+-A
and 1 January 2015 =t-Ak
“T-1%-f-H 1,024 17,059 28,732 13,118 10,997 1,237 - 72,167
Credited(charged) to profit or loss #8353t A/ (41) 3,008 3,511 27072 (2,333) 3,013 - (20,795) 13,676
Credited to other comprehensive st A2
income WA - - - - - - 20,795 20,795
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1E+-R
=t-H 4,232 20,570 55,804 10,785 14,010 1,237 - 106,638
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28. MEMBMRRKRZABHR @)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERAELHELSERERE (&)
(Continued)

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised (i) CECEIELEHEEE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in #HE-Z—RAF+-_A=1+—HIFMEFE -

the consolidated statement of financial position and the W&Ré&

movements during the two years ended 31 December 2015  pXE8D MEEHWT :

are as follows:

MBERRNERZERRECERBAB A

Expected
profit Fair value
distribution  adjustments
by the in relation
Group's PRC to business
subsidiaries  combinations Others Total
AHARE
K A Al REKSH
Dk AREHE Hth st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mF—A—AH 29,802 91,620 5,221 126,643
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZME /(GEA) (7,664) (7,207) 4,637 (10,234)
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z-WNFE+-A=+—H
1 January 2015 k=—Z—H&%—H—H 22,138 84,413 9,858 116,409
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RIEFMR /(GTA) 4 (4,059) (6,649) (10,704)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-—A%+-A=+—H 22,142 80,354 3,209 105,705

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB283,068,000 (2014:
RMB287,124,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. These tax
losses will expire during the period from 2016 to 2020.
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the Tax Law of the PRC, 10% withholding tax is
levied on foreign investors (5% for foreign investors who are
registered in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria)
in respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB22,142,000 (31 December 2014: RMB22,138,000) have
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of the retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB133,284,000 (2014:
RMB122,965,000) have not been recognised, as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable that certain of
the profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the
year from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2015 will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

28. MEHMBMRRRZFAER (&)

(d) KRERXZELEHRAEE
RBHBEBE  IEREEBRIERELE
RZZZTNF— A — BRI &l E 4
ZRED KR EAO%RMNTEMT - REBZ
2SN R EF T A & THRERIZHR K%
IR -

AZT—RAFE+-_A=1+—8 AEEDHRAK
SEFENBRARID KRB N EEERAR
¥22,142,000LKEERIEEE (ZFT—WF
+=ZA=+—8: AR¥22,138,0007T) °

HRARRFIEHZENB AR ZREEE -
FEEETRATRER 0] R 2R 5 A & B B A
BARIR=-ZEEN\F—A—HEZ-Z—AF+
“RA=t+—HEEARRZE T HFETOIR
B T RIRIE R 1R & B A R #5133,284,0007T
(ZZ—mF : AR®122,965,0007T) °

29. BEX - RERERE

(a) EHAKID 2LEF
AREBEGREEDRSARID 2 FHRFERGRR
HRFNGEEREEDR - NAARRFNRF
Rz ERERE Y EBFEEHIIMT

FRAUBEBRARAR R -HEFER 183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 355 e A i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B} BB B4 » BREAN R

29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29. EX - RERKRE @)
(Continued)
(@) Movement in components of equity (Continued)  (a) HEFRERID ZEE (&)
The Company AN/
Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BE  BfeR BARBEE  EARE  ERRE  REER it
Moo RMBOOO ~ RMBO0OO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO0O

fE ARMTn  ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ-WE-f-Bzik 22935 2707753 163 3742 (M7713)  (270,463) 2,046,417
Changes in equity for 2014: R-B-MERESET
Total comprehensive ERZEMALE

income for the year - - - - 9,898 (73,148) (683,250)
Dividends approved in respect  tABAEERE

of the previous year 29(b) - - - - - (119.978)  (119,978)
Equity settled share-based NEREE -

fransactions ROEEL %5 27 = = = (696) = 81 (615)
Purchase of own shares BELLARD 29¢)
- par value paid -EffEE (15) = = = = = (19)
- premium paid -BfEE = = = = = (4,869) (4,869)
- transfer between reserves -Gl HEY - - 15 - - (15) -
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ R=E-M&E+=F=+-A

and 1 January 2015 R-E-%1%-f-H 22,920 2,707753 178 3,046 (407.815) (468,392)  1,857690

Changes in equity for 2015: R-B-LERHEY .
Total comprehensive income EErENNEE
for the year - - -

100,350 (305,900)  (205,550)

Dividends approved in respect  #tEBREEERS

of the previous year 29(b) - - - - - (153,100)  (153,100)
Repurchase of convertible bonds BRIk ER Vi - - - (2,296) - 2,29 -
Shares purchased under share  RER(A &1 EBE BRI

award scheme 27 - - - (8,265) - - (8,265)
Purchase of own shares BEALARD 29)
- par value paid -ENER (79) - - - - - (79)
- premium paid -BHi&E - (22,611) - - - - (22,611)
- transfer between reserves - kgD - - 79 - - - 79
Balance at 31 December 2015~ W=E-Hf

TZAZt-B2E&R 22841 2,685,142 257 (7515)  (307465)  (925096) 1,468,164
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29. BEXR - #FERRE @)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends (b) KE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) AEERNARADROESANKRE
Company attributable to the year

2015 2014
— —T-lmEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AR¥BTTT
Final dividend proposed after the R4 BiR /& 0k R 2R % 2
end of the reporting date of BREBRAREST
RMB Nil per ordinary share —E N - GREEBR
(2014: RMB0.032 per AR#0.0327T)
ordinary share) - 153,100

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) AFEMRMERITNBENREERE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, RERDBRGBIFEANRE
approved and paid during the year

2015 2014
—E-FEF —E—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Final dividend in respect of the RNEZRT#E R SR BT
previous financial year, approved B B 2 R HARR B B B RR
and paid during the year of AR®0.0327T
RMBO0.032 per share —E—OF : 5%
(2014: RMB0.025 per share) AR®0.0257T) 153,100 119,978
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29. EX - FEERRE ©)
(Continued)
(c) Share capital (c) R=&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) EEREBTRA
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—-MmE
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
RIDEE SRR R E SEETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.0058 T
HKDO0.005 each =3 il e 10,000,000,000 50,000,000 10,000,000,000 50,000,000
2015 2014
—E-5F —T-MmF
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares HKD shares HKD
RIDEE SEER Rir&E SEBTT
Issued and fully paid: BRTRARE
At 1 January ®—HA—H 4,799,130,959 23,995,654  4,802,906,959 24,014,534
Share repurchase EAE) (19,320,000) (96,600) (3,776,000) (18,880)
At 31 December W+-—A=1+—H 4,779,810,959 23,899,054  4,799,130,959 23,995,654
equivalent equivalent
i) e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
22,841 22,920

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEBREFEAABRBUDTHERZKE @ &7
dividends as declared from time to time and are entited to B —BRBRHAIRARGTRRIAE LIR—F - 7
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary B EBREARRFBEEHEIZERFHE

S o

B

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)
(i) Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of
19,320,000 shares were repurchased on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of HKD27,801,000 (RMB
equivalent: 22,611,000) which includes related transaction
costs of HKD112,000 (RMB equivalent: 91,000).

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant to section 37(4)
of Cayman Islands Companies Law, an amount equivalent
to the par value of the shares cancelled of RMB79,000 was
transferred from the share premium to the capital redemption
reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase of shares
equivalent to RMB22,532,000 was charged against the share
premium.

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at

29. BEXFX - HERRE &)

(c) BA&#E)

(iy BEAXQIIRHG

BE T hRF+-_A=1+—HBItFE &H&
19,320,000 & o E R B X P g B + BB
£27,801,0007% 7T (#8 & 1 A R #22,611,000
JC)  BAEAE R S K A112,000% T (F 5 R
AR#91,0007T) °

m

B sRHEFHE Bt KRR ZEETR
TREZERND 2EHE - BERSHSARE
FI7NE - HERFTHBMEBEZSEA
R #79,0007T 2 B IR 17 ) (B 855 = & AN 1B [0 {7
o RBRIRODASZM 2 H5E (HHERARK
22,532,0007T) ERRDEEER ©

(i) RBEEBRKREBRRITEBREZF

the end of the reporting period HA
Exercise 2015 2014
price Number Number
—E-HF —ET—OF
Exercise period 1TfEH TEE 2 #H
30 September 2014 to —ZE-MOFNAA=THE HKD2.66
29 September 2016 —E-REAHAZTNHE 2.66/87T 385,000 385,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

B-OBERETHEAARBE -BRARR LA
Pelein 2 %8 - W ERBE 2K —FHBIAR
PATE AR RE27 o

(dy RENEEREN

(i) IR R E R R AE D i

RO BEERERRAELNRFENERXASHS
NEVERE °
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- The excess of the consideration paid by the Company
over the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the Group’s
reorganisation.

- The portion of the grant date fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 1(s)(ii).

- The difference between the consideration paid by
the Group to non-controlling interest holders and the
carrying amount of the respective non-controlling
interests.

(iiiy  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the entities within the Group whose functional
currency is other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

(iv)  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of other investments held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in note 1(g).
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(d) RENHEEREH (&)
iy EBREHE
BABEREATEE

-  ARAZzENREBBNEEEHMK
BB AR 2B EARE -

—  IRHFEE(s)(i)BE PARK {0 A BB S5 BR AR
EMBRERAEEHEEER ZER
AT BB NRTTERREZE L B

NAERD °

- AEECNFERERFAEAZAESR
MHRASFER s 2 FRE (B2 278 -

(i) EREHE

R HEREREREEREBEAARKI
INEHE 7 REBER 2 VIERRELE ZMA I
MIEN ZRE - %IRRT FEI(W)ATE g5
BURBRIE ©

RAERBEENBRSHURFEEMREZR
BFEMRENEN(9) 2 EFTBER
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) PRC statutory reserve

Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and were approved by
the respective boards of directors.

PRC statutory reserves include general reserve, enterprise
expansion fund, and statutory surplus reserve.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group, which are wholly foreign
owned enterprises in the PRC, are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of
a dividend to shareholders. Moreover, they are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC GAAP, to the enterprise expansion
fund.

The general reserve fund can only be used to make good
previous years' losses upon approval by the relevant
authority. The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase the entity’s capital or to expand its production
operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital, provided that the balance of the reserve after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries.

29. BEXFX - HERRE &)

(d) RENUEEREW (&)

(v) HEERERE

ARRAMRIRH BB R A SOER AR RBR
PEGEMAZOM B AR EZAA - SRE
BNESREPEAERE  BRESHBAR
EEglE -

FEEERBERE—RER  CEXBREEZR
EREBBATE ©

REFEBPBEERER  AEENFEMER
Al (BRENIIEBELR) ARRFRRS
Bl & 5t R E B TE 2 10% 5 18 )0 M B8 B = — MR
BES HERBEHRESNEREEMERZ
50% ° B E I E VAR D IKRE T BREA
T WIN REBBERETEARSHR
ABEZETEDUBMRENECEERES -

—REEEERAVERIAHREIEE RILER
REREBEFERE CXERESRAAE
BAEHTEZERILERBIFRMNERCEN
FIRBREZEERT -

EERBRABEARERBEEFEERE (WE)
RAEBSEHMEA  HEERREZABEHRD
BLORMBRAREMEAR 225% e
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29. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi)  Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company may be applied
for payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 was RMB1,760,046,000
(2014: RMB2,239,361,000).

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to the finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes total interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and senior notes) less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of
equity. The net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31 December 2015
is 25% (2014: 27%).

The Group is subject to covenants based on the Group’s
financial ratios relating to capital requirements and interest
coverage imposed by the lenders of the interest-bearing
borrowings and the covenants relating to limitations on
indebtedness and certain transactions stipulated in the
terms of senior notes. The Group complied with the imposed
loan and senior notes covenants for the year ended 31
December 2015. Except for the above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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29. BEXR - HERRE 2

(d) REHMEERBN (&)

(vi) FEIAIREEE
REMSHSARE - AR A AEARIDEE
BRB R 2 D IRK AR - LA A AR B BE
RELADIKIBE BBHENTRAFEBT
BRBIHEHBR -

N—_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—H KXAFAHH
K & @ /e xR A A R #51,760,046,0000T (— & —
e - AR¥2 239,361,0007T) °

(e) EBEAEHE

AEBEREAZTZARREANEENE
BRERED KMERRRBKFHEEEZE
mEREEBANESAEXRAINRE - #E
RBRAEDR - BEMN AR EAIENE -

AEEEGRER BT REEEARE L&
B REBIER T AIEHEE RS EEKFE
B R 4T 69 & A RO 5 2R B0 4F B AR R 2 RS
T YARKERBENE(CHERRBIEL

N
sk

1E

AEEBRFEEEANL REREEERER - 5t
s CARFEAEETEAAGEEHE (81
ATEEEARE  TMRESRELER) BB
MR EEY BABEMAESAKID -
R-E—hFE+-A=+—0  FaEBEERL
RE25% (ZZ—F 1 27%) ©

AEEZRIBEEBAERRE RN EMNZH
BHEMABEENETRINZY - §H
EHRBIH RO RBEERBIGHARENE T
RPABRR -BE_FT-—AF+_A=1+—H
LFE ARECBETERERNELRER
#) o B EXFRIES » NRARHEAMRME LR
B INEE A INE) B AR TE PAAR R ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F BAHEEASN - EEEAARBIEERL)

30. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as 31 December 2015 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

30. AiE

(@) EXREE
RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—BHEABITELE
RIS RER NI G 2 E R FER| T -

2015 2014

—E-RF —F-IF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEF T

Authorised but not contracted for EREEXRTL 2,739 45,432

(b) Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

(b) EERERE
TAMPELEHEZ RN ARSEES QAR
ST

2015 2014

— —T-mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year —FR 207,137 239,536
After 1 year but within 5 years BE—FEHIRAF 222,197 191,199
After 5 years HBiEAF 431 14,963
429,765 445,698

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
and the leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments
disclosed above, the Group has a commitment to pay
rent based on a proportion of turnover for certain leased
properties. Contingent rentals are not included in the above
commitments as it is not possible to estimate the amounts
which may be payable.

REBAETYMEZABAN  ZEMEZNL
HEHR-—RA—ERLF  EFHREME KRR
BAREEEMEN BEXARBEZRERS
MRES - AEBARERBALIHETHE
EWMEZEE R REMBTERNIAESZ
8 At FHEEW ARG A LA -
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During 2015, the Group acquired a subsidiary, which is
mainly engaged in the manufacturing of watch accessories
from a third party for a cash consideration of HKD18,250,000
(equivalent to RMB14,401,000).

The watch accessories that are manufactured and sold by
the acquired business complement the Group’s existing
watch accessories products portfolio. Acquisition of this
watch accessories business enables the Group to have
a broader watch accessories products portfolio and to
sell those products to the existing customers of the watch
accessories products. The acquisition will also facilitate the
Group to expand its business scale and coverage in watch
accessories sector and achieve synergies by leveraging the
Group’s existing products portfolio and sales network.

Details of the fair value of net identified assets acquired are
as follows:

31. WiEKME AR

RZZE—AF  NEEMNRSMRE18,250,000
BT (HERAR14,401,0007T) BE=ZH UK
BE—HETERERNENMEB AR -

WEBRBLEEMAEZTFREEERMBALE
BRANTFHREEEMMES - WBZFTEREE
EmEHRAKE R ARBEE RS BN TR
EERMAS  RARTREANEERARRAE FE&
REEREPHEZSTEM WBFEEHR
AREBEBREFREEEMD BBORBFRRRK
BE MAAKSERBEMNERES REERK
EE B FRIZE o

BACHIABEFENLABNT

Recognised values
on acquisition

BERRWEER

RMB’000

ARETTT

Fixed assets EEBE 3,884
Inventories 7e 2,359
Trade and other receivables FE U B 5 BR T K HL fih iE U Fk1E 1,592
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEZEEY 1,042

Trade and other payables FEN 8 5 BR 3R ELAth FE A~ 5RIE (7,133)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities AR EERBEFE 1,744
Goodwill EES 12,657
Cash consideration REeRE 14,401
Cash acquired BEUERS (1,042)
Net Cash outflow B b2 13,359
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, this acquired
business contributed revenue of RMB10,942,000 and profit
of RMB871,000 to the Group’s result. Had the acquisition of
the manufacturing business occurred on 1 January 2015,
management estimates that consolidated revenue would
have been RMB13,310,264,000 and consolidated profit for
the year would have been RMB190,844,000. In determining
these amounts, management has assumed that the fair value
adjustments, determined provisionally, that arose on the date
of acquisition would have been the same if the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2015.

The fair values are determined provisionally based on
information available up to the date of this report. The
directors are in the process of finalising the valuation of the
net identifiable assets acquired. If new information obtained
within one year from the acquisition date about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date identifies
adjustments to the above amounts, or any additional
provisions that existed at the acquisition date, then the
acquisition accounting will be revised.

31. WEBHBAR (&)

BHE-Z-—RAF+T-A=+—HLEFE"
ZWEBEBSAAEBREERERMBEEARE
10,942,0007T & j& ) A R #871,0007T ° il 4
BRBEEBEN_T—RAF A —H®LE 182
[Efhatéra W ig A AR 13,310,264,0007T
NFEiRE =M A AREE190,844,0007T ©
RETZECHERN EEERRKKBANES
ZAREAE (BE) BEEFWER-_F—A
F—-RA—RETMELEERR -

RAEDRBEEEA RS AHATRGENERE
RET EFRLEECWEAIRIEERE
EfEME o AU E B HIE —F ARG A BRI
BRRTENZERBEANFEREL Ll e
BEREFEHAE  ABARNUERPELFE
M EAERIMNEERFER - B EEN ALK
R ERIERT °
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management personnel compensation and
post-employment benefit plans

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors

as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

32. ERBELTXRS

(a) FEEEASHMEEBRER

£l
AEETREEABRFMERENTARAES
28 (RME7THRE) RETEREHMER (B
FYFEemEE) T

2015 2014

—ZE-RF —F-IF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits HHEEREN 73,670 79,438
Post-employment benefits BB 7212 A 227 168
73,897 79,606

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(b)).

(b)  Recurring transactions

FMeEeER B INAl R (2EHE

The Group REE
2015 2014
—E-T0F —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT
Lease expenses to a joint venture I TEEATIZHEER 6,000 4,500
Sales of goods to associates HEEMmTHME AT - 11,307
Purchase of goods from an associate ML N FHEIEE W - 9,229
Payments made on behalf of REEZE RN BN
an associate - 4,726
Payments made on behalf of REZERNBINR
joint ventures 8,404 7,125

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions with related parties were conducted
in the ordinary course of business, on normal commercial
terms and in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions.

194 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

ARAREZRB/ALBEETRGIERTEER
R - REEGRET BERRERFEARS
Z AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 e 25 Ff ik

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEHERAIN « EEEUARBEVEENL)

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the directors’
remuneration constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however they
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
movements in its own equity share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
1 month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

32. ERBBELZRS (&)

(c) BEHBEXZzLTRAEMAM

EREEFMcBETRX5BK EMMRRNE 1
TWABRBERER S  EERXZERRET L
MARMNETHAZZ WERE -

33. MKEAREERAAE

AEERRBEBERTHIREE  RBES -
MEREERR  NEBETAXKE RO ER
BE) 2 RERR -

AEBEFMESZLERR R A KEREE L
FRkz FEERERERR R EHHEN T -

(a) FERMK
AEBENEERRTZRERKE SRR EHE
thENHRIE - BEEECHITEEBR - UWHE
HRAARSZNEERRREITESR o

ENE SRR EMERFRIAMS - HER
ESBBREBENEEZEPYAETEY
EEFG  FENHEXFPIHER I BERL
BMBRIZEREN L REFP ZHBEER
REREFREMEZRERE - BRWE SR
REREBHRFTI0E0HANIE - FHEBH
—EAREBERBRZEEARNEREIMEEIME

8Al ABEMEREENE - ARE BT
SREFKERER R
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group had no
significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statements of financial
position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

(b)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 33. MBEKREERQAE @)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)y REBEZREMRE (&)
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or years but years but contractual Carrying
31 December 2015 ondemand  over1year over2years Over5 years cash flow amount
—E0R FEDAN TEHR REBEH
“E-EETZA=t-H FEEX  EEB-F EBEWEF BBLE Beng REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR%®TR  ARET:n
Trade and other payables excluding  ERZ SR
advance receipts from customers  EfhER A
(TEEEERH) 1,886,542 - - - 1,886,542 1,886,542
Secured interest-bearing loans BB BER 498 588 1,550 2,831 5,467 5,034
Unsecured interest-bearing loans ERAFEER 729,607 416,112 146,215 - 1,291,934 1,251,808
Senior notes BLZE 142,052 142,052 2,343,851 - 2,627,955 2,288,436
2,758,699 558,752 2,491,616 2,831 5,811,898 5,431,820
Within 1 Within 2 Within 5 Undiscounted
year or years but years but Over5  contractual Carrying
31 December 2014 ondemand  over 1year over 2 years years cash flow amount
—EHA REAR RELHR RERED
“E2-ME+=A=1-H d%EX  BEB-F  EBRERE pep Rk Reneg REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETr ARETRT ARETr ARETR
Trade and other payables excluding  ERZ SR
advance receipts from customers  EtERFE
(TREEFRH) 2,183,826 - - - 218382 2,183,826
Secured interest-bearing loans BERTEER 507 519 1,630 3,241 5,897 5,507
Unsecured interest-bearing loans ERATRER 996,677 342,975 167,102 247 1,507,001 1,480,832
Convertible bonds AR ER 80,918 - - - 80,918 78,005
Senior notes BLEE 133,853 133,853 2,342,430 - 2,610,136 2,173,905
3,395,781 477,347 2,511,162 3,488 6,387,778 5,922,075
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing loans, convertible bonds and senior notes.

Borrowings issued at variable rates, and borrowings,
convertible bonds and senior notes issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and
maturity information of the interest-bearing bank loans,
convertible bonds and senior notes are disclosed in notes
22, 24 and 25 respectively.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. The Group
does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial instruments was:

33. BKEREERAAE &)
(c) FIZ=EFa
AEEZHREBRTBEREAGEER AR
(EE R BT -

N BMERE Z2ER  KBEMRRE ZE
HAMREFREBEZEBESASE D BIAR
HemEFNERBEALBEFERR - 57 21
TER - IRRESFRELEE XX EIH
ERDRIRHITE22 « 24X 25HFE ©

AEE 2 R AEEEN X @R AR B A&
EEAMNEZEHLAHBEENERZ AR - K&
B EET AEARBRRRAABIRZERE
MESRMEE TEATESRIAHDMHEE
BERAE

AEBENRE BB SBT ANEARM
T -

2015 2014
—E-E0F T
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
BERAE AR¥Tx BERAE ARETIT
Fixed rate instruments BEERMEITE
Unsecured interest-bearing KT B E R 2.10%~ 140,607 0.92% ~ 879,244
loans 6.44% 6.44%
Convertible bonds Al AR E S - - 4.6% 78,005
Senior notes BHRER 6.77% 2,288,436 6.77% 2,173,905
2,429,043 3,131,154
Variable rate instruments AEFNETE
Secured interest-bearing loans BEFHTEER 2.22% 5,034 2.29% 5,507
Unsecured interest-bearing ER T BER HIBOR+1.25%~ 1,111,201 1.92% ~ 601,588
loans 2.52% 6.56%
1,116,235 607,095
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through
sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily RMB and HKD.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
PBOC rates.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

33. MBEREERAALE &)

(d) E¥EMK
AEBMATHEERBR T ERENBBELEY
BINAEE RN S ENNE  BE RE
B EAHRRNEEEIEAARBRAET -

ARBTESEHLBRENIE - HESRARE
HINER 5 AR B ARRITHEAMER 2
BEEIMNENBBET - BIMNERXZARMAZIE
RHPBRARRITERE °

() AEREZEBAR
THRHAEERBERRE AR B 4=
B BN E R EER A E AR -

As at 31 December 2015
(expressed in RMB)
R=%2-H%+=A=+—H

(AAR®Z7)
RMB’000 HKD’000
AREET T FET
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRNESEEY 76,505 36,766
Trade and other payables e B 5 8RR R H A FET FRIE (182,829) (1,534,080)
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR 3R % B FE W GRIE - 108,514
Overall net exposure BRI (106,324) (1,388,800)
FRAERERAR —F-AAFER 199
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

33. MBEREERAAE &)

(d) E¥REER @)
(i) AEEzZERER (&)
As at 31 December 2014
(expressed in RMB)
W-ZT—mME+—_A=+—H
(AAREZ5)

RMB’000 HKD’000

ARETIT FET

Cash and cash equivalents RENBEELEED 508 31,612
Trade and other payables TERN B ZERT N E fh B I8 (443) (1,475,002)
Trade and other receivables FEUNE 5 BR 3 N E b e IR 141,690 109,045
Overall net exposure BEE Rk F R 141,755 (1,334,345)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s net profit for the year that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. The sensitivity analysis includes balances between
group companies where the balances are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower.

(iy BREES

TRIATARSBER R MAKEAEAESER
RHEXRRE BEMED (BRERME EMmRE
AEARRFTLE)  HAKEFNFRFE
R ES RESNMEBREEATMZ
Her o MSEHRTINERATEBRAZNEE
BN EEEETE -

2015 2014
—E-RF —F-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBTT

HKD BT
- 5% strengthening of RMB — AREFHES% 49,168 72,309
- 5% weakening of RMB — ARKEEZE5% (49,168) (72,309)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)  Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency
risk for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate over the period until the end of next annual
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same

basis for 2014.

(e) Fair values measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the

Level 1

measurement date.

33. BKEREERAAE &)

(d) E¥Ek &)
(i) BHBEDLN (E)
FRSBES T BRENREARLIFIERE
PMET WERARAEBEZEERERTAE
ZEBMITAMAENESRAR  URAAEEM
AR (FRIEFER) #FTE - FoEEiE
EEEREETAFEREHRTELEZE
BEXBE}EL ZFH - ZS—WFEZHMN
LAFRRI LR #EAT ©

(e) 2AREFE
(i) RANBESEZEREEREE

DRESHRE
TREJRBERRRBBHMHHREEAF13

BIAAEAEI AAEAABESRAREN=
BEEEEEARABEAEZAEBEERTAR

ffE - RAEFEMBER 2R EMERM
FEAZBARBZAUBREEREREME
E - BBEEFRAENT :

. E—REE: AAERKAZE-RBA
IEE H+E EHEE+EE|EA/\¢X/EE%miE
PHEHAEEXAGEZREHBRE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 33.
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (Continued) (e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 e

inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

BREREERAARE &)

DRAEFE (&)

BAREFEBZERMEERERE (&)

EEMRE (&)

FE_MMGEE: 2AERAE_RBAR
BFtE  BIRENAF R8RS
AEE  RTERAEARTABEEGA
HE - TAIBRHAEE SEEREM
LEBEZBAERR °

E=BEE AAERAEATIBE
HAREHE -

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
R-E-—HF+-HA=+—H
RTINS EZ AREFE

Fair value at
31 December
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E—hfF
+—A=1+—
BZARE EF— F EFE=R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AREKETET
The Group AEE
Other investments (note 16): EHi&& (f1:16) :
Available-for-sale securities  AJ it H&EF&E S 61,163 61,163 - -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no #HE—T—HRE+—_A=+—RAIL&EE F—
transfer between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out #LERE — 4 T B 7 W EEMER - TEQE

of Level 3. —AR TR ASET o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

Unlisted equity securities of RMB2,324,000 (2014:
RMB797,000) do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and therefore their fair values cannot be
reliably measured. They are held for strategic purposes and
recognised at cost less impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period

(fy  Estimation of fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and
based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and therefore cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial instruments:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, trade
and other receivables, and trade and other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments.

(i) Interest-bearing bank loans

The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair
value based on the borrowing rate currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.

33. MBEREERARE @)

(e) ADAREFE (&)

(i) WIUAARBEFEZEHMIAEANRE
AR ®2324000 (ZFE —MF: AR
797,0007T) 2 3k T IR R 35 25 N 4 Y R0 BB
MiGzmE  AREARBEEUSEITE - %
ERMANBHIERBEEREMER  WRRER
RIZRK AN E E5 B AERR o

(f) AREME
AABERRBERFRRBEERMSEN L/
TRAZEMEHMAR - ZFHAMEEEE X
ﬁ&?%ﬁﬂl%&/ﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬂ%ﬁZ%lﬁ ES)l:d
W TREEEMETE - RERNEEBAIERER
EnfEfhEt -

ERERIANAABERATIIERBRE
171

EICEE

() BERRSEEY - RITEHR BKRE
SHRARHEMERRE  BHEZERRK

R EABREARRIA
HRZETANFREE  HERAERQA
(IERIEE=g
(ii) STEIRITER
RIBIRE AR B GR R B AEENRITE
ROEENEFE  RTOEFNEREEERAR
EHR% o
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 34 RDEELFBBEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B AR 2 #x 4,285,963 4,549,865
Current assets nEEE
Trade and other receivables W E 5 R &
H b e e 5008 4,733 5,185
Cash and cash equivalents BERESZEY 79,818 79,526
84,551 84,711
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables BB SER R
Hofth JE 508 89,173 93,318
Bank loans RITER 372,680 218,655
Convertible bonds A ES - 78,005
461,853 389,978
Net current liabilities FEEEEE (377,302) (305,267)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERREARG 3,908,661 4,244 598
Non-current liabilities ¥RBEE
Bank loans RITER 152,061 213,003
Senior notes BEEE 2,288,436 2,173,905
2,440,497 2,386,908
NET ASSETS EERE 1,468,164 1,857,690
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEERGE 29(a)
Share capital A& 7N 22,841 22,920
Reserves i 1,445,323 1,834,770
TOTAL EQUITY FERBE 1,468,164 1,857,690

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 17 March 2016.

Zhang Yuping
Executive Director

Huang Yonghua
Executive Director
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35. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Best Growth International Limited, which is incorporated in
British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

35. HERZAEHR

BEERA RE-—HF+A=+—RH &K
SEZERBRRRREES T RRRBE X

HEaMEA M EEERERAR - ZEEIY

FERBERNBZALTL2E U BHRE -
Hi%ﬁi&ﬁﬁ@*iﬂm
1857 - FTIBERZBEN A6
e

BHEAUBRETZBEEH  BSESHMAEE

M BIBEE] REIE AR o W FIEFT RATIGAE

ARBE—_T—AF T _A=+—"HLLFEM
REY  TARAFBHREFERA - T RA
BEERAKE AR BT LFIEER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

REHBEREREN

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

HEBM B REER2012-2014 A H 2 FE

HKFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts

EAMBMELERNE145  BEERELTRE

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS12 and HKAS 28,
Investment entities- Applying the consolidation exception

1 January 2016

—ET-R¥—H—H
1 January 2016
—E—-RF—HA—H

1 January 2016

BRPHHREEAFE105 (BRIA) - AP BHREEAFE125 (BFIA) &
FRE G ERF28TR (BFIA) - REEE - BRAGHNGIINAE

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

FEMBHRELENE115E (BFTA) - WER

/N Ej* f\?iﬁ)] = n+/£

—E—RF—HF—H

1 January 2016
—E—R¥—H—H
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36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

36. :l:—? £$+ H 'I__
BlgtFERAMERERN
1!“‘=‘T C HEER KRB AR

ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 =8 5
DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
REtHEEREZEN
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation 1 January 2016
BEAGERFE 16K BB G EAEIBH (BFIR) @ AIEINITEREHEAEZS R —E-RF—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
EAGTERFE R (BFTAR) - KEFE —ZE-R¥—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 7, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
BB G ERFETR (BFTAR) - WEFE —E—+F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes —

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
HFEGERIFE125% (BRIA) - IS — RREREBEE
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
BAMBRELRNESE - REELELH ZWA
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
EEMBRELRNFESE @MIA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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1 January 2017
T—+H—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF—H—H

AREBEANETEY R ET R EERSEE
RIER AR AL E £ o B BT E
S - BRES AR B R TR A% F RIS R] BE B
REB 2 REMBEREBREATE -

'TVE



STOCK INFORMATION

Place of Listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Short Name: Hengdeli
Stock Code: 3389
Company Website: www.hengdeligroup.com

BONDS INFORMATION

Place of Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Short Name: HENGDELI N1801
Stock Code: 4599

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Yonghua
Mr. Lee Shu Chung, Stan

Non-executive Director
Mr. Shi Zhongyang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jianmin
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William
Mr. Liu Xueling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cai Jianmin (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kam Fai, William
Mr. Liu Xueling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xueling (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Cai Jianmin
Mr. Zhang Yuping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Yuping (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Cai Jianmin
Mr. Liu Xueling

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ng Man Wai, Peter (HKICPA, ACCA)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 301, 3/F, Lippo Sun Plaza
28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Correspondence Address
Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NI

%0 & #

EmHE  FEBERZHBRAFER
KOS =1EH

%19 5% : 3389

AE#BHE : www.hengdeligroup.com
BEFEFR

ETHE  FEEBERZBRAF]
A%1D 578 - HENGDELI N1801

R K5 - 4599

BEExg

HITES

KWTEE (EEFLE)

FRHBEE

FHITES
PG EE

BYFHTES
BRR%EE

EiRiE

e L
BRZEERE
ERREL (ZEBZR)

=EREAL
e ¥ S

FHEZEERE
NEBRE (ZARER)

FERLE
SR I ST A

REZEERE
FRT L (ZFAGER)
BERSEE

BIEE AL

DNEME
RXBFEH(HKICPA, ACCA)

AR EE

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P. O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HMREERBEBETEEREME

BB IEERE285R
NEAIGESIEINE
B b ut

BB NGB

B RN E £ 6PE3805-09F

FRUEBRARAR R TAEER 207



CORPORATE INFORMATION
Ak,

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Law

Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.

5/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

As to PRC Law

Beijing Kangda Law Firm
2301, CITIC Building

No. 19 Jianguomenwai Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

INVESTORS INQUIRY

Ms. Gao Shi

Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2921 9607

Fax: (852) 2375 8010

Email: shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

MEDIA INQUIRY

Ms. Wang Xin

Unit 3805-09, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2921 9667

Fax: (852) 2375 8010

Email: claudia.wang@hengdeli.com.hk

Ms. Kelly Fung

Room 2009-2018, 20/F, Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3150 6763

Fax: (852) 3150 6728

Email: kelly.fung@pordahavas.com

208 Hengdeli Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

¥ BB

E5 PG ERA
RS
BEPREITBI0RAFAESEZ

R
o]
AR R ET A

B o R A — o
B AAESE

B AR

bR R E R ERAT
bR ERkG R EBRPIINAE 1958
EKE2301=

EREROBFEERE

BEEPRBEELER AR
BB BT 2RABRI8IFAMAPL17IE
1712FE1716 =%

FEHESIERNBFERE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

REEEH

mERT

BBENIERD BB
BEAKE 5 6F£3805-09F

BT iE ¢ (852) 2921 9607

{85 : (852) 2375 8010

FH : shi.gao@hengdeligroup.com

BEEN

FArz+

BRI B GBS

BB F6/E3805-09%F

TaE 1 (852) 2921 9667

fEH : (852) 2375 8010

B : claudia.wang@hengdeli.com.hk

RHEEA AT

BB E86-85%

I % H 0 201£2009-2018 %

T 3% (852) 3150 6763

f5H : (852) 3150 6728

EH : kelly.fung@pordahavas.com



(
3G
E
G
(
¢
.
(
NG
B
G
(
'esfc
E
4

B PR BT
T A ot
QF IO QD m

R N = g ¥ Q3
wﬁ)gms_ 7 ?)ﬁs A mﬁ_ W.@)M :



	封面

	封面內封

	目錄
	公司簡介
	主席報告書
	董事會報告書
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	財務概要
	核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收入表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	公司資料
	封底


